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CEO’s MESSAGE

Dear Esteemed Shareholders,

It gives me great honour to present Lo you the 11th Annual Report of
your company, The year 2020-21 was a challenging year for the while
world with Zee Learm no different owing to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Through this annual report | would like to share with you the
performance of Zee Learn and our handing of the pandemic.

Covid-19 spread led to school closures affecting education for
children unequally, as not all children had the tools and means 1o
aceess learning during the pandemig, For milligns of students, 5chool
clesureswill not be a temporary interférénce with their education, but
the abrupt end of it. Did organizations and establishments oo face
the brunt of the pandemic? In a simpie articulation, yes, and Zee
Learn was no different. Despite being one of the largest networks of
educational institutions with a student headcount of over 230,000,
we had o halt our ¢lasses just as abruptly owing 1o strict lockdown
impased.

MNeedless 1o state, this put stress in our education system and on our
admission Season as key months were lost as evenything was shut.
Dur team of professional educators, and trainers, quickly drew up a
plan to adapt to the new normal, and switched to online classes
swifthy. This led to a recommencement of the classes albeit online
across our network of 2000+ centres - including Kidzee, Mount
Litera Zee School, Mount Litera School Intemational, ZIMA, ZICA, MT
Educare, and other institutes. Despite this unprecedented
readblock, our consolidated annual revenue for FY' 21 hit Rs, 313.45
cr.withan EBIDTAGTRs, 43.10 ¢r.

This was followed up with a robust approach this year, wherein our
centres conducted training programs for teachers - so0 that they
could adapt to the new normal of onling classes, we built suitable
content to continue to impart quality education to all our student
community, Qur teachers ensured that every student got exactly the
same level of education and kngwledge at their respective homes
and especially to kids in the pre-primary schoals. Qur teachers went

6

Zee Learn is well on its way to building the tools, platforms, insights and expertise
that connect consumer with a distinct experience, which delivers transformative
omnichannel digital services, for truly personalized experiences, and leverage
aforementioned plans to benefit from the ever evolving sectoral dynamics.

N\

that extra mile (o nurtune toand handhold the students who could not
come to school for the whole year, which further resulted in excellent
academic results when respective examinations were conducted,

Looking ahead, the team at Zee Learn has drawn a path that will mene
towards a hybrid approach of teaching which is a mix of physical and
digital teaching. We continue to believe that for school going children
the best way of imparting education continues to be the brick and
mortar model as and when the school reopen however, with a hybrid
approach we are confident of delivery high quality teaching and
content 1o our students. Qur plan to do so entails developing new
products that will still reach milestones defined, and ensure our core
philosopiy of innovation is also fulfilled embracing digital content.

Educational Quality in school education is among the top priorities at
Zee Learn as it focuses on the development of 21st century leamers.
Zee Learn took an initiative to make provisions for various training
programmes for teacheérs and principals 19 enhance their
understanding of curriculum and delivery modules to have effective
classroom transactions

Our Preschool operations under the brand names of Kidzee, and
Ankurum continue to have 2000+ operational Pre K centres, Mount
Litera Zee School is one of the fastest growing chain of K12 schools
with around 130+ operational 5chools in its network,

It is estimated that Indias education system will combing training
methods that involve online learming and games, and is expected o

7

grow 38% in the next 2-4 years. This is pushing us towards adopling
transformative approaches in education, with an augmented Gross
Enrgiment Ratio (GER) of 30%, Which will in turn reduce state-wise,
gender-based and social disparity in GER to 5%.

Zee Learn is well on its way 1o building the tools, platforms, insights
and expertise that connect consumer with a distingt expenance,
which delivers transformative omnichannel digital services, for truly
personalized experences, and leverage aforementioned plans to
benefit from the ever evolving sectoral dynamics.,

We have the talent, the vision and the conviclion. Together, let's use
them tocontinue building a rewarding future.

Before | end, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude and sincere
thanks for your continued support.

Thank you,

Ritesh Handa
CEOQ, Zee Learn Limated.
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SECTOR OVERVIEW

Introduction Market Size universities having 39% share in FY 19 are expecied 1o reach approgmately
. . - LESS35 billion by 2025,

Orwver the last two years despate the unprecedented times, india continued to attract significant invesiments to strengthen its education sector. Due to the COVID India has a multi-ayerad education system, with mare than 280 Mn students enrolied oy

19 pandemic, all segments of education sactor ramped up the digital transformation efforts, across 1.6 Mn schools, ~39,000 colleges catering 10 27.5 Mnunder-graduates and 4 Mn  Education sector in India remains 1o be a strategic prcety for the
raduate students. The Indian education system is primarily divided info: 1) Formal ~ Government. The Govemment has allowed 100% Foreign Direct Investment

Inthe financial year 2021-22, a olal amount of Rs 93,224 crore has been allocated for the Ministry of Education, This includes Rs 54,874 crore for the Department E:Hwihman:li}lnl' | Education. LR 4 ) (FDI} in the educal throuah tha ﬁcmg:mm From

of School Education and Literacy and Rs 38,350 crone for the Department of Higher Education. The allecation for the year 2021-22 was 6.13 percent less than the 200010 Sep 2020 san Direct Investment (DI} equi mﬁ::ws

, ! tE'lIﬂ‘.:EF ,FDIE!;H | E].HI!,I
previous budget, which was Rs 99,212 crore. Formal Education includes schools governed by the CBSE, ICSE, State, and A el

& . - . = i & 5 l . ) nil' :

'Mulen!anLdi;lwmu:nEﬁm&hwebeelmﬂfﬂEdfemm::;ﬁilhﬁemﬁMﬁ;}ﬂl_Mmah:fu;m?llgmmﬁghmmﬁeﬁ :::rﬁmhﬂ Interational Boards. India has one of the langest higher-education systems in the worl. stood at US3 3,849.20 million
i m‘“’“ﬁﬂ' Honigms 'STQW : TM S x l a Y o “‘”"& s L Saieky igher education inIndia is gavemed by the UGC, camprising universities, colleges, and  In India, the EdTech market is expected to reach ~USS 3.5 bilion by 2022.
: S 7R s - courses. Informal Education includes Coaching Institutes, Pra-Schools and Vocational  Indian ed-tech startups have received a otal investment of USS 2.22 billionin

provides numenous opportunities for growth, ;
Education. 2020, up from US$ 553 million in 2019. -
The Indian education sector provides numerous cpportunities of growth. The Indian education industry was estimated at $117 Bn in FY"20 and is expected fo _ ) The National Education Policy(NEP) 2020 implementation will bring about a
Transforming Curricular & Pedagogical Structure
Hiew Academic Strecture New pedagogical and coericelar strecture
of school education (54343+4]: 3 years in
hnganwatijpre-gchool and 12 years in
_\I i schoal
— UCHEER uSEry s '] f A 1 Yoo
. - 5, Ed irsdusery b= Indis (US5 billlan) Global Aunk . Khnil v Socondary Stagell) multiliec
P : study, greater critical thisking,
wr - 1 2 and student chaioe of subjects
. m i | j : © ol s
MARKET I o scierces, mathematics, o,
- sacial sciences, and humasit
SIIE - s Burribeer of Kumber af  [Aghe sduration :|1.|.I.I1‘:=1| -
Univerities  eorchments  vytem ‘ sadu P » Preparatory Stage (3) play, discovery,
~, e and activity-based and interactive
AT R aEn dmn -
{@‘; + Foundational stage (5) multilevel,
. playlactivity-based leatning
SECTOR T S
COMPOSITION - . = i iﬂl =
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Preschool
Tha preschool rmarked in Indsa is polsad to grow by USD T35.13 million duning 2021-2025, progreszang al a CAGR of almost 8% during the forecast penod.

The Indian pre-schoolichildcane marked reached a value of USE 3, 480 Million in 2020, Looking forward, IMARC Group expects the market bo grow ata CAGR of
anound 12% during 2021-2026, Preschool is a leaming establishment that offers eary childhood education fo children who are betwesn 2-4 years of age. Pre-
schools are an essenlial part of the education system since in the first four years of age, children acquire the basic cognitive, physical, social and emational
capabilities that prepare them for later success in school and life. Pre-schooks can operate both publicly and privately and they have been segmented into full
day-care and after-school care categones.

The growth of the Indian pra-schoolichild care market is driven primarily by factors such as rising parent awarenass for early childhood education and care,
coupbed with rising number of nwclear families and working women in the country. Addtionally, with expansion in tier 2 and fier 3 cities and escalation of franchise
numbers in untapped areas, the number of preschoolichid care cenires have significantly increased. The government of India has also launched the Mational
Early Childhood Care and Education (ECCE) palicy, pramating pre-schoaling for children in low-income households of the country

Preschool Market in India 2020-2024

Corsumear DEcnefionony iIndusing:

he Consumer Dcraliorary seclorwil
i MEGATIVE BMPACT dues o e
COVID-17 outbreak, and the indusiry &
axpacied o regisher o low growh

rate companed b e giabal GOP growth,

Market impocth;

Tk mrarkal will harve
POSIMVE IMPACT due fo pandemic

Al markel sikmated o be
rewisited and updaled in Q4

;’ﬁ e The market i FRAGMENTED

TRy T

17000+ Reparts coreiring niche bopica. Resd ther st 1 t@chnavio

2030, bazeed on e e ol uso 306
of the imipoel o1 the pardemis
speiad plaheaus

Rel hitps- ey, iImarcgroup comindian-pre-school-chdd-cane-markel

K-12 Education

The Indian school education system is one of the largest and most complex in the world. According bo a report, there are 1.46 million k-12 schools in India out of
which 54 percent are owned by state or central government, 21 percent by municipal corporations and the rest 25 percant are privately owned. These K-12
schools are affilialed with State board, CBSE and even CISCE. Statistics for affiliation ane as follows: 96% by slate board schools. 1% 10 CBSE, 0.1% to CISCE
and 2% is unracognized out of all K-12 schoolsin Indka. The K-12 model is among those revolutions that the Indian education system has broadly accepted and
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made it compulsory o adopt for both private and govemment schools,

The digital fransformations hawve made rapid sirides in the K12 segment duing
the COVID-19 and the digital delivery modeds have emerged as the ntegral
part of the school systems.

Test Prep & Tutoring Sector

The tesi preparation markets in a way are in a mature stage, whike the onfing
tes! preparabon segment s in a growth stage. As per a report, the growth m the
online segment is strongly outpacing growth in the overall test prep segment,
with the former growing at a CAGR (Compounded Annual Growth Rate) of
ST 4% with the latter growing at 9. 1% over 2015-2020. Key factors responsible
for growth of the online segment are wider access fo intemet and
smartphones, the lack of quality coaching centers in Teer-2 and Tier-3 regions
of the country, robust invesiment Bow in the education technology space and
advanced technologies allowing increased reach of leaming,

Vocational Education and Skill Development

According o the Economic Survey 2021 India, Vocational courses in schools
will be introduced phase-wise for classes 9 o 12 1o expose students 1o skill
development avenues, as part of the Centre’s flagship skilling scheme
Pradhan Mantr Kaushal Vikas Yojana 3.0. The Survey for the financial year
ending March said merely 2.4 per cent of India’s workforce in the age group of
15-59 years have received formal vocational or technical Iraining, while
anather 8.9 percent obiained training through informal sournces.

With high economic growth rates and an evident shortage of skilled workers,
the modernisation of formal vocational education and training (VET) in India
increasingly came ino focus. Skill development has been on topof the agenda
of the Indéan govemnment for more than a decade, resulfing in state policies
and refated schemes 1o upgrade and develop sustainable and systemic
interventions for skill development,

Training and Manpower

Az per a report from S1A, the most attractive markets for staffing are India and
Malaysia, followed by China and Ireland. The Indian staffing market was worth
INR 368.7 billion (USD 5.2 billion) in 2020. This is the fowrth largest staffing
market in Asia, after Japan (USD 66.7 bilkon), China (USD 16 billion) and
Australia (USD 15 billion). In 2019, before the Covid-19 outbreak, temporary
staffing accounted for B6% of sales and permanend recruitmend 14%,

The Indéan staffing industry ended the fiscal vear 202002021 with 3.6% growth
according todata from the Indian Staffing Federation. The growth was langely

driven by recovery in the fourth guarter of 2020,
According fo the report, women, youth, and high-skilled workers were

‘positively impacted by the flexi-employment markat trends post the
pandemic.

The Ministry of Labour and Employment, Ministry of Human Resource
Development (MHRD), Ministry of Rural Development and Ministry of Urbian
Development & Poverty Alleviation, along with 14 other ministries, have
come up with vanous schemes on skill development. The Modular
Employable Skills (MES) and Skills Development Initialive Scheme (SDIS)
adopted by the Directorate General of Emgployment and Training (DGET),
Ministry of Labour and Employment, Govemment of India, provides a new
strategic framework for skill development for eardy school leavers and
exisling workers, especially in ihe un-organised seclors, in close
consultation with indusiry, micro antenprises in the un-organised seclor, State
Governments, experts and academia. The main objective here is to provide
employable skills to school laavers, ewsting workers, [Tl graduates and
sirnifar ofhers.

Dpportunities and Road ahead

Education was one of the most-affiected sectors due to COVID. Education
institules, such as, schools, colleges, universiies, and iesi-preparafion
cantars wene the first to shut down to control the rapid rise in COVID cases.
However, this led to a sudden surge in the EdTech segment, which saw a

steepincrease in the number of users.
Digital Transformation in educabion look an unprecedented force.

Organizations in the digital seclor made efforts to keep pace with the
transformations, India has become the sacond langast market for E-leaming
after the US. The sector is expected 1o reach USS 1.96 billion by 2021 with
arcund 9.5 milion users. In India, the online education market is forecasied

toreach ~US$ 11.6 bilion by 2026,
Alot of innovations have been lested within the Indan EdTech industry to

batance the dynamics of teachars & students from a traditional classrom o
a virtual ona. Technology is tumning feacher-driven education inta a more
teacher siudent amrangement Sman classrooms are making leaching
transparent and equivalent for every student in a way dose to the genuine
classroom-like sxperienca. Zes Leam continues 1o strengthen its product
portfolio and invest in technologies bo enhance the learming experience of ils
diversified educational services,

Annual Report 2020-21 | 07



‘ ‘ Our vision is to become India’s largest and most respected Education Company

serving the full life cycle of educational needs through digital / offline modes and
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with a strong social commitment and Indian roots. , ,

OUR PRESENGE-CORE
AND SUPPLEMENTARY

Zee Learn, India’s Most Trusted Diversified

Education Brand has made its presence felt in the
areas of core and supplementary education.

CORE EDUCATION

Our services in core segment range from Preschools to K-12 Schools to Higher education.

Under preschools, Kidzee is Asia’s largest preschool network with more than 2000 centres now offering recently launched
Day Care services. Ankurum is the latest preschool offering aimed at providing structured quality education at an affordable
cost. Mount Litera World Preschool (MLWPS) is an international standard preschool brand that seeks to create lifelong
learners through guided exploration and open expression,

Under K-12, Mount Litera Zee School is the fastest growing chain of K-12 schools with 130 + schools in its network. Mount
Litera School International is a co-educational day school, which provides outstanding education through the holistic based
curriculum. In the Higher Education area, we are associated with the leading state private university in Dehradun called the
Himgiri Zee University.

SUPPLEMENTARY EDUCATION

The offerings under supplementary education range from vocational to test preparation to tutorials. Mahesh Tutorials helps
students with Secondary Education & foundation courses for competitive exams. While brands Lakshya, MT Science, MT
Commerce, Mahesh PU College, Sri Gayatri Academy help students with higher secondary education and entrance exams.

Inthe areas of vocational and skilling, the offerings are towards getting students industry ready.

Zee Institute of Creative Art (ZICA), Zee Institute of Media Arts (ZIMA) and Zee Institute of Design Art (ZIDA) are premier
Animation, VFX and design Institute with more than 20 years of experience, whereas Zee Institute of Media Arts offers courses
in Film Making and TV Journalism helping students achieve success in the warld of media and films,

We also offer a Teacher Training Programme that help budding teachers to deliver preschool programmes successfully for
desired developmental outcomes.

In the Training and manpower area, our offering Liberium provides innovative and customized solutions to corporates thereby
helping them focus on core issues.

Annual Report 2020-21 | 09



‘_Ff OUR FLAGSHIP BRANDS - LEADING THE WAY

TEACHER TRANING
» _-_ ©

Q] = Preschool Teacher
DIG ITAL 1 ” b : % Training Programmie
! ~

Kidzee App
|| - Kidzee App tablet b
Robomate \ ; . : e :
- My R+ Book ‘ . A pioneer in ECCE (Early Childhood Care and Education), Kidzee is Asia’s [argest
L and mast reputed Preschool Network,
h et - e 2000+ preschoolks = THO+ cities
\ oy — — #
* 1 million+ happy kids = | Care - programme for prevention of child abuse
" ¢ Interactive ILLUME, the best research-based pedagogy for Early Childhood
vGCATI D N AL l' TRA I N I N G‘ & Leaming = Ower 1,000 women entrepreneurs empoweresgd
H . ZIMA ” MANPOWER « 15,000+ teachers trained
LI A
ZIDA - Liberium
s’

= I @ SKLLNG
HIGHER @ > O "

Latest offering from Zee Learn aimed at providing structured quality education
E D U C ATI G N ~ | - at an affordable cost
H =
Himgiri Zes S < l | l-l / The curriculum has been powered by Kidzee, being a pioneer in Earty Child
Ul'li'r'E‘rii‘l:.I I — ~— E Pt [ Careand Education
. . ‘@
I Y

\ Y. _ 7 TESTPREP/TUTORIAL

k = Lakshya Forum For Competition
H ? Mahesh Tutorials Commenca

ahesh Ti ials School Secti . : ; .
h " :: "ELI;;U:J:.LT:;E:_'?_ DR ARC 1O An International standard premium Preschoal, MLWPS, prepares kids to take theair
LY Mahesh Pu College Mﬂunt ]\ltE r'a first stepto explore the world.
[ Warld Pl"lﬂﬁ-i-hﬂﬂl »  multi-cultural experience «  Adopting learn-to-think philosophy
K-']Z - Mount Litera Zee School

= Ambientlearmingspaces  + | care for abuse free envirpnment
. f - Mount Litera School International =)

-$£---4@

PRE - K

Kidzee

Kidzee Day Care
A@-‘] = Ankurim

Moumnt Litera World Preschool
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India"s second largest chain of schools in private-unaided category, MLZS is one of
the fastest growing chains in India which provides quality school education with

value based leaming.

130+ schools * Spread across 110+ cities
Emerging Student Profile (ESP) *  Proprietary pedagogy of Litera Octave

Mount Litera School

INTERNATICHLAL

Situated at Bandra-Kurla Complex, MLSI is an International Baccalaureate (IB)
school, with a mission 0 provide the best of teaching and leaming by making the

students future-ready.

‘j@? HIGHER EDUCATION

Himgiri Zee University (HZU) was established to meet the growing demand for
trained human resources in vanous social, educational, scientific, technical
and professional organizations so as to channel human energy towards
sustainable economic and social development.

{HILU avails cartain sevvices from Zee Leamn)
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LAKSHYA FORUM FOR COMPETITIONS

¢ e * Higher Secondary Education = Class K| & Class Xll+Engineering Entrance
* JEE - Main = JEE - Advanced = State Level Entrance = Medical Entrance
* NEET
MAHESH TUTORIALS COMMERCE
MAHESH TUTORIALS  comMmERCE COURSES
":DH“EH:E. » Higher Secondary & Professional Education = Class X1 & Class X1

# Chartered coountancy * CA Foundation = Inter CA = Final CA

MAHESH TUTORIALS

MAHESH TUTORIALS SCHOOL SECTION
SCHOOL COURSES

* Secondary Education = Class VI, IX & X = National Boards = CBSE = ICSE
= Siate Boards - Maharashtra = Gujarat = Karnataka » Foundation Courses
for Competitive Exams

@ SRIGAYATRI

SR1 GAYATRI ACADEMY

* INTERMEDIATE COLLEGE COURSES * Science, Commerce = XI XlI
* CA Foundation » Engineering Entrance + Medical Entrance

MAHESH

PO COLLEGE
L)

EDUCATION AT ITS BEST

MAHESH PUCOLLEGE

Education at its best

* PRE-UNIVERSITY COURSES * Science = PU 1 & PU 2 = Engineering Entrance
* Medical Entrance
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[T / VOCATIONAL

Mation's first full-fledged Classical and Digital Animation Training Academy, Zee
Institute of Creative Art trains the youth in Industry ready courses on Animation,
Visual Effects, Graphic and Web Design in around 20 centres across the country
since more than 20 years.

ZWE inatitale ol Madia drim
wrwrwe, ZEmainstilybe.com

With more than a decade of experience, Zee Institute of Media Arts (ZIMA) has trained
individuals in the area of Film Making & TV Journalism with Professional development
Programmes on Acting. Direction, Editing, Sound, Cinematography and many more.

= Age-appropriate content

* EAsSy access anytime, amwherne

= mapped to the Kidree curriculum

+ recommended by Kidzee academicians
= reinforcement of classroom leaming

ZEE INSTITUTE
OF DESIGN ARTS
PRTiEiEE ) Flimids BAEEN

Zee Institute of Design Art is the latest offering from ZICA aimed at industry onented
courses in fashion and interior design

LEARNING
TABLET

Award winning learning content : 250+ of the world’s best video and games,
selected by educators.

Structured learning path : 250 skills covering all essential early learming
areas, structured as per age and level,

Completely safe technology : Kids play in a completely safe zone. Strong
parental controls including ime limits,

TEACHER TRAINING

+  Preschool Teacher Training Programme is an initiative to bridge the gap belween
preschools and qualified teachers.

= With over 250 signed up cenlers, the program is already the most sought after
course inthe Preschool teacher training space.

SKILLING

14 | Annual Report 202021

+  LWAoffers a combination of University + Vocational + Affiliated Education
= Skill development and Entrepreneurship training is a focus for the MT UVA team

Learning Made Simple

ROBOMATE + LEARNING MADE SIMPLE
= School Courses *  Science Courses
+  Commerce Courses +  Test Prep Courses

My (34 BOoOK

A Simple and Unkges Wiy te Learn Mathemathos

My R+ Book combines the text book, note book and study material - into one.
= o More Misplacing Vital Notes

= NoMore Forgetting Teacher's Explanation

= o More Referring to Different Study Material

TRANING AND MANPOWER

LIBERIUM

= Innovative workforce solutions for business requirements of
organizations.

= Recruit the right résources, brain them on the réquired skills as per the
client specific need and even place the associates on LIBERIUM rolls to
efficiently manage their staves.

Annual Report 2020-21 | 15
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WEHERE KD LOYE TO LEARN

Mount Litera
Fee School

.
anrurucy

ecrerietan by .

e A

H\r Book

Service contract beb

ZEE LEARN & HZU

LIBERIUM
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Warld Preschoo

Nour Lers. | e i |

TUTORIAL (8-18 YRS)
(COACHING FOR SCHOOL " u RS
CHILDREN)
TEST PREP. (14-24 YRS)
(TEST PREP. FOR CPLC ﬂshya “""55" Tummms
PROFESSIONAL COURSES) T Form bar Gomprisions
VOCATIONALB TO G
(16-24 YRS) MAHESH TUTORIALS ‘
ILE '| DIMG PLAYER 1M
VIDING VOCATIONAL TRAININ RN EDUCATION AT 75 BEST

THI LII l_;'-['-:' WT. ENTITIES)

VOCATIONALBTO C

(16-24 YRS) _ i
(LEADING PLAYER IN PROVIDING TYCh I ZIMA ‘ @ Or bEsion s

ZRR isitiimis o Made dre TRTImIG] FRREIGRGIEIEE

VOCATIONAL TRAINING IN MEDIA / , r
WWW.ZIMa.Co.in

JOURNALISM /ANIMATION /
GRAPHICS)

Annual Report 2020-21 | 17



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Consolidated Records (FY 17 - FY 21) (T in Lakhs)
Particulars FY 218 FY 20 % FY 19 # FY {88 FY 178 FY 17 to FY 21
Results
Todal Ravenue 3,344 TR 55:5}@-.13 54 925,10 27,254 .00 13.*?.55
Eamings before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) 430959 16.839.03 15,770.64 10,208.09 5,913.24
ProfitiLoss) before Tax & before exceptional lems (201.85) 8678.93 11,451.57 755563 3,240,097 Total Revenue (T in Cr) EBITDA (T in Cr) PET* (T in Cr)
 Profiv{Loss) before Tax & afler exceptional ilems (201.85) 556428 1145157 7.555.63 324097
Met ProfitiLoss) - (2.115.04) 251147 B,337.35 492791 335140
Financial i"ushiun - : :
Equity Share Capital 3.260.93 3.260.93 3,260.79 3,258.95 3.226.42
Reserves and Surplus 4316562 4381749 39,853.77 V08016 2602523 N |
 Nat Worth 4642655  ATOTBAZ 4311456 35391 2025165
Non-Currend Assats 1,27,003.94 1,36,324.69 1,26,602.20 85.745.13 65,047.96 : i : % : - i : - . 4 _ ] o N -
Stock Information : L < W~
Earmings Per Share (in ') (0.27) 134 213 152 1.04 [P — P — S N —— .
Margins ' ' ' FYi7 FY18  FY19 P2 Fvai FYi7  FYI8  FY19 FY20  FY2 Fr17 FY18  FY19  FY20  FY2i
EBITDA Margin 14% 30 2% 7% 2%
F".”"‘.E.’?‘:':E"'r*ﬁ‘.‘.'“.*.f'?"'." S 1% .. 6% i".‘“. . B ‘?.‘;”.’* :

# As per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS)
§ As per Indian GAAP EBIDTA Margin(%) Non-Current Assests Net Worth (T Cr)

(X Cr)
T

I - I I i - s 2 I} = .. It
FYi?  FY18  FY19  FY20 FYH FYIT FY18 FY19 FY20 FYH FYi?7 FY18 FY19 FY20 Fy2i

# As per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS)
S As per Indian GAAP
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State

ANDHRA FRADESH
ARUWACHAL PRADESH
ASSAM

BIHAR

CHHATTISGARH
DADRA AND NAGAR HAVELI (UT)
DAMAN AND DIU (UT)
DELHI

GOA

GUJARAT

HARYAMA

HIMACHAL PRADESH
JAMMU AND KASHMIR
JHARKHAND
KARNATAKA

KERALA

MADHYA PRADESH
MAHARASHTRA
MANIPUR

MEGHALAYA
MAGALAND

CDISHA
PUDUCHERRY / PONDICHERRY
PLMJAR

RAJASTHAN

SIKEIM

TAMIL NAD
TELANGAMA

TRIPURA

LUTTAR PRADESH
LUTTARAKHAND [ UTTARANCHAL
WEST BENGAL
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ZICA ‘ ZIMA
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AWARDS &
RECOGNITION

2

Wins the award for Dream Companies to
Work for in Education Sector at the
World HRD Congress 2021

y 4

=N

Selected as India's Most Admirable
Education Brand 2020 by The Brand
Story

2

Awarded as the “"Most Desired Brand
in Education™ under the Diversified
category, 2020

£

sl M

Recognised for its Diversity & Inclusion
Practice by ASSOCHAM at the
Diversity & Inclusion Awards 2020

y 4

=HN

Recognised as the Company of the
Year 2020 by The CEO Story
magazine in the COVID Special
edition

Z

Certified as Great Place to Work for
the period 2019-2020

4
Recognized as Dream Companies to
work for in Education sector 2020 by
World HRD Congress

Has been ranked amongst the top 100
franchise opportunities for the year 2021
in the Franchising World’s annual survey
of India's top franchises for 2019

Awarded for Innovation in Preschool
Pedagogy at the 17th World
Education Summit & Awards 2020

Awarded for Innovation in the
Curriculum in Early Childhood
Development at the 17th World
Education Summit & Awards 2020

Annual Report 2020-21 | 2

<)
»

3




. AR AN ei

— ZIMA CORPORATE INFORMATION

(As on August 135, 2021)

WA, ZIMAL G0N

. Won the Hatinn."il Early Child 2 Was recf:gnized f-u_nr its Emp_ln_:,rahilit]r BOARD OF DIRECTORS
playschool chain of the year award at Enhancing Vocational Training and ik i
the 10th Annual Indian Education Award Skill Development at the 18th World St RES (Rencat Sinon Mr. Roshal Lal Kanibo)
2020, Feb 2020 Education Summit 2021 (appointed w.ef. 07.08.2021) I 2=
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Ms. Nanette D'sa Mr. Karunn Kandol
Independent Director Independent Worman Director Independent Director
P ZEE INSTITUTE OF ABPCOMIREIN T e DOl
KIDZEE SN CREATIVE ART
AHIHATION | ¥FX | DESIGH AUDIT CGMMITTEE
Recognised as Leading Preschool Was recoanized for its Emplovabili Ms. Nanette D'sa Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
\;#::f Chain (National) at the 17th World \’2; Enhan -::ing I\f-::lcath::-ln al Tmr:i nii:1 ;:: Independent Woman Director Independent Director Independent Director
S Education Summit & Awards 2020 : g v Ehalrperson pstober S
ﬁ Skill Development at the 18th World
Education Summit 2021 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Ms. Nanette D'sa Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
Independent Woman Director Independent Director Independent Director
Mount Litera Chairperson Member Moember
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
- Zee School awarded National K12 Ms. Nanette D'sa Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
School Chain of the year at the Independent Woman Director Independent Director Independent Director
Education Innovation Awards 2020 Chairperson Member Member
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
Ms. Hanette D'sa Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar
Mount Litera Independent Woman Director Independent Director Independent Cirector
Lot Schio Chairperson Member Member

Has been ranked amongst the top 100 KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
franchise opportunities for the year g;ie ngm Z gmﬂﬁﬁmw
2021 in the Franchising World's annual (appointed w.ef. 14.06.2021) (appointed w.e.f. 29.06.2021)

survey of India's top franchises for 2019

STATUTORY AUDITORS
Ford Rhodes Parks & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants

BEANKERS

"'-"'131'_“-'5.[ _l-_.i._"-'j'*"* Yes Bank Limited | Axis Bank Limited | ICICI Bank Limited | Development Credit Bank Limited |
Rl Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited | State Bank of India

L . REGISTERED OFFICE / CORPORATE OFFICE REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
* Awarded for Innovation in Special Needs .

E ; Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Link Intime India Private Limited (C-101, 247 Park,
Education at the 17th World Education Worli, Mumbai - 400 OI8. L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083)

CONTACT US
Email ID: investor_relationsi@zeelearn.com | Website: www.zeelearn.com

=3 summit & Awards 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic Overview:

The gicbal economy is expected to expand 5.6% in 2021, the fastast post-
recession pace in 80 yvears, largely on strong rebounds from a few major
eoonomees. However, many emenging market and developing economies
continue to struggle with the COVID-19 pandamic and fs aftermath, the
Wodd Bank says inits June 2021 Global Economic Prospects.,

Despite the recovery, global output will be about 2% below pre-pandemic
projections by the end of this year. Per capita income logses will not be
urmwound by 20022 Tor about two-thirds of emenging marked and developing
BCONOMIes, Among low-income economses, where vacoination has lagged,
the effects of the pandemic have reversed poverty neduction gains and
agqravabed insecunity and other long-slanding challenges.

Among major economées, LS, growth is projected to reach 6.6% this year,
reflecting lange-scake fiscal support and the easing of pandemic restctions.
Growthin other advanced economies is also firming, but lo a lesser exdent.

Among emerging markels and developing economies, China is anticipated to
rebound o 8.5% this year, reflecting the release of pent-up dermand.

Emerging market and developing economies as a group are forecast fo
expand 5% this year, supported by higher demand and edevaled commaodity
prcas. However, the recoveny in many coumtnes 15 beang held back by a
resurgence of COVID-19 cases and lagging vaccinabion progress, as well as
the withdrawal of policy support in some instances. Excluding China, the
rebound in this group of countries is anticipated ko be amore modest 4.4%. The
recovery amang emerging market and developing economies is forecast o
moderate to 4.7% in 2022. Even s0. gains in this group of economies ane not
sufficient to recoup losses expenenced duning the 2020 recession, and output
in 2022 is expected o be 4.1% below pre-pandemic projections.

India’s real GDP 1o record a 11.0% growth in FY2021-22 and nominal
GDP togrosw by 15.4%.

WORLD ECONOMIC OUTLOOK UPDATE JULY 2021

GROWTH PROJECTIONS

GLOBAL ADVANCED
ECONOMIES

ECONOMY

6.0

2021 2022
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EMERGING MARKET &
DEVELOPING ECOMNOMIES

5.6 :6'3. 5.2

4.4

2021 2022 2022

indian Economic Review:

Growth in low-income economies this year is anbicipated o be the slowes! in
the past 20 years ofher than 2020, parly reflecting the very slow pace of
vaccanabon. Low-income economies ane Torecast o expand by Z.9% in 2021
before picking up to4.7% in 2022. The group’s culpul beved in 2022 is projected
lobe 4.5% lower than pre-pandemic projections.

India expected io have a Current Account Swplus of 2% of GDP in FY21,
a hislonchigh after 17 years.

¢ Indiaremained a preferred investment destina on in FY 2020-21 with FDI
pouring in amidst global asset shifts lowards equibies and prospects of
QUICKET FECOVENY in SmEnging economies.

v Veshaped recovery is underway, as demonstrated by a sustained
resurgence in high frequency indicators such as power demand, e-way
bills, GST collection, sleel consumption, ate.

*  India became the fastest country to roll-out 10 1akh vaccines in B days and
also emerged as a leading supplier of the vacoine o neighboning
countries and Braal,

India adopled a four-pillar stralegy of containment, fiscal, financial, and
long-lemm structural refonms.

+  India entered the top-50 inndwvating countries for the first Gme in 2020
sance the inception of the Global Innovation Index in 2007, ranking first in
Cantral and South Asia, and third amongst lower middle-income group
BCONOMias.

Preschool

Sector Review-Education:

India holds an important place in the global education industry. India has one of
the largest networks of higher education institubions i the workd, However,

there is still a kot of polential for further development in the education sysiem.
With ~26.31% of India’s population in the age group of 0-14 years, India's
education sector provides numerous opportunities for growth,

Covid 19 impact on Schools:

COVID-19 has had an unprecedented impact on school education. It has
affected a large number of children across states, class, caste, gender and
region. The shutting down of schools and the shifling of raditional dassrooms
to digital platforms whie has helped managing the disnuplion but at the same
bime as increased leaming ineguality given the digital divide in India.

Studies conducted by UNICEF, Odam India Global Schools Forum and ASER
Centre show thal students and schools have faced several challangas in
adapting to online education. The limited preparedness and infrastructure of
the systam and prolonged closure of schools due to Covid 19 has impacied the
operations of private schools.

Covid crealed an economic crises and parents have faced financial distress.
Despite the fact, parents have chosen lo continue privale education for their
children education looking at the quality of educalionimparied,

The preschool markel in Indiais poisad lo grow by USD T35.13 million during 2021-2025, progressing ata CAGR of almost 8% during the forecast period.

The Indan pre-schoolichildcane market reached a value of USS 3,480 Million in 2020 and as per the resaarch reports it is expecied to grow at a CAGR of around 12%

during 2021-2024.
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Pre-schools are an essential part of the education system since in the first
four to six years of age, children acquire the basic cognitive, physical, social
and emotional capabilites that prepane them Tor laler sucoess in school and
life. Pre-schools can operate bath publicly and privately and they have been
segmenied into full day-care and afier-schood care calegones.

The growth of the Indian pre-schoolichild care markel is driven primarily by
factors such as rising parent awareness for early childhood education and
cafe, coupled with rising number of nuclear families and working women in
the country. Moreover, factors ke increasing disposable income of parents
and raged wbanizabon has led fo a nse in brand consCiousness and
penelration of international preschools in the country, This has resulted in the
development of innovative and advanced infrastructures as well as quality
education programs for praschools across the country. Additionally, with
expansion in ier 2 and tier 3 cities and escalation of franchise numbers in
untapped areas, the number of preschoolichild care cenlres have
The pandemic crealed an unprecedented challenge for catering the
foundational leaming objectives. The disruption caused in the early years
leaming will pase bong lerm challenges for the students and the educators,
The beaming ecosyslems ane equipping themsehes to inlegrale the early
year students propery into formal school education. The government of
Indka has also lunched the Mational Eady Childhood Cane and Education
(ECCE) policy. promofing pre-schooling for children in low-income
housaholds of the country.

Policy Update:

Test Preparation

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has had a mixed impact on the test
preparation marke! in India. The imposition of lockdowns resulted in the
temporary closura of universites, schools, and other educational instifutions.

This created a sathack for vendors offering offfing test preparation facilities in
the country, However, the vendors providing online test preparation faclbies
gained sagnificant prominence. The demand for such services increased even
after lockdowns were lified in the country. The Indian test-prep markel has
maoved steadily from a conventional classnoom model to a more online-based
teaching model; wherein, a student could access the lectures from within the
safe environment of his‘her home,

K-12 Segment

K12 sagment continues bo be a significant part of the educational ecosysiem
and a kay dvver of growth. Strong secloral reforms and investments from tha
private players maintain the growth momentum. During the COVID India
wilnessed a strong growth in Edtech Market Size and it is expected that K-12
leaming solution will account for 41% of the total Edtech marked size by 2025.
The market size of K-12 leaming solutions is estimated to surge 3.7x between
2020 and 2025. 11.3 Mn could be the total number of paid users in the K-12
leaming solutions space by 2025, Skill development is one of the mas!
lucrative market opportunities in the K-12 space. With the enhanced leaming
teaching methodologies. the K12 sector is poised for conbinued growth.

Transformation in the education space continued to gather momenturm on the backdrop of NEP implementation and strong govemment focus on the Education

sector,

According to the Union Budget 2021-22, the Government has allocated Rs 54,873.66 crore (57.53 Bn) for school education and literacy programs. The
Government of India's targel of Gross Encolment Ratio (GER) of 50% by 2035 for higher education is expecied lo drive investments in the educabion space. The
Mew Education Policy (NEP) focuses on early childhood care and education. It proposes bo replace the 1042 structure with a 5+3+3+4 curricular structure for

ages 3-8,8-11, 11-14, and 14-18 years, respectively.

MEP offars multiple exit options and appropriate certification within the undergraduate education pesiod; while an Academic Bank of Credit will be estabiished for
digitally stoning academic cradits eamed from different insbitutes, sothat these can be transferred and counted iowards the final degres eamead.

Key highlights-
+ Competency Based Education & Assessment Reforms

The focus areas ane assessment, wiiling and understanding data to promole underslanding and appreciation of compelency bazsed education and
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a Policy Response

Private schools require urgent support on both learning and school finances

Provide tax rebate on device purchase for famies
with schaol-going children

Development of Teacher's Resources. The aim 5 10 create resources that
ae comculurn agned for essential concepls, lesson plans and quastion
banks that would support leachers io implement an active student cantric
pedagogy.

Central Teacher Eligibility Test{ CTET)

Framework focusing on competencies and assessment of both content
knowdedge and pedagogical content knowledge o enhance leaching
compelencies.

Structured Assessments for Analysing Learning | SAFAL)

SAFAL will focus on assessment of Core Competencies and the results
will provide diagnostic data and insights 10 each school for promoting
developrment of students. These Key stage assessments will be done at
Grade IIl, V and VIl levels, The assaessments wall 1858 achievement of
Foundational skills and basic leaming outcomes in kanguages,
EV&iSdence and Mathematics.

Accelerste implementation of the Mathonal
Education Policy. 20000 recommendations to
irnge ek quality in the private school secton

Include Private schools in school exarmenations

1 for grades 3.5 and 8 to create a universal
laaming indscator to halp parents comgans
Learming perfonmancs Soross schools and make
infoerned decisions

2 Durvtlop a pragmatic scoreditation
frarmensodk 10 B8 CPerating ernancnment
forr private schools whills focussing on
Leaming cutcormes and child safety

* Performance, Assessment, Review, and Analysis of Knowledge for

Halistic Development | PARAKH)

Astessments under PARAKH are expecled 1o be standardesed, scientific
and research based and with high levels of credibsity, reliabdity, and
validity. [Ewill provide lechnical frameworks and sel assessmend slandards.

Vecational and Skills

Mo Silos between Academic and Vocational Subjects and Introduction of
new subjecls

a)A Commitiee consisting of Educationists and Principals from the various
parts of the counlry has been constituted by CBSE to work on the
recommendations of MNEP regarding No Hard Separalion’ between
subjects and its implementation in schools. b) 11 Skall based maodules for
Grade VI-VIIl have been introduced. Data Science has been introduced for
the students of Grades VIILXIl. ¢) CBSE has released handbooks on
Artificzal Intelligence, Handicrafts, Financial Literacy and Coding.
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¢+ (Career Guidance and Counselling

CBSE has launched an online portal (chsecareerguidance.com)
Counselling for students of Grades IX-XIl in collaboration with UNICEF
and it's technical partner. The portal will offer information on careers,
college directories, courses, scholarships and competitive enfrance
exams.

+ Development of National Curriculum Pedagogical Framework for
ECCE by NCERT-NIPUN & FLN

The Ministry of Education, Govt. of India, has launched the National
Initiative for Proficiency in Reading with Understanding and Numeracy
(NIPUN Bharat), for ensuring that every child in the country necessarily
attains foundational literacy and numeracy by the end of Grade 3, by
2026-27. Massive Open Online Course (MOOC), FLN Toolkit and
Assessment Bank have been provided for teachers and various E-
Learning are integrated for easy and convenient learning among students.

¢ VidyaPravesh

CBSE has introduced guidelines for three-month play-based school
preparation module for Grade - students .The document, a 12 weeks
preparation module has been prepared as an interim measure until the
universal provisioning of quality ECCE is achieved to ensure that students
entering grade | are future ready.

The year 2020, undoubtedly is a year to remember. The pandemic has
changed the way we interact with the world. Returning to the pre-COVID
lifestyle seems distant. The pandemic has given all the industries an
opportunity to innovate and reengineer their processes to remain
competitive and fulfil the customer needs. Education sector pivots the
growth of the economy and the sector changes primarily driven by NEP
and digital transformation will provide long term value.

Government Initiatives

Some of the other major initiatives taken by the Government are:
In April 2021, India along with Bangladesh, Brazil, China, Egypt, Indonesia,

Mexico, Nigeria and Pakistan joined the United Nation's E9 initiative. E9
initiative is the first of a three-phased process to co-create an initiative on
digital learning and skills, targeting marginalised children and youth,
especially girls. The initiative aims to accelerate recovery and advance the
Sustainable Development Goal 4 agenda by driving rapid change in
education systems.

According to Union Budget 2021-22, the government allocated Rs.
54,873.66 crore (USS$ 7.53 billion) for Department of School Education and
Literacy, compared with Rs. 59,845 crore (US$ 8.56 billion) in Union Budget
2020-21.
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The government allocated an expenditure budget of Rs. 38,350.65 crore
(US$ 5.28 hillion) for higher education and Rs. 54,873 crore (US$ 7.56 billion)
for school education and literacy. The government also allocated Rs. 3,000
crore (US$ 413.12 million) under Rashtriya Uchchatar Shiksha Abhiyan
(RUSA).

Under the Union Budget 2021-22, the government has placed major
emphasis on strengthening the country's digital infrastructure for education
by setting up the National Digital Educational Architecture (NDEAR).

Road Ahead

The pandemic has been an eye-opener for education, as has the readiness of
schools to embrace blended learning models. Now with the promise of a new
vaccine on the horizon and hopes raised for a return to normality, we look o
the road ahead.

In July 2020, the Indian government launched the National Education Policy
(NEP) 2020 to replace the old education policy (National Policy on Education
(NPE), 1986) and meet the evolving needs of new-age leamning skills
including digital education. In July 2021, the new policy completed one year
and brought significant changes in the Indian education sector.

The government aims to implement NEP 2020 rapidly across states, laying
the foundation to establish education complexes, infroduce a wider range of
subjects in higher education institutions and implement flexible entry-exit
schemes in colleges and universities.The government is also planning fo
make India as a global study destination.

Further, with broad-based changes across the education sector, the NEP is
making significant progress at modernizing the country's educational
landscape and addressing the evolving needs of the youth, while making
them well-equipped with industry-based skills.

Also, the state government's increased emphasis to implement NEP, along
with rising participation of private players to offer online programmes in
colleges and universities, are expected to confribute to the effective
implementation NEP and create further learning opportunities for global
students.

ref: ibef.org

SWOT Analysis(Considering covid impact on Education industry)

ﬁ.'ﬂ‘

Strengths

1.Strong sectoral reforms in education

2.Digital Transformations driving Better teaching learning engagement
3.Surging rescaling and upscaling of demands

Weakness

1.Accessibility of resources.
2.Infrastructure and adequacies
3.Untrained teachers

Opportunity
1.Personalised education

2.Focus on new blended learning approaches alligned to 21st century

learning skills
3.Sustained investments in education sector
4 Building robust education eco system

Threats

1.Efficacy of digital/online leaming

2 Digital divide

3.Impact on Social and emotional wellbeing due to covid
4.Challenges inthe ECCE segment due to COVID.
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EDUCATION

Business Performance Review

PREK

Kidzee is a pioneer in Early Chidhood Care and Education. With mose than
2000 preschools in its network over 750 cities across Indsa and Nepal, Kidzee
has touched the nves of more than 1 Million happy children.

As per the KIDZEE franchise moded, The Kidzee Business Partner bears the
establishment costs and pays one-time franchise fees. They also pay royalty
per student under a revenue share agreement and child kit fes to the
content, Mume malenials, child kits and other support senvices ke Teacher
Training, Counselior Training, and Education Delvery. In FY 21, Kidree
welcomed 157 new valued Franchise Partners and had approximatety 1700
operational and active centers across India. Company offers Kidzee franchise
o local education enfreprencurs, especially women, (o run and manage
Kidzee preschools.

Kidzee's Interactive ILLUME Programs being age appropriate, integrate a
cohesive leaming pedagogy that is designed to help children discover their
unique potential and own indnidual leaming shyle, Al Kidzee, children are
faciltated o realise their unique abilities in a syslematic, synergetic, and saif-
paced manner and well supported to achéeve the desired keaming culcomes
in sync with high level sotial, emaotional, linguistic and other developmental
milestones. Kidzee is driven by ethos of “What's Right For the Child” (WRFC),
the human right of a child is pramium. The right o trust, the right o gain
respect and the right to live in an abusa free world is what shapes Kidzee's
fundamental cult and ethos,

During the pandemic Kidzee educatons delnverad a seamiess and engaging
leaming to the peeschool leamers. A DIY Leaming kit was offered that
envelops the alignment of dewslopmental and Academic components in a
formn of gamification with structured leaming oulcomes on the concept of
Leaming through Play. The Kidze leaming app also ensures that children are
free from the direct influence of intemet, its commercials and an exclusive
fiocus on the developmental domains.

Al Kidzes our educalors are coninuously upgrading our existing products
and programmes. Kidzea leaming kitincludes,

« IMAGENIE KIT: which is based on top class augmented reality technology
andis focussed on STEM development in children,

 Fun & Leam”. Experiential Leaming is a new age methodology which
stimulates inngvalionin children. Thesa thematic based products ane
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exclusively designed on activities & board games which are gradesd for all four
levels, These innovative boand games are designed concaptualizing the global
conceptof “Powerof Play”,

+KIDZEE APP: The Kidzes app supports the entine community of stakeholders
a Kidzee. The customer - Parent, The consurner -Child, The facilitator &
teacher, the Franchises, the intemal support mechanism of Academic delivery
assisted by Information and Technology. The delivery link in the pandemic
between the business and the customer. A repository of digitized academic
content and curmculum,

+ LITTLE ARTIST BOX : This helps children to keep themselves occupied
during vacations. The Activily box is designed keeping in mind skill
development in children such as Fine Motor & Coordination Skills, language &
speech skills, critical thinking and enhances their imagination and creative
skills.

Ki2

Mount Litera Zee Schools (MLEZS) is India’s leading school chain, It aims o
provide holistic and all rounded education o children that prepares them for
the core skills of the 215t cantury,

MLES curriculum covers Blended Leaming Desagn | Lesson Plans ) , Student
Leadership Programs , Digital Citizenship Program, Financial Literacy
Program, Technology enabled Classrooms that focus on childrén 1o become
confident Global Citizens. Students are groomed upon vanous soft skills of
problem solving, creativity, growth mindset and analyfical thinking in order 1o
face the challenges that are beyond the circumberanca of the textbooks and
school by engaging them in activities interwoven in the daily teaching leaming
PIOCESS.

Educators and school leaders at MLZS undengo ragular planned training that
would keep them abreast with the latest pedagogical advancements in the
education industry 50 as o fotus on impactful pesitive curriculum transactions
in thia classrooms and create MLZS as a 21st cenltury leaming space. Taking
this ahead in alignment with the tech enabled platform, MLZS introduced an
onling Teacher Training Program which has trained 2000+ educalors and
leader educalors as per a well-defined need analysis framework packaged
with modules of subject specific, child protection, pedagogical Jeadership and
inclusive aducation.

€ Leaming platform and App that has been a source of inleractive videos,
vaned quizzes, workshesls, assessments 50 thal students and educalons
discover vanous methods of learning and teaching.

With an objective of reinforcing the values of respect, integrity, honesty,
patriotism along with the regular dassroom teaching and leaming practices,
our students are reguiarly sensitized through Sanskaar, a bouquel of acthities
that bring in the awareness of sinong values among the Mount Literans and
they obwiously enjoy the paradigm credits of Sanskaar, In the continuity of
legacy of Sanskaar at MLZS, an Essay wriling compelition was announced on
Gandhi Jayanti with topics that invoked the essanca of patriotism among the
Mount Literans from all over India, the winneérs and participants wera
presented with a token of appreciation 1o encourage the fervor of patriotism.

The company partners with local educational Trust from acress the country
who share the company’s passion in furthering the cause of effactive and
highly quality and inclusive education, 1o all. The company provides hand
holding 10 s partners in various areas of school management be it
infrastructure planning & development, staff recruitment & training, sales &
marketing. affiliation & statutory compliances. The range of senvices and
solutions peovided by the company 1o its partners also includes Student
Leaming Resources, Blended Leaming Cumiculum, Teaching Matenals and
Assessments

In FY 20 the Comparry parnened with B new Educational Trust to set up MLZS
in vanous parts of the country and made 2 more Mount Litera Zee Schools
operational taking the lotal count o 130 +,

HIGHER EDUCATION - HZU

In Higher education, we have a sanice agreement with the leading UGC
approved stale pevale universsty in Dehradun called the Himgin Zee
University (HZU). HZU is built on a S0-acre prastine campus and has a 7
thriving schools of Enginering & Sciences; Management & Law; Agnculture &
Forestry; Education & Social work; Mass communication, Joumalism and Film
Making; Clinical Research & Pharmaceutical Sciences and Vocational
shudees,

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

Zoa Leam offers industry ready programs theough its Vocational Education
brands namely Zee Institute of Creative Art (ZICA), Zee Institute of Media Arts
(ZIMA) and Zee Institute of Design Art (ZIDA)

Zee Institute of Creative Ant (ZICA) is India's first full-ledged Classical and
Digital Animation Training Academy thal offers vocational programs in
Animation, Visual Effects, Gaming. Graphics and Web Design,

Zee Institute of Media Arts (ZIMA), a Film Making & Media training institule,
offers professional cowrses in Film Making, Direction, Acting, Screenwriting,
Production, Cinematography, Sound Recording, Editing, TV Joumalism,
Woicing & TV Presentation and other related fields for a successful career,
Zee Institute of Design Art (ZIDA) offers vocational career programs in
Fashion Design and Infenior Design and creating design professionals.

MANPOWER TRAINING

Libariem, a part of Zea Leam Limiled, helps organisations with Human
Resource Managemend, skiling and iraining. The company thal has come up
with innovative workfonce solutions that eflectively connects people potential
io business requirements of organizations.

Increasingly businesses need the skilled manpower and flexibility to create
effective workforce solutions. Liberium partners with vanous organizations. io
lemporary of seasonal assignments, confracl engagements, or permanent
placement, payroll processing, training and other HR senvice oulsourcing
soiution o meet the needs of business. Liberium was recognised for Rs
efficient services at the Human Resource Viendors Awards 2020,

Duning the pandemic Liberium collaborated with all its clients and contingent
staff to ensure sarvice continuity while maintaining productivity and wellbeing
of its associates.

TESTPREP/TUTORIALS

For over two decades, Mahesh Tulorals has been mentoring students for
success in academics and in life. The company helps students with
Secondary Educaton & fondation courses for compelitive axams. Mahash
Tutorials with its multi-state presence has been offering technology-enabled
business processas, digital content delivery and 24 x 7 online support for the
cowrses offered. The courses designed helps aspirants with Technology
Aided Teaching techniques, result-oriented methodologies and a
personalized guidance approach io bring out the best in them and achieve
outstanding results.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW-CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Durireg FY21, the Company signed 162 new Kidzee Pre Schoaols and 6
Mount Litera Zee K12 Schools, expanding its network to more than 800
cities in India. The Company strengthened its leadership positionin the
school segment with over 2000 Kidzee Pre-Schools and 130+ Mount
Litera Zee K12 Schools. Through network of pre-school centres, K-12
schools andYouth centres, the Company is serving 230,000+ students,

During the year, company achieved total income of ¥ 31,345 Lakhs
against ¥ 55,638 Lakhsof FY 20,

Expenditure

Total expenditure decreased to T 31,547 Lakhs in FY21 against 2 46,959
Lakhzin FY20.

Dperational Expenses

Operational expenses decreased to ¥ 5,725 Lakhs of FY 21 over ¥ 13,754
Lakhzin FY20.

Employee Benefit Expenses

Employee benefits expenses decreased to ¥ 10,355 Lakhs inFY 21 ower 2
14,138 Lakhs in FY200n account of reductionin top management staff,

Other Expenditure

Other expenditure decreased by 21 per cent to ¥ 5,323 Lakhs in FY 21
against ¥ 6,752 Lakhs in FY20 largely on account of reduction in
Marketing, advertisement and publicity expenses, travelling and
conveyance expenses and legal and professional expenses.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased to T 5,149 Lakhs in FY21 over T 5,905 Lakhs in
FY20 onaccount of IND AS adjustment of Lease accounting.

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses decreased to 3 4,995 Lakhsin
FY21 over % 6,411 Lakhs in FY20 on account of IND AS adjustment of
Lease accounting.

EBIDTA
The EBIDTAachievedat? 4,310 Lakhsin FY21 against ¥ 16,839 Lakhsin

Fy20.
EEIDTA % to Operating Revenue achieved at 17 percentin Fy 21.
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SOURCEOF FUNDS
Share Capital

The equity share capital remains same at 2 3,260.93 lakhs as on 31
March 2021 against 21 March 2020.

Other Equity

Other equity saw an decrease of T 652 Lakhs from 2 43,817 Lakhs ason
31 March 2020 to 2 43,166 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021, largely on
account of Net Profits/{Loss) earned during the year.

Mon-Current Liabilities

Mon-Current labalities saw an decrease of ¥ 6,287 Lakhs from T 54,178
Ason 31 March 2020007 47 891 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021.

Non=Current Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities saw an decrease of ¥ 4,154 Lakhs from ¥ 35,252
Lakhs as on 31 March 2020 to ¥ 31,098 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021
majorly onaccount INDA AS adjustrent of Lease liabilities.

MNan=Current Other Liabilities

Other Liabilities saw decrease of ¥ 2,132 Lakhs from 2 18,925 Lakhs as
on 31 March 2020 to T 16,793 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021 largely on
account of discounting of security deposit received at present value as
per IND AS adjustments,

Current Liabilities

Current liabilities saw an increase of T 3,010 Lakhs from ¥ 34,763 Lakhs
ason 3 March 2020 ta ¥ 37.774Lakhs ason 31 March 2021 on accolnt
of IND AS adjustments of Lease labilities.

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Mon-Current Assets

MNon-Current Assets saw a net decrease of 2 9,456 Lakhs from 2 136,325
Lakhs as on 31 March 2020 to ¥ 126,869 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021 on
account of IND AS asset adjustments of Right of Use asset and

regrouping of loans,
Current Assets

Current assets saw anincrease of ¥ 4,307 Lakhs from ¥ 15,925 Lakhs as
on 31 March 2020 to T 20,232 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021 largely on
account regrouping of loans.

STANDALONERESULTS

Income

The Company's total income achieved at 7 12,032 Lakhs in FY21 over 3
21,831 Lakhs of FY 20.

Total Expenditure

Total expenditure decreased by 23 per cent to T 9,748 Lakhs in FY21
over ¥ 12,715 Lakhs of FY 20 largely on account of operational cost and
other expenses,

Operational Expenses

Operational Expenses decreased by 46 per cent to 2 1,821 Lakhsin FY21
over ¥ 3,365 Lakhs in FY 20 commensurating to decrease in sales.

Employee Benefit Expenses

Employee benefits expenses decreased by 19 per cent to ¥ 2,484 Lakhs
in FY21 against ¥ 3,059 Lakhs of FY20 on account of reduction of top
management staff,

Other Expenditure

Other expenditure decreased by 30 per cent to T 2,086 Lakhs in FY21
against T 2,967 Lakhs of FY20 largely on account of reduction of freight
cost, repairs & maintenance cost, travelling cost and marketing &
advertising cost.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by 5 per cent to ¥ 2,586 Lakhs in FY21 over 3
2,452 Lakhs in FY20 on account of IND AS adjustment of Lease
accounting.

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses decreased by 12 percent to 3
772 Lakhs in FY21 over ¥ B72 Lakhs in FY20 on account of IND AS
adjustment of Lease accounting.

EBIDTA

EBIDTA achievedat ™ 2,640 Lakhsin FY21 over " 10,046 lakhsin FY 20.
EBIDTA % to operating revenue achieved at 29 percent inFY 21,

Profit Before/After Tax

The profit before tax achieved at ¥ 2,284 Lakhs in FY21 over T 9,115
Lakhs of FY.20.

PAT % to operating revenue achieved at 18 per centin FY1,

SOURCEOFFUNDS
Share Capital

The equity share capital remains same at ¥ 326093 lakhs a5 on 31
March 2021 against 31 March 2020,

Other Equity

Other equity saw an increase of 2 1,867 Lakhs from 2 44,492 Lakhs as
on 31 March 2020 to T 46,359 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021 largely on
account of Net Profits earned during the year,

Mon-Current Liabilities

Mon-Current Babilities saw & decrease of ¥ 1,819 Lakhs from ¥ 20,842

Lakhsason 31 March 2020t ¥ 19,023 Lakhs ason 31 March 2021,
Mo = Current Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities saw an decrease of ¥ 839 Lakhsfrom 2 13,734 Lakhs
ason 31 March 2020t ¥ 12,895 Lakhs ason 31 March 2021 on account
of IND AS adjustment.

Man - Current Other Liabilities

Other Liabilities saw a decrease of T 930 Lakhs frem ¥ 7,108 Lakhs as on
31 March 2020t0? 6,128 Lakhs ason 31 March 2021 largely on account
of discounting of security deposit received at present value as per IND
A% adjustments.

Current Liabilities

Current habilities saw an increase of T 882 Lakbs from T 15,933 Lakhs as
an 31 March 2020107 16,815 Lakhsasan 31 March 2021 on account of
increasein current maturities of debt repayment.

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Man-Current Assets

MNon-Current Assets saw a net increase of 2 1,741 lakhs from 2 70,036
Lakhs as on 31 March 2020te ¥ 71,777 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021 on
accountincrease inloans,

Current Assets

Current assets saw a decrease of T 813 Lakhs from T 14,493 Lakhs as on
31 Mlarch 2020 to ¥ 13,680 Lakhs as on 31 March 2021 on account of
inventory utilization.

Internal Controls
The company has in place adequate internal control systems,

commensurate withits size and nature of operations so astoensure
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smoothness of operations and compliance with applicable
legislation. The company has a well-defined system of
management reporting and periodic review of business te ensure
timely decision-making. Internal audit is conducted by
professionally qualified financial personnel, which conducts
periodic audits/review to maintain a proper system of checks and
controd, The management information system (MI5S) forms an
integral part of the company’s control mechanism, All operating
parameters are monitored and controlled, Any material change in
the business outlook is reported to the Board. Matenial deviations
from the annual planning and budgeting, if any, are reported to the
board on quarterly basis,

HUMAN RESOURCE

The HR strategy of Zee Learn Limited is aligned with the owverall
strategy of the company., Zee Learn hires the best fit talent to meet
the current and future requirements of the business. We continue to

Key Ratios

Ratios where there has been significant changes from FY20 to
Fy21

Debtors Turnowver Ratio 3.25 8.63
Inventory Turnover 4.04 892
Interest Coverage 0.13) 1.77
Current Ratio 50.12% 41.34%
Debt Equity Ratio 62.96% 58.33%
Operating Profit Margin 16.76% 32.71%

For the purpose of calculation, Average Debtors (Average of
opening and closing) and Average Inventory (Average of Opening
and Closing) has been considered. onsidered.

improve gur talent acquisition processes to effectively support our
business strategy. Zee Learn has built a progressive people
environment which fosters a culture of meritocracy with an
emphasis on caring for employees. The high calibre talents are
identified, developed and rewarded to make them committed and
capable of achieving Zee Learn’s business goals.

At Zee Learn the emplovee engagement efforts are inclusive and
empowernng. We believe that an informed workforce s an
empowered warkforce. To enable employees, contribute effectively
to organization growth, we have in place various channels that
create awareness, foster dialogue, and provide opportunities for
themto give feedback.

Zee Learn in the previous year FY 19-20was recognised as the Great
Place to work and has been consistently recognised as the Dream
Company to Wark For by Warld HRD Congress establishing itself as
an Employer of the Choiceinthe industry.

Ratios where there has been significant changes from FY-20 to
FY-21

Standalone Ratio i

| Frao Fr1e
Debtors Turnowver Ratio 535 9.52
Inventory Turnowver 1.28 218
Interest Coverage 072 3.74
Current Ratio E0.49% £9.93%
Debt Equity Ratio 39.29% 37.37%
Operating Profit Margin 29.24% 21.68%
*Net Profit Margin 18.36% 35.30%

For the purpose of calculation, Average Debtors [(Average of
opening and closing) and Average Inventory (Average of
Opening and Closing) has been considered.

*Net Profit consist Net Profit After Tax

The changes has beendiscussed in detailed in financial analysis
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Business Outlook

The Company continues to maintain a strong position in preschool
and K-12 business in the FY21. The resilient performance owes to
operational capabilities, world class service deliverables, strong
franchise network, resource optimization and rich product portfolio.
The Company’s focus remains on improving business performance
while driving synergies across its platforms,

The Company through its varied forays including Early Childhood Care
and Education (ECCE), K-12 School Education, Youth and Vocational
education, Test Prep and tuition courses is playing a pivotal role in
India’s education system. The new initiatives started by the companyin
last financial year are being well received by the children, parents,
franchisee partners and all other stakeholders and the Company is
confident that it will continue to grow its business and is committed to
create long-term value for its students, parents, franchisees and
shareholder.

As the Indian education industry goes through a churn driven by
digital disruption, the Company is happy 1o report that parents are
responding positiviely towards the tech of the network. The Company's

investments in research and innovation, deep domain and contextual
knowledge, intellectual property and recognitions from relevant
industry bodies are key influencers to the uninterrupted growth,

The fallout of COVID-19 has been very challenging for the education
sector and the rapid transition from classroom to the virtual space was
not easy, however, the Company has been successful in meeting the
pedagegical and cognitive needs of the students from the safety of
their homes, by delivenng and executing the blended learning
resources and digital content curated by its seasoned academic
professionals. During the pandemic the company continued to
engage with its stakeholders through various digital tools and
engagements. The company is committed to provide support and best
services 1o our business partners during this testing times and is
grateful for the confidence and support that the partners have placed
onit.

The Company remain highly focused on cash flows and liquidity
management and is confident that its broad portfolio of products /
services with its ability to execute its commitrments will help to
navigate through the current economic uncertainties,
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Directors’ Report

To,
The Members,
Zee Learn Limited

Management Report

The Board of Directors of the Company have great pleasure in presenting the 11th Directors’ Report of the Company together with Audited Financial Results for
the year ended March 31, 2021. This report states compliance as per the requirements of the Companies’ Act, 2013 (“the Act’), the secretarial standards, the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and other rules and

regulations as applicable to the Company.

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuantto Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act'), with respect to Directors Responsibility Statement it is hereby confirmed:

a) The Financial Statements of the Company - comprising of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on
that date, have been prepared on a going concern basis following applicable accounting standards and that no material departures have been made from

the same;

b)  Accounting policies selected were applied consistently and the judgments and estimates related to these financial statements have been made on a
prudentand reasonable basis, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and, of the profits and loss of the

Company for the year ended on that date;

c)  Properand sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities;

d)  Requisite internal financial controls to be followed by the Company were laid down and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating

effectively; and

e)  Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating

effectively.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlight of the financial performance of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 is summarized as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Standalone

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Consolidated

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Revenue from Operations 9,031.07 19,437.24 25,712.25 51,482.78
Other Income 3,000.55 2,393.32 5,632.53 4,155.40
Total Income 12,031.62 21,830.56 31,344.78 55,638.18
Total Expenses 6,390.73 9,391.17 21,402.56 34,643.74
Operating Profit/Loss 5,640.89 12,439.39 9,942.22 20,994.44
Less: Finance Cost 2,585.70 2,451.91 5,149.12 5,904.91
Less: Depreciation 771.62 872.08 4,994.95 6,410.60
Profit/Loss before Tax 2,283.57 9,115.40 (201.85) 8,678.93
Less : Exceptional items - - - 3,114.65
Profit/Loss before Tax 2,283.57 9,115.40 (201.85) 5,564.28
Provision for Taxation (Net) 625.07 2,253.48 1,913.19 3,052.81
Profit/Loss after Tax 1,658.50 6,861.92 (2,115.04) 2,511.47
Less : Appropriations

Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve 203.13 203.13
Interim/ Final Equity Dividend 326.09 326.09
Tax on Interim / Final Equity Dividend - 67.03 - 67.03
Balance Carried To Balance Sheet 1,658.50 6,265.67 (2,115.04) 1,915.22

38 | Annual Report 2020 -21

Z s

GROUP

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

With the motto of building the nation through education, your Company is
constantly contributing in the field of education across age groups, all the
while maintaining its core values of integrity, ownership, leadership, trust and
continuous learning. We believe that every child has a unique and infinite
potential and we are committed to help children realise their capabilities.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
ON STANDALONE BASIS

During the year under review, the Company has earned a Total Income of Rs.
12,031.62 Lakhs as against Rs. 21,830.56 Lakhs in the previous financial year.

The Company has recorded an Operating Profit (EBITDA) of Rs. 5,640.89
Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021 as compared to Rs. 12,439.39
Lakhs in the previous financial year.

The Profit After Tax (PAT) for the financial year 2020-21 stood at Rs. 1,658.50
Lakhs as compared to Rs. 6,861.92 Lakhs in the previous financial year.

ON CONSOLIDATED BASIS

During the year under review, the Company has earned a Total Income of Rs.
31,344.78 Lakhs as against Rs. 55,638.18 Lakhs in the previous financial year.

The Company has recorded an Operating Profit (EBITDA) of Rs. 9,942.22
Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021 as compared to Rs. 20,994.44
Lakhsin the previous financial year.

The Profit / (Loss) After Tax (PAT) for the financial year 2020-21 stood at (Rs.
2,115.04 Lakhs) as compared to Rs. 2,511.47 Lakhs in the previous financial
year.

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of Company as on March 31, 2021 was Rs.
1,00,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Hundred Crore) divided into 1000000000 shares of
Rs. 1/-each.

ISSUED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31,2021 was Rs. 32,60,92,725
I- (Rupees Thirty-Two Crore Sixty Lakhs Ninety-Two Thousand Seven
Hundred Twenty Five Only) divided into 326092725 shares of Rs. 1/- each.

During the year under review the Company has not issued any shares or
convertible securities with differential voting rights nor has granted any sweat
equity shares or warrants. As on March 31, 2021, none of the Directors of the
Company hold instruments convertible into equity shares of the Company.
During the year the Company has not allotted any shares under Employee
Stock Option Scheme.

Management Report

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

The Company had allotted 650 (Six Hundred Fifty) Rated, Unlisted,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“Debentures” Or “NCDs”) of the
Face Value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) each, for cash,
aggregating upto Rs. 65,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five Crores Only) in terms
of the Information Memorandum circulated on Private Placement basis. The
terms of the Debentures have been revised dated July 14, 2020. As per the
revised terms 400, 10.02% (revised coupon rates) NCD of Rs. 6.85 lakhs
(revised face value) will be redeemable by July 13, 2022 in 6 installments
starting from January 13, 2021. The debentures are secured by first pari
passu charge on all the fixed and current assets, all the rights, titles and
interests to provide security cover of 1.1 times on outstanding amount and
DSRAUndertaking by a related party.

GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS

During the Financial year 2013-14, Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) offer
of the Company for 56,17,977 GDRs opened for subscription at an issue price
of US$ 3.56 per GDR representing 5,61,79,770 fully paid Equity Shares of Re.
1/- each of the Company (each GDR representing 10 Equity Shares). Upon
subscription of the GDR, the Company Issued and allotted 5,61,79,770 fully
paid Equity Shares of Rs. 19.50 per share underlying Global Depository
Receipts (‘GDRs") on May 21,2013.5,61,79,770 Global Depository Receipts
have been listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange since May 24, 2013. As
atMarch 31,2021, no GDRs have remained outstanding as all the GDRs have
been converted into the underlying equity shares w.e.f. January 15, 2018
which forms part of the existing paid up share capital of the Company.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has implemented an ESOP scheme called ZLL ESOP 2010 —
AMENDED 2015 Scheme in accordance with the SEBI (Share Based
Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014 for grant of stock options to the
eligible employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, inter alia,
administers and monitors the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the
Company.

The applicable disclosures under Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share Based
Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014, relating to the Scheme are posted in
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.

During the year under review, 150,000 Stock Options were granted on April
24, 2020. These options when vested as per the terms and conditions of the
Scheme would entitle the option holder to apply for and be allotted equal
number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 1/- each at an exercise price of
Rs. 14.10 per share respectively being the closing market price of the equity
shares of the Company on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited as on
April 23, 2020. Since the options have been granted at the market price, the
intrinsic value at grantis Nil and hence there is no charge to the Profitand Loss
account. These options will vest in a phased manner over a period of 3 years
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beginning 2021, and may be exercised within a maximum of four years from
the date of vesting, subject to terms and conditions of the Scheme and the
grant letter. The Directors believe that this Scheme will help create long term
value for shareholders and operate as long term incentive to attract and retain
senior managerial talent.

SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE/JOINT VENTURES
WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has three Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries as on March 31, 2021,
which are as follows:

+  Digital Ventures Private Limited
+  Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
+  Academia Edificio Private Limited

SUBSIDIARIES

As on March 31, 2021 MT Educare Limited is the Subsidiary of Zee Learn
Limited.

STEP DOWN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s Subsidiary MT Educare Limited has Seven Subsidiaries in
view of which the Company has Seven Step-Down Subsidiaries as on March
31,2021 which are as follows:

¢ MTEducation Services Private Limited

+  LakshyaForrum For Competitions Private Limited
«  Chitale’s Personalised Learning Private Limited

+  SriGayatri Educational Services Private Limited

*  Robomate Edu Tech Private Limited

*  Letspaper Technologies Private Limited

+  LabhVentures India Private Limited

During the year, the Board of Directors have reviewed the affairs of the
subsidiaries. In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,
we have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company,
which form part of this Annual Report.

Further, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements
of our subsidiaries in the prescribed format AOC-1 is appended as “Annexure
A’ to the Board’s report. The statement also provides details of the
performance and financial position of the subsidiary.

In accordance with third proviso of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company, containing therein
its standalone and the consolidated financial statements has been placed on
the website of the Company i.e (www.zeelearn.com). The Company does not
have joint venture or associate companies within the meaning of Section 2(6)
of the CompaniesAct, 2013.
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MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES:

The Board has adopted a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries in
accordance with the requirements of Regulation 16(1) (c) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Policy, as
approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company’s website
(www.zeelearn.com). In terms of the criteria laid down in the Policy and as per
the definition of material subsidiary provided in Regulation 16(1)(c) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and the Company’s Consolidated Financial Results for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021, following Subsidiaries are identified as Material
Subsidiaries:

+  Digital Ventures Private Limited
¢+ MTEducare Limited
+  Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve financial resources in an environment of heightened
uncertainty caused by COVID-19 Pandemic, the Board of Directors of the
Company have resolved to retain the financial resources and have not
proposed any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021. The Company has
notgiven any interim dividend during the financial year under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the
financial year.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited or accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 and 74 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), from public during the year
under review.

DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The Board of Director of the Company consists of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors so as to ensure proper governance and management.
The Board of the Company comprises of One (1) Executive Director, One (1)
Non-Executive Director and Four (4) Non-Executive Independent Directors,
including One (1) Women Director as on March 31, 2021.

APPOINTMENT

Mr. Surender Singh was appointed on the Board of the Company in the
category of Non-Executive Director with effect from July 31, 2020

Mr. Vikash Kar was appointed on the Board of the Company under the

Category of Executive Director; Whole-time Director of the Company with ect
from August 19, 2020.

Mr. Karunn Kandoi was appointed on the Board of the Company as Additional
Director in the category of Non-Executive Independent Director with effect
from March 3,2021.

RESIGNATION

Mr. Ajey Kumar; Managing Director of the Company resigned with effect from
August 18,2020.

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker’s term expired with effect from January 14,2021.
CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO MARCH 31,2021

Mr. Vikash Kar; Whole-Time Director of the Company resigned with effect
from June 14,2021.

Mr. Ritesh Handa was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the
Company with effect from August 7, 2021.

The Board of Directors has placed on record their warm appreciation for the
rich contribution made by the resigning Directors and the guidance provided
by them during their tenure as Directors of the Company.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY

The Company consisted of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
as on March 31, 2021. There were changes in the Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company during the financial year. The details of which are constituted
below:

APPOINTMENT

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from April 7, 2020.

Mr. Vikash Kar was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from April 24, 2020 and as a Whole-time Director with effect from
August 19,2020.

Mr. Prashant Parekh was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from July 31, 2020.

RESIGNATION

Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay; Chief Executive Officer of the Company
resigned from his position of Key Managerial Personnel with effect from April
23,2020.

Mr. Bhautesh Shah; Company Secretary of the Company resigned from his
position with effect from May 12, 2020.

Mr. Prashant Parekh; Company Secretary resigned from the Company with
effect from January 29, 2021.
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CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO MARCH 31, 2021

Mr. Vikash Kar; Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director of the
Company resigned with effect from June 14, 2021.

Mr. Ritesh Handa was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from June 14, 2021.

Mr. Anil Gupta was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with
effect from June 29, 2021.

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal; Chief Financial Officer of the Company resigned with
effectfrom July 1,2021.

Mr. Surender Singh; Non-Executive Director of the Company shall be liable to
retire by rotation at the 11th Annual General Meeting of the Company. He
being eligible offers himself for reappointment subject to the approval of the
Members at the Annual General Meeting and the said proposal forms part of
the Notice of the meeting.

Mr. Karun Kandoi is appointed on the Board of the Company on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
approval of the Board, as an Additional Director pursuant to Section 161 of the
Act and therefore he shall hold office till the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
He is proposed to be appointed on the Board of the Company as a Director
under the category of Non-Executive Independent Director subject to the
approval of the Members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. The
Company has received the proposal of appointment of Mr. Karunn Kandoi on
the Board by the Member in compliance with Section 160 of the Companies
Act 2013. The proposal for the approval of the Members forms part of the
Notice and Agenda of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Mr. Ritesh Handa is appointed on the Board of the Company on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
approval of the Board, as an Additional Director pursuant to Section 161 of the
Act and therefore he shall hold office till the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
He is proposed to be appointed on the Board of the Company as a Director
under the category of Executive Director subject to the approval of the
Members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. The Company has
received the proposal of appointment of Mr. Ritesh Handa on the Board by the
Member in compliance with Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013. The
proposal for the approval of the Members forms part of the Notice and Agenda
of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The information as required to be disclosed under the Listing Regulations in
case of appointment/re-appointment of the Director, if any, is provided in
Report on Corporate Governance annexed to this report and in the Notice of
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The disclosure in pursuance of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulations pertaining to the remuneration, incentives etc. to the
Directors is given in the Corporate Governance Report.
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ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing
Regulations, in a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of
Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and
performance of the Chairman was evaluated. Based on such report of the
meeting of Independent Directors and taking into account the views of
Directors the Board had evaluated its performance on various parameters
such as Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes,
effectiveness of flow of information, contributions from each Directors, etc.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 9 (nine) times during the financial year 2020-21. The details of
the meeting are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms
partofthis report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations, your Board had constituted various Committees including Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
Details of the constitution of these Committees, which are in accordance with
regulatory requirements, have been uploaded on the website of the Company
viz. www.zeelearn.com. Details of scope, constitution, terms of reference,
number of meetings held during the year under review along with attendance
of Committee Members therein form part of the Corporate Governance Report
annexed to this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In compliance with requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR Committee). The CSR Committee as on March 31, 2021 comprised of
Ms. Nanette D’sa; Chairperson, Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent
Director, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director as Members.

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating
and recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the
implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the
amount to be spenton CSR activities.

CSR at Zee Learn is all about creating sustainable programs that actively
contribute to and support the social and economic development of the society.
In line with this intent, your Company has adopted a unified approach towards
CSR at Essel Group level, wherein CSR contributions of eligible Essel group
entities are pooled in, to fund high cost long-term projects that help build
Human capital and create lasting impact on the society. The brief outline of the
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year under
review are setoutin “Annexure B” of this report.
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| Care Seminars for creating awareness about prevention of child abuse
The identity of Kidzee is—WRFC - Whatis Right For Child.

Safety and Security of every child is uncompromising and addressed as a
Zero Tolerance component:

The wellbeing of every child is driven strongly through an environment that is
constructive, progressive, developmental; crowned with reliable secure
mechanism.

The |-Care program at Kidzee ensures that every stakeholder associated with
the child is certified to execute responsibilities promoting a 360 degree secure
mechanism through the POCSO and POSH workshops.

The Personal Safety Education module for children enables the Kidzee child
to be independent, by discerning safe and unsafe situations and skillfully
responding to them in an appropriate manner.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITOR

As per provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), Ford
Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
102860W/W100089) have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company at the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Company for a period of
five years till the conclusion of the AGM to be held for the financial year 2024-
25, with the approval of the Members in the Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

During the year, the Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the
independence criteria required under Companies Act, 2013 and Code of
Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The report given by Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants on
the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2021 forms the part of the Annual Report. The Auditors have issued a modified
opinion in its report on the financial statements of the Company and the
management’s reply on the same is annexed to this Reportin “Annexure C”.

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any
matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be
disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.

COSTAUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, amended rules, 2014, the cost accounts
maintained by the Company in respect of its education services, other than
such similar services falling under philanthropy or as part of social spend
which do not form part of any business are audited by the Cost Auditors in
compliance to the provisions as applicable to the Company.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors
of the Company had appointed M/s Vaibhav P Joshi & Associates, Cost

Accountants (Firm Registration No 101329) for conduct of audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, a resolution seeking Member's
approval for remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor forms part of the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting.

SECRETARIALAUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have appointed Ms. Mita Sanghavi,
Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2020-21. The report issued by the Secretarial
Auditor is annexed as “Annexure D-I” and forms part of the Board’s Report.
Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015 the Secretarial Audit Report of the material subsidiaries
of the Company namely Digital Ventures Private Limited and Liberium Global
Resources Private Limited is annexed to this report. The Company has
received their written consent that the appointment is in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed there under.

The auditors have placed a qualifications in their Report and the
management’s reply on the same forms part of this report.

During the year under review, the Secretarial Auditors had not reported any
matter under Section 143(12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be
disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the Act.

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

In compliance with the Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations and the SEBI
circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 8, 2019, the Company has
undertaken an audit for the financial year 2020-21 for all applicable
compliances as per SEBI Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued
thereunder. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report duly issued by Ms.
Mita Sanghavi, Practicing Company Secretary has been submitted to the
Stock Exchanges within the prescribed timelines.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report contains qualifications and the
management’s reply on the same forms part of this report.

EXPLANATION TO THE QUALIFICATION IN SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT "

Qualification:

1. Non-filing of E-form MGT 14 in connection with Board resolution
approving appointment of Key Managerial Personnel(s) in the category
of Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer and E-form MR-1in
connection with Board resolution approving appointment of Whole-time
Director & CEO. There have been certain delays in filing e-forms under
the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Management Report

2. The Company had outstanding unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) amount as at March 31, 2021 and in compliance with the
requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules
thereunder, as amended, the Company shall be required to transfer such
amount remaining unspent to any of the funds specified under Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules thereunder on or before
September 30, 2021.

3. AsatMarch 31, 2021, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) was nominated as
Compliance Officer, instead of Company Secretary. Vacancy in the office
of Company Secretary due to resignation w.e.f January 29, 2021, was
filled by the Board within prescribed timelines on June 29, 2021.

4. While Company had 6 Directors as at March 31, 2021, as mandated
under SEBI Listing Regulation, the Board strength during the period from
January 15, 2021 to March 2, 2021 was five (5). Vacancy in the office of
Director was filled within prescribed time.

5. Delay in filing of disclosure of information relating to end of term of an
Independent Director w.e.f. January 14, 2021.

6. Delayinapproval / submission of Audited financial results for the quarter
and year ended 31.03.2020, Unaudited financial results for the quarter
ended 30.06.2020 and quarter and half-year ended 30.09.2020. Fine
levied by the Stock Exchanges for the said violation was paid by the
Company.

7. During the Audit period, Designated Persons as per Company’s Insider
Trading Code had dealt in Equity Shares of the Company during trading
window closure period. The Company failed to report such deviation(s)
along with action(s), if any, taken, to the Stock Exchanges as required
under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Managements Reply:

1. While DIR 12 relating to appointment of Key Managerial Personnel along
with Board resolution(s) were filed, filing of MGT-14 in connection with
Board resolutions of such appointment was an unintentional error;

2. Explanation in connection unspent CSR is included in the Annual report
on CSR annexed to the Directors report;

3. Vacancy in the office of the Company Secretary was filled within
prescribed timelines and non-compliance of Listing regulation in the
interim was setright;

4. Vacancy in the office of the Director was filled within prescribed timelines
and non-compliance of Listing regulation in the interim was set right;

5. While information of changes in Director is material, delay in intimation of
the term of an independent director was unintentional.

6. Therewere delaysin submission of financial statements under Listing
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regulations, due to delay in finalization of financial statements by a listed
subsidiary due to Covid19 pandemic and fines levied by the Stock
Exchanges for said violation was paid by the Company;

7. During FY 20-21, the trading window closure period was longer due to
delay in approval of financial statements. Failure in reporting of dealings
in Company's shares by certain designated persons during the trading
window closure period was due to the restriction in movement of
personnel during the lockdown situation as per the COVID-19 guidelines
issued by the Central Government. However, considering prices of
Company’s stock, quantum of shares dealt with and non-availability of
UPSI with such designated persons, there was no material effect of such
deviation considering the basic principles/intent of the code.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Based on the provisions of SEBI LODR the Company comes under top 2000
companies as per market capitalization hence the provision of providing
business responsibility statement does not apply to the Company, however
the voluntary reporting by the Board forms part of this report.

In terms of Regulations 34 of the Listing Regulations, Business Responsibility
Report for FY 2020-21 detailing various initiative taken by the Company on
the environmental, social and governance front in prescribed format forms
partas a separate section of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company adheres to the requirements set out by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India’s Regulations in respect to Corporate Governance
practices and have implemented all the stipulations prescribed. The Company
has implemented several good corporate governance practices. The Corporate
Governance Report, which forms an integral part of this Report, is set out as a
separate section in this Annual Report, together with the Certificate from the
Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the requirements
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations.

DISCLOSURES
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments made by the Company
required to be disclosed in the Annual Accounts of the Company are
contained in Note No. 40 to the Standalone Financial Statements which forms
part of this Annual Report.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section
188(1) of the Act. The Company has not entered into any material
transactions with its related parties and hence disclosure pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) of the Act, read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, in FormAQOC-2 is notrequired.
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RISKMANAGEMENT

The Company’s approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive and
includes periodic review of such risks and a framework for mitigating controls
and reporting mechanism of such risks.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal Financial Controls includes policies and procedures adopted by the
Company for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of
reliable financial information.

The Company has in place a proper and adequate Internal Financial Control
System with reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls
were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation
was observed.

The Company has in place a proper and adequate Internal Financial Control
System with reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls
were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation
was observed.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 of the Act read with the applicable Rules, the Annual
Returnfor the year ended March 31, 2021 can be accessed on the Company’s
website at www.zeelearn.com.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and
has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder. During the year under review no complaints on
sexual harassment were received.

VIGILMECHANISMAND WHISTLE BLOWERPOLICY

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy to report genuine
concerns, grievances, frauds and mismanagements, if any. The Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy has been posted on the website of the
Company atwww.zeelearn.com.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

No significant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations
in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL
POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIALYEARAND THE

DATE OF THEREPORT

Yes Bank has invoked the Corporate Guarantee issued by the Company and
its Subsidiary i.e Digital Ventures Private Limited (DVPL) upon defaults in
repayment of credit facilities availed by various trusts and call upon the
Company and DVPL to make payment of an amount of Rs. 44,962.56 lakhs
(including interest and other charges upto July 31, 2021). The Company along
with other trust is taking necessary steps including restructuring of these credit
facilities and the Company is of the opinion that an amicable resolution will be

achieved atthe earliest.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Management Report

The Company is engaged in the providing Education Support Services and
providing training to entire spectrum of the society from toddler to teens
through its multiple products. Since these services do not involve any
manufacturing activity, most of the information required to be provided under
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. However, the
information as applicable are given hereunder:

Conservation of Energy:

(i)  Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

(i) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

(iiiy - Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s

The Company being a service provider requires minimal energy consumption
and every endeavor has been made to ensure optimal use of energy and
avoid wastages and conserve energy as far as possible.

Technology Absorption:

(i)  The efforts made towards technology absorption

(i)  The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution

(iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

a. The details of technology imported

b.  The year of import

c.  Whether the technology been fully absorbed

d. Ifnot fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken
place, and the reasons thereof

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

Inits endeavor to deliver the best to its users and business partners, Company
has been constantly active in harnessing and tapping the latest and best
technology in the industry.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGAND OUTGO

During the year under review, there were no Foreign Exchange Earnings and the particulars of Foreign Exchange Outgo is given in Note no. 50 of
the Notes to Accounts forming part of the Annual Accounts.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Requisite disclosures in terms of the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 along with statement showing names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess
of the limits prescribed under the said rules is annexed to this report in “Annexure E”.

DISCLOSURE FOR SPECIFIED TRANSACTIONS

The Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these items during

the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and except ESOP referred to in this
Report.

3. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company received any remuneration or commission from any of its
subsidiaries.

AFFIRAMTION OF COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors of the Company have affirmed to the compliance of Secretarial Standards as issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ
materially from those either expressed or implied. Important factors that could affect the company’s operations include significant political and / or
economic environmentin India, tax laws, litigations, interest and other costs.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Board takes this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment of employees shown at all levels,
Franchisees and Business Partners that have contributed to the success of the Company. The Directors also express their gratitude for the
valuable support and co-operation received from the Central and State Governments including Ministry of Human Resource Development and
other stakeholders including Bankers, Financial Institutions, Investors, Service Providers as well as regulatory and government authorities.

For and on behalf of the Board

RITESHHANDA NANETTED’SA
Director & CEO Director

DIN: 02725365 DIN: 05261531
Place: Mumbai

Date: August 13,2021
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ANNEXURE A
AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features of
the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Sr. No. Particulars Details (Rs. In Lakhs)

1 Name of the subsidiary Digital Ventures Liberium Resources ~ Academia Edificio MT Educare Limited

Private Limited Private Limited Private Limited (Consolidated)

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Reporting period Reporting period Reporting period Reporting period
different from the holding Company’s reporting same as Holding same as Holding same as Holding same as Holding
period Company Company Company Company

3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the  Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
last date of the relevant Financial Year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries

4 Share capital 501.00 0.10 0.10 7,222.81
5 Reserves and Surplus 31,893.61 787.25 (10.72) 7,073.10
6 Total Assets 78,412.02 2,096.17 0.97 37,729.91
7 Total Liabilities 46,017.41 1,308.82 11.59 23,434.00
(Excluding Share Capital and Reserves & Surplus)
8 Investments 0 0 0 0.35
9 Turnover (Revenue from Operations) 3,252.03 6,474.51 0 7,517.81
10 Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (190.41) 141.00 (7.74) (1,789.64)
11 Provision for taxation 0 54.93 0 1,233.21
12 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (190.41) 86.07 (7.74) (3,022.85)

13 Proposed Dividend - - -

14 %of Shareholding 100 100 100 59.12

Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Not Applicable
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures — Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board

RITESH HANDA NANETTE D’SA ANIL GUPTA RAKESH AGARWAL
Director & CEO Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 02725365 DIN: 05261531
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ANNEXURE B (b)  Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
CSR ANNEXURE 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1
1. Briefoutiine on CSR Policy of the Company. Sr. Name of  Item from Localarea  Location of  Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
The Board of Directors of Zee Learn Limited, after taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, has approved the CSR Policy of the No. the Project the_||§ t Of. (Yes/No). the project.  duration. aIIocatgd forspentinthe transferred Implgmental Implementat
Company.As perthe CSR policy, Education, Health Care, Women Empowerment, Sports are the focus areas for CSR engagement activities in the project  current to Unspent on Direct  on -
: ’ ’ ’ ' : Schedule (inRs.). financial CSR (Yes/No)  Through
- . VIl to the Year (in Rs.). Account for Implementin
2. Composition of CSR Committee Act the project gAgency
as per
L Number of meetings of CSR Committee Section
. Designation / 135(6)
Sr.No. Name of Director Nature of Directorship held during attended during (inRs.)
the year the year
State| District Name [CSR
1. Ms. Nanette D’sa Chairperson/ Independent Director 1 1 Regis
2. Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Member/ Independent Director 1 1 tratiob
3. Mr. Roshan lal Kamboj Member/ Independent Director 1 1 Z:Jm
3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: - - - - -
v Zeelearn.com (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
4. Thedetails of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried outin pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014: NotApplicable 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
; ; ; Mode of Mode of impl tation -
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Sr. Nameof  ltemfromthelist ~ Local area Location of the project. Amount spent imo I:n?entati on- Tr?roi oh mp Ieémzr;t?nmn
amount required for set off for the financial year: No. the Project of activities in (Yes/ No). for the project P gh imp 9
schedule Vil to (inRs.). Direct (Yes/No)  agency.
the Act
SEN FY Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set- off for Stat District
r.No- from preceding financial years (in Rs) the financial year, if any (in Rs) ate istric Name | CSR
Registrationumber
6.  Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 81,57,47,381/- (d)  AmountspentinAdministrative Overheads: Nil
7. (a) Twopercentofaverage netprofitof the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1,63,14,948/- (e) Amountspenton ImpactAs§essment: Nil .
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil () Totalamountspentforthe Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil
(c)  Amountrequired to be set off for the financial year: Nil (g)  Excessamountfor setoff. Ni
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): Rs. 1,63,14,948/-
8. (a) CSRamountspentorunspentforthe financial year 2020-21: ol adiicien AT 0 55
Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent (in Rs.) = 1,63,14,948/- (i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
for the Financial (ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
Year. (in Rs.) Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fun_d speciﬁeq under (i) Excess amount spentfor the financial year (ii)-(i)]
SELILES (27 RREE 1) Sl e parsseand peie b seaien 19719 (iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, ifany
(v) Amountavailable for set offin succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer.
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9.

(@) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years

Sr.No.  Preceding

Amount remaining to be spent
in succeeding financial years.

Amount transferredto  Amount spent inthe
Financial Year.  UnspentCSR Account  reporting Financial

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VIl as per

under section 135 (6)  Year (in Rs.). section 135(6), if any. (inRs.)
(inRs.)
Name of Amount Date of
the Fund (inRs). transfer.
1. 18-19 - 55,36,930 * - - -
2. 19-20 - - - - - 1,63,14,948
3. 20-21 - - - - - 1,08,84,647
TOTAL - - - - - 2,71,99,595
*  The Company has spent Rs. 55,36,930/- during the FY 20-21.
(b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

St.No. Project ID Name of Financial Year Project Total amount  Amount spenton  Cumulative amount ~ Status of the
the Project in which the duration.  allocated for  the projectinthe  spentatthe end of ~ project
project was the project reporting Financial  reporting Financial ~ Completed
commenced. (inRs.). Year (in Rs). Year. (in Rs.) /Ongoing.

10.

QO

Py

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year
(asset-wise detalils).

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Nil

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset s registered, their address etc: Nil
Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): Nil

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

The Company is engaged in Education Support Services, due to the nation-wide lockdown on spread of COVID-19 and subsequently many significant
restrictions imposed by government on the general movement and operation of the Education Support Systems, the education sector has suffered a drastic
impactleading to a directimpact on the Company.

During the COVID -19 period, the Company has been facing an extreme situation of inadequate cash flows and the result of which the Company was only
able to spend CSR expenditure for the year 2018-19 and not been able to spend the CSR Expenditure for further years in any projects, nor the Company has
been able to transfer the amount pertaining to unspent CSR amount in compliance with sub section (5) or (6) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
However, the Company is continuously monitoring current indicators of future economic conditions and expects full recoverability of its projected cash flow
which will have sufficient liquidity to pay CSR expenditure in near future.

NANETTED’SA
Chairman CSR Committee

RITESHHANDA
Director & CEO
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ANNEXURE C

MANAGEMENT’S REPLY ON QUALIFICATION MADE BY THE AUDITORS

The Directors wish to state that the Statutory Auditors of the Company has given modified opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
yearended March 31, 2021. The qualification in the Standalone Financial Statement and managementresponse to the aforesaid qualification is given as under:-

Auditors’ Qualification

Management'’s Reply

a)

The Company has non-current investment in its subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited
(MTEL) with a carrying value at cost of Rs 27,812.22 Lakhs. MTEL on a consolidated basis has a
positive net worth as at March 31, 2021. Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid19 pandemic
situation further prolonged by continuous lockdowns and restrictions in movements imposed at
regular intervals by State and Central Governments and the uncertainty connected to it, the
Company has not been able to carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment of the asset in
accordance with the principles of Indian Accounting standard — 36 “Impairment of Assets” and
hence no adjustments have been considered by the Company to the carrying value of this non-
current investment as at March 31, 2021. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence by way of such detailed and comprehensive assessment due to the current COVID-19
pandemic situation, we are unable to comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to
the carrying value of this non-currentinvestment on the standalone financial statements.

Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid19
pandemic situation further prolonged by
continuous lockdowns and restrictions in
movements imposed at regular intervals by
State and Central Government and the
uncertainty connected to it, the Company has
not been able to carry out a detailed and
comprehensive assessment of the asset in
accordance with the principles of Indian
Accounting standard - 36 “Impairment of
Assets” and hence no adjustments have been
considered by the Company to the carrying
value of this non-currentinvestment as at March
31,2021.
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Further, the Auditors of the Company in their Report have also given certain qualification on Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2021. The qualified opinion of the Statutory Auditors and management reply thereto is as under:-

Auditors’ Qualification

Management’s Reply

a)

The consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2021 include goodwill having carrying value
of Rs 31,323.64 lakhs on acquisition of its subsidiary company viz MT Educare Ltd (MTEL). Due to
the prevailing unprecedented Covid19 pandemic situation further prolonged by continuous
lockdowns and restrictions in movements imposed at regular intervals by State and Central
Governments and the uncertainty connected to it, the Group has not been able to carry out a detailed
and comprehensive assessment of the asset in accordance with the principles of Indian Accounting
standard — 36 “Impairment of Assets” and hence no adjustments have been taken by the Group to
the carrying value of goodwill as at March 31, 2021. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate
evidence by way of such detailed and comprehensive assessment due to the current Covid19
pandemic situation, we are unable to comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the
carrying value of goodwill.

Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid19
pandemic situation further prolonged by
continuous lockdowns and restrictions in
movements imposed at regular intervals by State
and Central Governments and the uncertainty
connected to it, the Company has not been able to
carry out a detailed and comprehensive
assessment of the asset in accordance with the
principles of Indian Accounting standard - 36
“Impairment of Assets” and hence no adjustments
have been taken by the Company to the carrying
value of goodwill as at March 31, 2021.

b)

In one of the subsidiary company viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited the
consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary reported that the subsidiary has recognized net
deferred tax assets of Rs. 6,981..87 lakhs based on the estimate that sufficient taxable profits would
be available in future years against which deferred tax asset can be utilized. In the opinion of the
other auditor, due to uncertainties arising out of the outbreak of COVID -19 and the existence of
unutilized tax losses available, it is highly uncertain that the MTEL and its subsidiaries would achieve
sufficient taxable profits in future against which deferred tax asset can be utilized. Accordingly, the
other auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to corroborate the
Management's assessment of recognition of deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2021. Had the
deferred tax asset not been recognized, the net loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 would have
been higher by Rs. 6,981.87 lakhs.

The subsidiary company viz. MT Educare Limited
(MTEL) is confident about generating sufficient
profitability over the next 5 years and management
is of the view that the MTEL will generate sufficient
taxable profits against which deferred tax asset
can be utilized.

c)

The subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited (MTEL) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
MT Group) did not obtain/ receive balance confirmation from the most of the customers /creditors
and other parties including certain advances other than related parties for the balances as on March
31,2021 due to Covid-19 disruption. Hence, the reconciliation could not be carried out for the year
ended March 31, 2021.

The subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited
(MTEL) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
MT Group) had sent necessary request for balance
confirmations to most vendors/Parties (Except
Government Department/Ministries). The MT
Group could not get the necessary balance
confirmations due to disruptions caused by Covid-
19.The MT Group is confident about the
confirmations & reconciliations of the balances
with the third Parties.

d)

The subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited (MTEL) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
MT Group) has loans and other receivables of Rs 4,904.26 lakhs (net of provisions on consolidated
basis) outstanding as at March 31, 2021 from other parties having operations in the education sector,
which are overdue. The management s of the opinion that COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent
lockdowns have disrupted the operations of parties in education sector and  such outstanding’s
have arisen primarily due to lockdowns and therefore the management considers the same as good
and recoverable.

Covid-19 Pandemic & ensuing lockdowns
imposed by central/state governments impacted
the operations of third parties, however the the
subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited
(MTEL) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
MT Group) is confident that simultaneously with
recovery from Covid 19, the balances shall be
adequately recovered.
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ANNEXURE -D -1
FORM NO MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Zee Learn Limited

CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405

I have conducted secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Zee Learn
Limited (hereinafter called ‘the company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company, the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarification given to me and the representations made by the Management
and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of
the COVID19 pandemic, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021,
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records made available to me and maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on March 31,2021 according to the provisions of:

| The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA) and the rules
made thereunder;

iii. -~ The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, if any in the
Company;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 — Not applicable during
the Audit Period

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 — Not applicable during the Audit Period

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies
Actand dealing with client;

h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 - Not applicable during the Audit Period

vi.  The following laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the
Company belongs, as identified, and compliance whereof as confirmed, by
the management:

a. Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952

Employee State Insurance Act, 1948

Employees Liability Act, 1938

Equal RemunerationAct, 1976

Maternity Benefits Act, 1961

Minimum WagesAct, 1948

Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

Payment of Gratuity Act 1972

Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Laws

The Bombay Shop Establishments Act, 1948

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
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| have also examined compliance with the applicable requirements of the
following:

a.  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India with respect to board and general meetings.
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b.  TheListingAgreements entered by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the Audit period under review, based on the said verifications and as per representations and clarifications provided by the management, | confirm that the
Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned hereinabove, subject to following
observations:

1. Non-filing of E-form MGT 14 in connection with Board resolution approving appointment of Key Managerial Personnel(s) in the category of Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Executive Officer and E-form MR-1 in connection with Board resolution approving appointment of Whole-time Director & CEQ. There have
been delays in filing few e-forms under the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The Company had outstanding unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at March 31, 2021 and in compliance with the requirements of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules thereunder, as amended the Company shall be required to transfer such amount remaining unspent
to any of the funds specified under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules thereunder on or before September 30, 2021.

3. During the Audit period the Company had not complied with the following requirements of SEBI Listing Regulation.

Sr. No Regulation No. Deviations

As at March 31, 2021, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) was nominated as Compliance Officer, instead of Company Secretary.
6(1) Vacancy in the office of Company Secretary due to resignation w.e.f January 29, 2021, was filled by the Board within prescribed
timelines on June 29, 2021.

While Company had 6 Directors as at March 31, 2021, as mandated under SEBI Listing Regulation, the Board strength during

I 17(1)c) the period from January 15,2021 to March 2, 2021 was five (5). Vacancy in the office of Director was filled within prescribed time

I 30 Delay in filing of disclosure of information relating to end of term of an Independent Director w.e.f. January 14,2021
Delay in approval / submission of Audited financial results for the quarter and year ended 31.03.2020, Unaudited financial results
v 33 for the quarter ended 30.06.2020 and quarter and half-year ended 30.09.2020. Fine levied by the Stock Exchanges for the said

violation was paid by the Company

4. During the Audit period, Designated Persons as per Company’s Insider Trading Code had dealt in Equity Shares of the Company during trading window
closure period. The Company failed to report such deviation(s) along with action(s), if any, taken, to the Stock Exchanges as required under SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

| further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the
same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

| further report that as confirmed by Company Management, the Company is under no obligation to comply with the provisions of Right to Education Act 2005 and
the said provisions are required to be complied by franchisees as per the franchise agreement(s).

| further report that:

As at March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in composition of Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.
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Except for meeting(s) convened and held at shorter notice, adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting. As represented by the Management and recorded in the Minutes the decision at the Board
Meetings were taken unanimously.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc.

| further report that during the Audit Period, the following material events had occurred which had bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations and guidelines:

- Special resolution was passed by Shareholders at the 10th Annual General Meeting approving re-pricing of 82,70,157 outstanding Stock Options to
Rs. 14.10 per option.

- M/s. Ford Rhodes Parks & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, was appointed as Statutory Auditor for five (5) consecutive years in place of retiring
auditors.

- Outstanding Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of the Company due for redemption on July 8, 2020, which were subsequently acquired by Zee
Entertainment Enterprises Limited from UTI AMC Limited. Post such acquisition the terms of such NCDs relating to maturity date, redemption terms,
nominal value, ratings etc were revised by the Board based on agreements with the NCD holder.

Limitations

Due to Covid 19 and lock-down situation, | could not visit Company’s corporate office for audit purposes and therefore original Minutes books, Statutory register
and other documents could not be verified physically. While all possible steps were taken to review and verify the records as made available to us by the Company
through electronic medium and requisite confirmations were taken from the Company, wherever required, the audit was done subject to limitation of verification of
original documents/registers.

MITASANGHAVI

Practicing Company Secretary

FCSNo.7205/CP No. 6364

UDIN: F007205C000777843

Date : 13thAugust, 2021
Place : Mumbai

This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure Aand forms an integral part of this report
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ANNEXURE A

The Members,
Zee Learn Limited
CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405

My Secretarial Audit report for financial year ended on March 31,2021, of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on audit.

| have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification, including verification of electronic record, was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe thatthe processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. Further the compliance of applicable
financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the
Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

iv. Whereverrequired, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

v. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

vi. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

MITASANGHAVI

Practicing Company Secretary
FCSNo.7205/CP No. 6364
UDIN: F007205C000777843

Date : 13thAugust, 2021
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE -D - I

FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, | have relied on the representation made by the Company, its officers and
The Members, Reports of the Statutory Auditor for systems and mechanism framed by the

DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No-U72900MH2006PTC165215

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Digital
Ventures Private Limited (hereinafter called the Company), a Material
Subsidiary of Listed entity Zee Learn Limited, in compliance with the
requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the
explanations and clarification given to me and the representations made by
the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs warranted due to the spread of the COVID19 pandemic, |
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31,2021, generally complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance-mechanismiin place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

1. The CompaniesAct, 2013 and the rules made there under

2. Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company
belongs, as identified and compliance whereof as confirmed by the
management, thatis to say:
. Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
. Employees Liability Act, 1938
. EqualRemunerationAct, 1976
. Maternity Benefits Act, 1961
. Minimum WagesAct, 1948
Payment of BonusAct, 1965

. Paymentof Gratuity Act 1972

. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Laws
The Bombay Shop EstablishmentsAct, 1948
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
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Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations
applicable to the Company as listed in point 2.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

During the Audit period under review, based on the said verifications and as
per representations and clarifications provided by the management, | confirm
that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned hereinabove.

| further report that

- the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. Adequate
notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and Secretarial
Standard, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation atthe meeting.

- there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

+  The Company being a Subsidiary of Public Company is required to have
a minimum of 3 Directors. However due to resignation of one of the
Directors w.e.f. January 21, 2021, the Company had only 2 Directors as
atMarch 31, 2021. Resultant vacancy in the office of Director was filled
with appointment of another Director with effect from July 21,2021.

| further report that during the Audit Period, the Company had no specific
major event

MITASANGHAVI

Practicing Company Secretary
FCSNo.7205

CPNo. 6364

UDIN: F007205C000778052
Date: 12th August, 2021

Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure Aandforms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE A

The Members,
DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No-U72900MH2006PTC165215

My Secretarial Audit report for financial year ended on March 31,2021, of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on audit.

I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification, including verification of electronic record, was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. Further the compliance of
applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to
review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

iv. Whereverrequired, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
v. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.
vi. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
MITASANGHAVI
Practicing Company Secretary
FCSNo.7205
CPNo. 6364

UDIN: F007205C000778052

Date : 13thAugust, 2021
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE -D - Il
FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, Equal RemunerationAct, 1976
The Members,

LIBERIUM GLOBAL RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74999MH2017PTC293021

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited (hereinafter called the company),
a Material Subsidiary of M/s. Zee Learn Limited, a Listed entity, as per the
requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in amanner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and
sent to me for verification electronically and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarification given to me and
the representations made by the Management and considering the
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs warranted due to the
spread of the COVID19 pandemic, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2021, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

1. The CompaniesAct, 2013 and the rules made there under

2. Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company
belongs, as identified and compliance whereof as confirmed by the
management, thatis to say:

a. Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952

b.  Employees Liability Act, 1938

Maternity Benefits Act, 1961

Minimum WagesAct, 1948

Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

Payment of Gratuity Act 1972

Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Laws
The Bombay Shop EstablishmentsAct, 1948

j. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
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| have relied on the representation made by the Company, its officers and
Reports of the Statutory Auditor for systems and mechanism framed by the
Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations
applicable to the Company as listed in point 2.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards 1 &2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the Audit period under review, based on the said verifications and as
per representations and clarifications provided by the management, | confirm
that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned hereinabove, subject to the
following observations:

(I The Company was incorporated as Subsidiary of a Public Limited
Company with only two (2) Members and continues to have two (2)
Members as on date, though the Company is deemed to be a Public
Company as per Section 2(71) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i) E-form MGT-14 in connection with Board resolution for approval of
Audited Financial Statements and Directors Report for the Financial
Year 2019-20 required to be filed as per Section 179 of the Companies
Act, 2013 was notfiled.

| further report that

The Board of Directors is duly constituted. Except for meetings held at
short notice, adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance in compliance with the applicable
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provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standard, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

The Company being a Subsidiary of Public Company is required to have
a minimum of three Directors. However due to resignation of one of the
Director w.e.f. March 30, 2021, the Company had only two Directors as
atMarch 31, 2021. Resultant vacancy in the office of Director was filled
with appointment of another Director with effect from July 22, 2021.

| further report that during the Audit Period, the Company had no specific
major event.
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Limitations

Due to Covid 19 and lock-down situation, | could not visit Company’s
office for audit purposes and therefore original Minutes books and other
documents could not be verified physically. While all possible steps
were taken to review and verify the records as made available to us by
the Company through electronic medium and requisite confirmations
were taken from the Company, wherever required, the audit was done
subject to limitation of verification of original documents/registers.

MITASANGHAVI

Practicing Company Secretary
FCSNo.7205

CPNo.6364

UDIN: F007205C000777953

Date : 13thAugust, 2021

Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure Aand forms anintegral part of this report.

Z Management Report

To,

ANNEXURE A

The Members,
LIBERIUM GLOBAL RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U74999MH2017PTC293021

My Secretarial Audit report for financial year ended on March 31,2021, of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on audit.

| have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification, including verification of electronic record, was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. Further the compliance of applicable
financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the
Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

iv. ~ Whereverrequired, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

v.  The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

vi.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

MITASANGHAVI

Practicing Company Secretary

FCSNo.7205

CPNo. 6364

UDIN: F007205C000777953

Date : 13thAugust, 2021
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE E

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES
{Pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

A.  Remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) along with particulars of increase in remuneration during the financial year, ratio of
remuneration of Directors to the median remuneration of employees and comparison of remuneration of each KMP against Company’s standalone
performance:

Ratio of Director's
remuneration to
median remuneration

Name of Director/ Key Remuneration % increase in §
Managerial Personnel Total (3 In Lakhs) Remuneration

Non- Executive Directors

Mr. Surender Singh * 0.66 NA 0.1:1
*Independent Director

Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj* 1.00 NA 0.2:1
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar * 1.00 NA 0.2:1
Ms. Nanette D'sa* 1.00 NA 0.2:1
~Ms. NanditaAgarwal Parkar * 0.75 NA 0.1:1
& Mr. Karunn Kandoi* 0.08 NA 0:1
Managing Director

Mr.Ajey Kumar* 64.05 NA NA
Executive Director

Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar ** 48.19 NA NA
Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay # 26.14 NA NA
Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar ** 48.18 NA NA
Mr. Rakesh Agarwal ## 28.98 NA NA
Mr. Bhautesh Shah @ 2.51 NA NA
Mr. Prashant Parekh @@ 5.78 NA NA
Note:

$ The % increase in remuneration refers to the % increase in remuneration from FY 2019-20. The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors excludes Sitting
Fees. Non-Executive Directors Remuneration represents Commission for FY 2020-21 and % increase is compared with Commission for FY 2019-20 (annualised,
if for a part of the year). % increase in Remuneration is not applicable for Managing Director, Executive Director and KMP who were appointed/resigned during the
financial years 20-21 and 19-20.

A Commission paid to Directors in 2020-21 was lesser then commission paid in 2019-2020 in view of business performance on the backdrop of pandemic.
~Mr. NanditaAgarwal Parkar term ended on Jan 14, 2021

&Mr. Karunn Kandoiwas appointed w.e.fMar 03, 2021.

*Ajey Kumar resigned as Managing Director w.e.f. August 18, 2020. The Managing Director was working in the capacity of Professional Director.

#Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay resigned as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. April 23, 2020.

**Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar was appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. April 24, 2020. Additionally, he was appointed as WTD & Executive Director w.e.f August
19, 2020. He has resigned as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director w.e.f. June 14,2021.

##Mr. Rakesh Agarwal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. April 07, 2020. He left the Company w.e.f. July 06, 2021.
@ Mr. Bhautesh Shah ceased to be the Company Secretary and KMP w.e.f. May 12, 2020.
@@ Mr. Prashant Parekh was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. July 31, 2020. He ceased to be the Company Secretary and KMP w.e.f. January 29, 2021.
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ﬁ"- Requirments Disclosure
o.

1 The Percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in Nil
Financial Year

2 Number of permanentemployees on the rolls of the Company 253 (asonMarch 31,2021)

3. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees The Company follows a market benchmarking process to determine the
other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its salary increments across all levels of the Company. Given the pandemic, it
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial was decided not to do any increments for FY 20-21. Accordingly, there has
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any been noincrease in salaries of employees and managerial personnel in
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration the last financial year.

4. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy
Company. of the Company

B. Particulars of Employees whose remuneration exceeded Rs. 1.02 crore per annum or Rs. 8.5 lakhs per month during FY 2020-21
1. Employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1.02 crore or more per annum.

There are no employees who are employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating to Rs. 1.02 crore or more per annum.

2. Employed partofthe year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 8.5 lakhs or more per month
Sr. Empl Ago gt — Total R ti
No. mployee Name g Designation Qualification Exp emunerations Last Employment Name
1. Ajey Kumar* 49 Managing Director B.E,MBA 26 64,04,923 Essel Corporate Resources LLP

* Ajey Kumarresigned as Managing Director w.e.f. August 18, 2020. The Managing Director was working in the capacity of Professional Director.
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3. Details of remuneration# of top ten Employees for the year 2020-21

Management Report

::; Employee Name Age Designation Qualification 1;::' Remuneration Last Employment Name
1 # Vikash Kumar Kar 42  Chief Executive Officer B.Sc, MBA 20 48,18,927 MSCI Services Private Limited
2. * Debshankar 52  Chief Executive Officer B.Com, PGDBM 24 26,14,036 Manipal Global Education Service
Mukhopadhyay
3. **Raju Babu Sinha 53  Chief Operating Officer MCA 28 32,29,348 Independent Education Consultant
4 ## Rakesh Agarwal 46 Chief Financial Officer CA,ICWA 21 28,97,731 Sujan ContiTechAVS
Private Limited
5. Vivek Bhanot 47  Business Head - SAT B.Sc, MBA 25 24,29,724 Millennium Education
Management Pvt. Ltd.
6. Santosh Gupta 44 Head- Information Technology M.Com, MCA 23 23,93,052 Capgemini India PvtLtd
7. ASandeep SundaraShetty 48  Head Vocational Business B.Sc 26 24.17,400 APG Learning
8. MBrijesh Jadia 48  Head- Supply Chain & B.E,MBA 24 32,03,541 Ingersoll Rand International
Commercial (India) Ltd
9. $ Avinash Kundalia 48  National Franchise B.Com, MBA 27 88,086 Brainbees Solution PvtLtd
Development Manager -
Kidzee
56  NationalAcademicManager ~ MA,B.Phil&B.Ed 30 19,84,704 Mount Mary High School

10.  Kingston Michael Dsouza

Kidzee

Note:

#Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar (Chief Executive Officer) has resigned w.e.f. June 14,2021.

*Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay (Chief Executive Officer) left the Company w.e.f. July 22, 2020.
**Mr. Raju Babu Sinha (Chief Operating Officer) left the Company w.e.f. July 15, 2021.

##Mr. Rakesh Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer) left the Company w.e.f. July 06, 2021.

AMr. Sandeep Shetty (Head Vocational Business) has resigned w.e.f. June 22, 2021.

M Mr. Brijesh Jadia (Head Supply Chain & Commercial) left the Company w.e.f. August 13, 2021.
$Mr. Avinash Kundalia (National Frachise Development Manager - Kidzee) left the Company w.e.f. July 31, 2021.
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EXTRACT OF REMUNERATION POLICY

i)

The Board has approved a policy for Remuneration for Director(s) and
Employees of the Company which inter aliaincludes:

Objective:

This Policy aims to attract, retain and motivate the Members of the
Board of Directors, Senior Managers viz: CEO, and other employees
who are at one level below the Key Managerial Personnel or
Functional Heads of the Company, by remunerating them reasonably
and sufficiently so as to run the operations of the Company
successfully. The Policy reflects the Company's objectives for good
corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value creation
for shareholders.

Guiding Principles:

The guiding principle of this Policy is that the remuneration and other
terms of engagement / employment shall be competitive enough to
ensure that the Company is in a position to attract, retain and motivate
right kind of human resource(s) for achieving the desired growth set by
the Company’s management year on year thereby creating long-term
value for all stakeholders of the Company.

While designing the remuneration package, efforts are to be made to
ensure that the remuneration matches the level in comparable
companies, whilst also taking into consideration requisite
competencies, qualifications, industry experience, efforts required
and the scope of the work.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee while considering a
remuneration package shall ensure balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee believes that a
successful remuneration policy must ensure that a significant part of
the remuneration package should be linked to the achievement of
corporate performance targets and a strong alignment of interest with
stakeholders.

Remuneration of Executive Members on the Board :

Any Executive Member(s) on the Board shall be paid remuneration
which shall comprise of fixed monthly basic salary, perquisites such as
House Rent Allowance or furnished / unfurnished housing
accommodation in lieu thereof, personal allowance, car with or without
chauffeur, telephone for office as well as personal use, reimbursement
of medical expenses, children education allowance, medical
insurance, life insurance, meal and gift vouchers, personal accident
insurance, communication and IT equipment, leave travel allowance,
club membership, stock options, statutory and non-statutory

iv)
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allowances such as education allowances, white goods and
information technology goods allowance, helper allowance,
professional development allowance, personal allowances, books
and periodical allowance, entertainment allowance, business travel
allowances, subscription allowances, provident fund, superannuation,
national pension scheme, gratuity, leave encashment and any other
allowances etc. as may be recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee / Board of Directors and approved by the
Members of the Company from time to time.

However, the overall remuneration of executive member(s) on the
Board, where there are more than one, shall not exceed 10% of the net
profit calculated in the manner provided under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules framed thereunder, and shall not exceed 5% in case
there is only one executive member on the Board. In the event of loss
or inadequacy of profit in any financial year during the currency of
tenure of services of an executive member of the Board, the payment
of remuneration shall be governed by the applicable limits prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time, however such applicable limits will not
apply to Executive Directors working in the capacity of Professional
Directors, to thatextent.

Executive Members of the Board including the Managing Director, if
any, shall be employed under service contracts for a period not
exceeding 5 (five) years at a time, on the terms & other conditions and
remuneration as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Members of the Company at the
General Meeting(s). Executive members of the Board shall not be
eligible to receive any sitting fees for attending any meeting of the
Board of Directors or Committee thereof.

Remuneration of Non-Executive Members of the Board:

The remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors will be decided
by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board from time to time.

The Non —Executive members / Independent Directors of the Board
shall be eligible for sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board
and/ or Committees thereof, excluding Stakeholders Relationship
Committee and Finance Sub- committee and reimbursement of
expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings.

The remuneration payable to the Non-Executive member(s) /
Independent Directors of the Board shall be limited to a fixed amount of
Commission each year, as may be determined and approved by the
Board based on the time devoted, contribution made in the progress
and guiding the Company for future growth. Aggregate of such sum
shall not exceed 1% of net profit of the year on a stand-alone basis or
such sumas may be prescribed by the Government from time to time,
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calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and relevant rules framed thereunder. The performance of the
non-executive members of the Board shall be reviewed by the Board on
anannual basis.

The Non-Executive Directors shall be eligible for ESOPs as per the
ESOP Scheme of the Company as approved by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to any stock
optionissued or proposed to be issued by the Company.

v) Remuneration of Executive Management comprising of Senior
Management & Key Managerial Personnel:

The Company believes that a combination of fixed and performance-
linked pay to the Executive Management shall ensure that the company
can attract and retain key employees. The performance-linked
incentive based on Company performance and performance of the
employee concerned each year shall be considered and approved by
the Nomination & Compensation Committee, annually inter-alia for the
Executive Management. Additionally, subject to appropriate approval of
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shareholders, the Company may consider issuance of stock options to
Senior Management.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will from time to time
consider proposals concerning the appointment and remuneration of
the Key Managerial Personnel and ensure that the proposed
remuneration is in line with industry standards in comparable
companies. Such proposals then shall be submitted to the Board for
approval. The remuneration of the members of the Executive
Management may consist of the following components:

Basic salary and Allowances

Performance linked incentive / bonus

Stock options

Perquisites as per rules of the Company including Company car,
telephone etc.

Executive Management shall not be eligible to receive any
remuneration, including sitting fees, for directorships held in any of the
Essel Group of Companies, whether listed or otherwise.
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Report on Corporate Governance

COMPANY'S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

Corporate Governance is about our commitment to human values in business
which translates into ethical corporate conduct. Corporate Governance is an
integral element of Company’s value system, management ethos, and
business practices. Corporate Governance practice are reflection of one’s
value, culture, policies and the manner in which it deals with various
stakeholders. Timely and accurate disclosure of information regarding the
financial situation, performance, ownership and governance of the Company
is an important part of Corporate Governance. When adhered to and
implemented in the best of spirit, Corporate Governance positively impact the
activities, processes and policies of an organization, portray a positive vision
to investors and enhance the trust and confidence of the stakeholders. It can
also influence its immediate corporate environment and the society atlarge in
apositive way and have a healthy impact on the national economy.

The Company has laid strong foundation for making Corporate Governance a
way of life by constituting a Board with a balanced mix of professionals of
eminence and integrity from within and outside the business, forming a core
group of top executives, inducting competent professionals across the
organization and putting in place appropriate system, process and technology.
The Company's Code of Business Conduct and its well structured internal
financial control systems which are subjected to regular assessment for its
effectiveness, reinforces integrity of Management and fairness in dealing with
the Company’s stakeholders. The Company has enabled to earn the trust and
goodwill of its investors, business partners, employees and the communities
in which it operates. In its endeavor to improve on the Corporate Governance
practices.

POLICIES

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), and
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved
various policies, as detailed herein:

Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy

As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing
Regulations, a comprehensive Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy
has been approved and implemented within the organization. The policy
enables the employees and Directors to report instances of any unethical act
or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of Companies Code of conduct.
This mechanism/policy provides adequate safeguards to whistle blowers
against reprisals or victimization. The Copy of the Policy has been uploaded
onthe Company’s Website viz. www.zeelearn.com

Code of Conduct

The Company has also adopted a Code of Conduct for the Members of the

Board of Directors and Senior Management, and all the Directors and senior
functionaries as defined in the Code provided their annual confirmation of
compliance with the Code. Copy of the Code is available on the website of the
Company www.zeelearn.com.

Adeclaration affirming compliance with the Code of Conduct by the Members
of the Board and Senior Management personnel is given below:

Declaration
[Pursuant to Part D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015]

|, Vikash Kumar Kar, Chief Executive Officer of Zee Learn Limited declare that
all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March
31,2021

Vikash Kumar Kar
Chief Executive Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 01,2021

Related Party Transaction Policy

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors of the Company has approved a Related Party
Transaction Policy, to facilitate management to report and seek approval for
any Related Party Transaction proposed to be entered into by the Company.
The said Related Party Transaction Policy which was reviewed during the
year, can be viewed on www.zeelearn.com.

Policies & Code as per SEBI Insider Trading Regulations

In accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
the Company has formulated and approved (i) an Insider Trading Code to
regulate dealing in the securities of the Company by designated persons in
compliance with the regulations; and (ii) a Policy for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

Mr. Prashant Parekh, Company Secretary of the Company was the
Compliance Officer for the purposes of Insider Trading Code till January 29,
2021, thereafter Mr. Rakesh Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer of the Company
was appointed as Chief Investor Relations Officer for the purpose of Fair
Disclosure policy till June 29, 2021. Mr. Anil Gupta was appointed as the
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f June 29, 2021.

In line with the amendment to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, the Insider Trading Code and Policy for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information was revised with effect from April 1,
2019. The revised code and Policy can be viewed on Company’s website
www.zeelearn.com
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Familiarization Program for Independent Directors

Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and
responsibilities in the Company as well as with the nature of industry and

business model of the Company through induction programs at the time of
their appointment as Directors. While review and approval of quarterly and
annual financial statements of the Company are taken up, detailed
presentation covering inter alia economy and industry overview, key
regulatory developments, strategy and performance of individual profit
centres is made to the Board.

Apart from the above policies, the Board has in accordance with the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations approved and
adopted Policy for determining Material Subsidiary, Remuneration Policy,
Material Events Determination and Disclosure Policy and Document
Preservation Policy. These policies can be viewed on Company’s website at
www.zeelearn.com.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition & Category of Directors

Zee Learn Limited is in compliance with the Board composition requirements
of the Listing Regulations. Independent Directors of the Company provide
appropriate annual certifications to the Board confirming satisfaction of the
conditions of their being independent as laid down in Section 149(6) of the
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Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In
the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions
specified in the Listing Regulations and are Independent of the Management.

Category of Directors No. of % to total No. of
Directors Directors

Executive Director 1 16.67

Non-Executive Independent Directors 4 66.67

Other Non-Executive Director 1 16.67

Total 6 100.00

During the financial year under review, 9 (Nine) meetings of the Board were
held April 07, 2020, April 24, 2020, July 16, 2020, July 31, 2020, August 19,
2020, October 07, 2020, December 03, 2020, December 18, 2020 and
February 09,2021.

Particulars of Directors, their attendance at the Annual General Meeting and
Board Meetings held during the financial year 2020-21 and also their other
directorships/ memberships held in Indian Public Companies (excluding
Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies of Companies Act, 2013) and
Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship
Committee of other Public Companies as at March 31, 2021 are as under:

No. of Directorship in No. of Committee

Attendance at Public Companies positions held in
Name of Director Board Meeting  10th AGM held on public Compantes
(Total 9 Meetings) ~ December 31,2020 yomper  Chairman Member  Chairman

Managing Director
* Mr. Ajey Kumar 4 NA NA NA NA NA
Executive Director
** Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar 4 Yes - -
Non- Executive Non Independent Director
***Mr. Surender Singh 5 Yes 3 1 3 1
Non- Executive Independent Director
**** Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker 3 Yes - -
****Mr. Karunn Kandoi 2 NA 2 - 2
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj 9 Yes 3 - 2 3
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar 7 Yes 2 - 2 1
Ms. Nanette D’sa 9 Yes 3 - 3 1
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* resignedw.e.f.August 18,2020

** ceased to be Whole time Director & CEO w.e.f. June 14,2021
*** appointedw.e.f. July 31,2020

**** termended w.e.f. 14th January, 2021

e appointed w.e.f. March 03, 2021

Notes:
The number of Directorship (s), Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship (s) of all Directors is/are within the respective limits prescribed under the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.

Details of other Directorships of Directors in the Listed entities as at March 31, 2021 are as under:

Sr.No. Name of the Director Directorship in other Listed Companies Category of Directorship
1 * Mr.Vikash KumarKar - -
2 Mr. Surender Singh MT Educare Limited Non Executive Director
ZEE Media Corporation Limited Non Executive Director
3 Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj MT Educare Limited Independent Director
4 Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar MT Educare Limited Independent Director
5 Ms. Nanette D'sa Vidli Restaurants Limited Independent Director
MT Educare Limited Independent Director
6 Mr. Karunn Kandoi MT Educare Ltd Independent Director

*

resigned as Whole Time Director & CEO w.e.f. closing hours on June 14, 2021
Compliance with Directorship limits

None of the Directors of the Company are Director in more than twenty companies (including ten public companies) or acts as an Independent Director in more
than seven listed companies, or three listed companies in case they serve as a Whole-time Directorin any listed company.

Compliance with Committee positions

Disclosures have been made by the Directors regarding their Chairmanships/Memberships of mandatory Committees of the Board and the same are within the
permissible limits as stipulated under Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations. Accordingly, none of the Directors on the Board of our Company are member of
more than ten Committees and Chairperson of more than five Committees, across all Indian public limited companies in which he/ she is a Director.

Inter-se relationship between Directors
None of the Directors of the Company are inter-se related to each other.
Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors

As on March 31, 2021, the Company does not have any convertible instruments and none of Non-Executive Directors hold any shares of the Company as on
March 31,2021.

Declaration from Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors on the Board of the Company have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned in amended Regulation
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act and they are aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasonably
anticipated, that could impair orimpact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence.

The Board of the Company has carried out an assessment of declarations and confirmations submitted by the Independent Directors of the Company and after
undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same, is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the conditions specified in the
Listing Regulations and the Act and are independent of the management.
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Board Procedures The Board periodically reviews certificates in respect of compliance of various Further, the information in terms of Para C(2)(h)(ii) of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is mentioned below:

Schedule of the Board meetings for approval of quarterly and annual financial ~ 1aws andregulations applicable to the Company.

results each year are decided well in advance and communicated to the Sr.No.  Name of Director Skills/ competences / experience possessed

Directors. The Board meetings during the year were held through VC/OAVM. ~ BOARD COMMITTEES

The agenda alongwith the explanatory notes are sent to the Directors well in Particulars of Meetings of Board Committees held during the year along with 1 Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar Leadershlp qua||t|e§., Buglngss & HR Strat.egy, Industry knowledge and experience, Qperatlonal excellence
) L . ) i i ) : Organization capability building, Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies, Governance and
advance to enable them to take informed decisions. Senior management details of Directors attendance at such Committee Meeting(s) are detailed risk management.
personnel are normally invited to the Board meetings to provide necessary herein: . . — . .
insights into the working of the Company and for discussing corporate 2 Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj Inc:uﬁry knowledge and experience, strategic thinking, understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and
strategies. policies
3 Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Industry knowledge and experience, strategic thinking, understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and
. . Nomination & Stakeholders Corporate Social policies, Human Resource and Talent
Audit Committe A 8 SR e itt R ibility C itt - ) ” ) ) o .
Remuneration Committee  Relationship Committee  Responsibility Committee 4 Mr. Surender Singh Leadership qualities, understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies, financial expertise, Human
No. of Meetings held 7 4 1 1 Resource and Talent, risk management
Directors attendance 5 Mr. Karunn Kandoi Leadership qualities, industry knowledge and experience, General Management, Education Technology, Business
*Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker NA NA - NA and Strate_gy' - _ : :
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj 7 4 i 1 6 Ms. Nanette D'sa Legqershlp qua||.t|es, Ilnd.ustry knowledge and experlenge, Unlderstandl.ng of r.elevant laws, rules, regulations and
policies, Strategic Thinking, Corporate Governance, Financial expertise, Risk management and mergers and
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar 5 1 1 acquisitions
Ms. Nanette D'sa 7 1 1

Note: N.A. denotes the director is not a Member of such Committee.

* Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker’s term expired w.e.f. January 14, 2021

Independent Directors Meeting and Board Evaluation Process

In compliance with requirements of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations
and Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Independent Directors of the Company met on March 30, 2021 to review the
performance of Chairman and Non-Independent Directors, evaluate
performance of the Board of Directors and its Committees and review flow of
information between the management and the Board.

The parameters for evaluation of performance of the Board & Board
Committees includes the structure & composition, contents of agenda, quality
and timelines of information provided, decision-making process & review
thereof, attention to the Company’s long-term strategic issues, evaluation of
strategic risks, overseeing and review of major plans of action, acquisitions
etc. Outcome of such evaluation exercise was discussed at subsequent board
meeting. The performance of each of the Independent Directors was also
evaluated taking into account the time devoted, attention given to professional
obligations for independent decision making, contribution towards providing
strategic guidance, determining important policies, utilising their expertise,
independent judgment that contributes objectively in the Board’s
deliberations.
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Skills, Expertise and Competencies of Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations,
the Board has identified the key skills, expertise and competencies required in
the context of the Company’s business for its effective functioning which are
currently available with the Board.

The identified skills/expertise/competencies as identified in the context of the
Company’s business are leadership qualities, industry knowledge and
experience, understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulations and policies,
strategic thinking, corporate governance, financial expertise, Human
Resource and Talent, risk management and mergers and acquisitions.

The Directors of the Company comprises of qualified individuals who
collectively possess the above skills, competencies and experience across
diverse fields that enable them to make effective contributions to the Board
andits Committees.

Details of Board Committees are as mentioned herein:
Audit Committee

Constitution

As on March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee of the Board comprises of three
(3) Directors, including Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as
Chairman, Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Independent Director; and Ms. Nanette D'sa,
Independent Director as Members of the Audit Committee. There was no
change in the Audit Committee during the year.

During the year under review, seven (7) meetings of the Audit Committee were
held on April 07, 2020, July 16, 2020, July 31, 2020, October 7, 2020,
December 3, 2020, December 18,2020 and February 09, 2021.

Terms of reference

The role and the powers of the Audit Committee is as set out in Part C of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013. The terms of reference of Audit Committee broadly includes:

*  Review Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient, accurate, timely and credible.

*  Review and recommend for approval of the Board quarterly, half yearly
and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval.

+  Review internal audit reports, related party transactions, company’s
financial and risk management policies and functioning of Whistle
Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy.

Review with the management performance of Statutory and Internal
Auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems including
computerized information system controls and security.

Recommend to the Board the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the Statutory Auditor and Cost Auditor, fixation of audit fee and
approval of payment of fees for any other services.

Review the adequacy of internal audit function including approving
appointment and remuneration payable to Internal Auditor, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.

Review, with the management, the statement of uses / application of
funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, eftc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter.

Review and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance,
and effectiveness of audit process.

Approve or any subsequent modification of transactions of the
Company with related parties.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is
necessary.
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«  Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

*  Reviewthe findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors
into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to
the board.

. Discuss with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern.

«  Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors.

+  Reviewthe functioning of the whistle blower mechanism.

«  Approve appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate.

«  Review the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/advances/
investments.

+  The committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

- Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results
of operations;

- Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the
audit committee), submitted by management;

- Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by
the statutory auditors;

- Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

- The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief
internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee.

- Statement of deviations:

(@) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 32(1).

(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of
Regulation 32(7).

The Audit Committee also reviews adequacy of disclosures and compliance
with all relevant laws. In addition to these, in compliance with requirements of
Regulation 24 of Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee reviews operations
of Subsidiary Companies viz., its financial statements, to grant omnibus
approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of

72 | Annual Report 2020 -21

Management Report

business and onan arm’s length pricing basis and to review and approve such
transactions subject to the approval of the Board, statement of investments
and minutes of meetings of its Board and Committees.

Audit Committee Meetings are generally attended by the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and representative of the Statutory Auditors of
the Company. Internal Auditors have attended Audit Committee Meetings
wherein the Internal Audit reports are considered by the Committee. The
Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Constitution

As at March 31, 2021, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises
of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Dattatraya
Kelkar, Independent Director and Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as
members of the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as
Secretary of Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, the Committee met 5 (Five) times on April 07,
2020, April 24,2021, July 31,2020, August 19, 2020 and October 7, 2020.

Terms of reference
Terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee include:

+ ldentify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall
carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

«  Formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes
and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees.

«  Ensure the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to
run the Company successfully.

«  Ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and
meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

+  Formulate policy with regard to remuneration to directors, key
managerial personnel and senior management involving a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and
its goals.

+  Approve the remuneration policy and other matters relating thereto as
applicable to directors and senior management and other employees of
the Company and administer Employee Stock Option Scheme of the
Company.
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. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors
a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

«  Formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent
Directors and the board of directors;

+  Devisinga policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

+ ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may
be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and
removal.

«  Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of Independent Directors.

Remuneration Policy

The guiding principle of the remuneration policy of the Company is that the
remuneration and other terms of engagement / employment shall be
competitive enough to ensure that the Company is in a position to attract,
retain and motivate right kind of human resource(s) for achieving the desired
growth set by the Company’s management year on year thereby creating
long-term value for all stakeholders of the Company. An extract of the
Remuneration Policy approved by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee of the Board has been included as an Annexure to Directors
Reportand can be accessed at www.zeelearn.com.

Remuneration to Executive Director:

The details of the remuneration paid to *Mr. Ajey Kumar, Managing Director of
the Company during the year ended March 31,2021 is as under:

Particulars Amount(inRs.)
Salary &Allowances 60,44,954
Profitsin Lieu of Salary -
Commission as a % of Profit -
Provident Fund Contribution 3,59,969
TOTAL 64,04,923

*Resigned w.e.f. August 18,2020

The details of the remuneration paid to **Mr. Vikash Kar, Whole Time Director
& Chief Executive Officer of the Company during the year ended March 31,
2021isasunder:

Management Report

Particulars Amount(inRs.)
Salary &Allowances 45,93,696
Profitsin Lieu of Salary -

Commission as a % of Profit -

Provident Fund Contribution 2,25231
TOTAL 48,18,927

**ceased to be Whole Time Director & CEO w.e.f. June 14,2021
Remuneration to Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Directors and Non-Executive Independent Director were
entitled to sitting fees of Rs. 10,000/~ per meeting of the Board and
Committees of the Company.

The Independent Directors are additionally entitled to remuneration up to an
aggregate limit of 1% of net profits of the Company by way of Commission for
each financial year, as approved by the Members in Annual General Meeting
was held on dated December 30, 2020. Commission payable to the
Independent Directors is determined by the Board based on various criteria
including contribution made by each Director, performance of the Company,
etc. The details of Commission payable and Sitting Fees paid to the Non-
Executive Directors during FY 2020-21 are as mentioned herein:

Amountin¥
Name of Director Commission  Sitting Fees  Total
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj 1,00,000 2,20,000 3,20,000
Independent Director
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar 1,00,000 1,80,000 2,80,,000
Independent Director
Ms. Nanette D’sa 1,00,000 2,30,000 2,30,000
Independent Director
Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker 75,000 30,000 1,05,000
Independent Director
**Mr. Surendra Singh 66,664 50,000 1,16,664
Non-Executive Director
*Mr. Karunn Kandoi 8,334 10,000 18,334
Independent Director
Total 4,49,998 7,50,000 11,99,998

*k

appointed w.e.f. July 31, 2020
* appointed w.e.f. March 03, 2021
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In addition to this, the Directors are also granted Stock Options (except Independent Directors) [each convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of
Re. 1/- each of the Company] at closing Market Price of Equity Shares of Company of Previous Closing day as on the date of respective grant of Option, in
terms of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

Particulars of Stock Options granted under the ESOP scheme to the Directors and their outstanding as at March 31, 2021, are as under:

Name of Director Grant no. 6 Grant no. 8 Grant no. 12 Options Vested ~ Options Exercised

* Mr. Ajey Kumar 64,02,980 8,46,214 25,75,597 85,36,993 46,73,597
Managing Director

Name of Director Grant no. 8 Grant no. 10 Grant no. 12 Grant no. 13 Options Vested ~ Options Exercised
** Mr. Vikash Kar 50,000 45,000 38,000 60,000 1,44,000 0
Whole Time Director
* resigned w.e.f. August 18, 2020
> ceased to be Whole time Director & CEO w.e.f. June 14, 2021

During the year under review, no new Stock Options have been granted to the Independent Directors of the Company.

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not have any other material pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company or its Directors, Senior
Management, Subsidiary or Associate, other than in normal course of business.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Constitution

AsonApril 1, 2020, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board comprised of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman,
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director, Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director and Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker, Independent Director as the members.

Further, Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker ceased to be member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee w.e.f. closing hours of January 14,2021 due to expiry of
tenure of Independent Director as per the provision of the Companies Act,

As at March 31, 2021, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board comprises of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr.
Dattatraya Kelkar, Independent Director, and Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as the members.

During the year under review, Stakeholder Relationship Committee met one (1) time on March 22, 2021.
Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee include the following:

. Resolve the grievances of the shareholders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report,
non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent.

. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of
dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

The Committee has delegated various powers including approving requests for transfer, transmission, rematerialisation & dematerialisation etc. of Equity shares
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to the Executives of the Company and the Company Secretary, being the
compliance officer, is entrusted with the responsibility, to specifically look into
the redressal of the shareholders and investors complaints jointly with
representative (s) of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and
report the same to Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Mr. Anil Gupta, Company Secretary has been appointed as Compliance
Officer w.e.f. June 29, 2021. The designated email for investor service and
correspondence is investor_relations@zeelearn.com.

Investor Complaints

During FY 2020-21, the Company had not received any complaint from
shareholders/investors, as tabulated below. There were no complaints
pending as atthe end of the year.

Status of Shareholders’ Complaints as on March 31, 2021 and reported
under Regulation 13(3) of the Listing Regulations is as under:

No. of Shareholders’ complaints pending at the beginning Nil
ofthe yeari.e.asonApril 1,2020

No. of Shareholders’ Complaints received during the year Nil
No. of Shareholders’ Complaints resolved during the year Nil
No. of Shareholders’ Complaints pending as on March 31,2021 Nil

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance with requirements of Section 135 read with Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, as on March 31, 2021 committee comprising of
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Dattatraya
Kelkar, Independent Director and Ms. Nanette D’sa, Independent Director as
its Members.

During the year under review, CSR Committee met once on March 30, 2021.
Other Board Committees

In addition to the above, the Board has constituted following Committees to
exercise powers delegated by the Board as per the scope mentioned herein:

i)  ESOPAllotment Sub-Committee

In order to process and facilitate allotment of Equity Shares, from time
to time, upon exercise of Stock Options granted under Company’s

i)

i)

Management Report

ESOP Scheme, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has
constituted ESOP Allotment Sub-Committee. As on March 31, 2021,
the Committee comprises of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent
Director as Chairman, and Mr. Vikash Kar, Chief Executive Officer. No
meetings of ESOP Allotment Sub-Committee was held during the year.

Finance Sub-Committee

The Finance Sub-Committee of the Board as on March 31, 2021
comprised of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as the
Chairman, Mr. Datttraya Kelkar, Independent Director and Ms. Nanette
D'sa, Independent Director as its member.

With a view to facilitate monitoring and expediting any debt fund raising
process, approve financing facilities offered and / or sanctioned to the
Company by various Banks and /or Indian Financial Institutions from
time to time, in the form of Term Loans, Working Capital facilities,
Guarantee facilities etc., including the acceptance of terms and
conditions of such facilities being offered and exercising other
authorities as may be delegated by the Board from time to time, the
Board has constituted a Finance Sub-Committee. No Meeting of
Finance Sub-Committee was held during the year

Corporate Management Committee

The Board has also constituted a Corporate Management Committee
comprising of Director / KMP / Senior Executives of the Company to
review, approve and/or grant authorities for managing day-today affairs
of the Company within the powers delegated by the Board.

The Finance Sub-Committee and Corporate Management Committee
meet as and when required to deliberate and decide on various matters
within their respective scope or powers delegated by the Board.

Issue & Allotment Sub- Committee

In order to facilitate the process of approving Company's Offering
Document for issue of Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) etc,
appointment of various intermediaries, approving various agreements,
deciding on the terms of issue along with timing thereof, obtaining
approval of Stock Exchange(s) and/or other regulatory / statutory /
administrative authorities etc., the Board has constituted an Issue and
Allotment Committee as on March 31, 2021 comprising of Mr. Roshan
Lal Kamboj, Independent Director as Chairman and Mr. Dattatraya
Kelkar Independent Director as its member. No Meeting of Issue and
Allotment Committee was held during the year.
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The Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 will be held through VC/OAVM on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 04:00 p.m.

The location, day, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during last three years along with Special Resolution(s) passed at these

meetings are as follows:

Year Day and Time Special Resolutions passed Venue
2017 - 2018 Monday, September 24, a) Alteration of Articles of Association in compliance with  Ravindra Natya Mandir, P L
2018 at 11.30 a.m. CompaniesAct, 2013 Deshpande Kala Academy,
Near Siddhivinayak Temple,

b) Re-designation/ appointment of Mr. Ajey Kumar,
Executive Director as the Managing Director of the
Company and to confirm his terms of remuneration.

Sayani Road, Prabhadevi,
Mumbai 400025

The Hall of Culture’,

2018 - 2019 Thursday, None Nehru Centre,

September 26, 2019 Dr. Annie Besant Road,

at 11.30 a.m. Worli, Mumbai-400 018
2019 - 2020 Wednesday, a) To authorise repricing of outstanding Stock Options  Through Video Conferencing

December 30, 2020

at4 PM Scheme.

granted under Company’s Employee Stock Option (“VC")/OtherAudio Visual

Means (“OAVM’)

Allthe above resolutions were passed with requisite majority.

None of the resolutions proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
needs to be passed by Postal Ballot.

Postal Ballot
No Resolutions passed by way of Postal Ballot during financial year 2020-21.
DISCLOSURES

Your Company discloses to the Stock Exchanges, all information required to
be disclosed under Regulation 30 read with Part ‘A" of Schedule Il of the
Listing Regulations including material information having a bearing on the
performance/ operations of the Company and other price sensitive
information, if any. All information is filed electronically on BSE Corporate &
Listing Centre (Listing Centre), online portal of BSE and on NSE Electronic
Application Processing System (NEAPS), the online portal of NSE.

Whistle Blower Policy

The Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy approved by the Board has been
implemented and no personnel have been denied access for making
disclosure or report under the Policy to the Vigilance Officer and/or Audit
Committee.

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions

There are no materially significant related party transactions between the
Company and its promoters, directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their
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relatives, having any potential conflict with interests of the Company at large.
There are no material related party transactions and hence no disclosure is
required inthe Annual Report.

Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions and
Policy on Material Subsidiaries

In Compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors of the Company has approved Related Party
Transaction Policy, to facilitate management to report and seek approval for
any Related Party transaction proposed to be entered into by the Company.

The Company's Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on
dealing with Related Party Transactions and Policy on Material Subsidiary is
puton Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.

Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures

The Company has delayed in filing the financial results for the year ended
March31, 2020, for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 and for the quarter ended
September 30, 2020 and has payed the penalties levied by the Stock
Exchangesin this respect.

Commodity price risk, foreign exchange risk and hedging activities
Since the Company is engaged in Education business, there is no risk

associated with Commodity Price and therefore the disclosure relating to
Commodity Price risk and Commodity hedging activities is Not applicable.
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Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

Your Board hereby confirms that the Company has obtained a certificate from
Ms. Mita Sanghavi (FCS No:7205 CP No. 6364) a Company Secretary in
Practice confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors by SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory
authority.

Credit Rating

The credit rating during the financial year 2020-21 for the Overdraft Term Loan
of the Company from Brickworks are as follows:

Overdraft Term Loan: The rating reaffirmed is BWR BB (Pronounced as BWR
BB) Credit Watch with Negative Implications.

Fees to Statutory Auditors

During the FY 2020-21, the Company has paid to its Statutory Auditor, an
aggregate remuneration of Rs. 20.65 Lakhs which is bifurcated as Rs. 17.50
Lakhs paid as Audit fees, Rs.2.50 Lakhs as TaxAudit Fees and Rs. 0.67 Lakhs
as fees for certification and tax representation. The total fees paid by the
Company to the Statutory Auditors of the Company are also detailed in the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company forming part of this Annual
Report.

Recommendation of Committees:

All recommendations / submissions made by various Committees of the
Board during the financial year 2020-21 were accepted by the Board.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace
and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder. There was no complaint on sexual harassment
during the year under review.

Management Report

DISCLOSURES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND
REGULATION 46(2)

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation
46 of the Listing Regulations 2015. The certificate from Ms. Mita Sanghavi,
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
is annexedto the Directors’ Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company has promptly reported all material information including
declaration of quarterly financial results, press releases etc., to the Stock
Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. Such information is
also simultaneously displayed on the Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.
The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results and other statutory
information were communicated to the shareholders by way of advertisement
in an English newspaper ‘Business Standard’ / Free Press Journeal and in a
vernacular language newspaper ‘Mumbai Lakshadeep / The Global Times /
Punya Nagari / Free Press Journal (Marathi)' as per the requirements of
Listing Regulations. The financial and other information are filed by the
Company on electronic platforms of NSE (NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre.

Pursuant to Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
Publishes its Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial results, Annual
Reports and post such results on Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.

Official press releases and presentations made to institutional investors or to
the analysts, if any, are displayed on Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this Annual
Reportis annexed separately.

General Shareholders Information

The required information is provided in Shareholders Information Section.
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Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance
To,
The Members of

Zee Learn Limited
CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2021 as stipulated in
Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘'SEBI Listing Regulations’).

Management’s Responsibility:

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s Management. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of procedures by the Company for ensuring the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

My responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on financial statements of the Company.

| have examined relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance of the compliance with
Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

Opinion:

Based on examination of relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided to me and representations provided by the Management, |
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (a) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, except that the Board of the Company comprised of five (5) Directors during the period from
January 15, 2021 to March 2, 2021 as against the requirement of minimum of six (6) Directors mandated under Regulation 17(1)(c) of SEBI Listing Regulations.
The vacancy in the office of Director was filled within prescribed time.

| state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

MITASANGHAVI

Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7205
Certificate of Practice No. 6364
UDIN: F007205C000777876

Place : Mumbai
Date :13thAugust, 2021
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
ZEE LEARNLIMITED

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Zee Learn Limited having CIN
L80301MH2010PLC198405 and having registered office at Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai Maharashtra 400018 India
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3)
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company &its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board
of the Company, as stated below as at March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Authority

Director Date of
SI. No. Name of the Director Category Identification Appointment
Number
1. Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar Independent Director 00118037 30/12/2019
2. Mr. Roshan Lal Khamboj Independent Director 01076066 17/05/2019
3. Ms. Nanette D’sa Independent Director 05261531 31/03/2020
4, Mr. Vikash Kumar Kar* Whole-time Director 07418787 19/08/2020
5. Mr. Surender Singh Non-Executive Director 08206770 31/07/2020
6. Mr. Karunn Kandoi Independent Director 01344843 03/03/2021

*Resigned w.e.f. June 14,2021.

Ensuring the eligibility of, for the appointment / continuity of, every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these based on verification of Company’s records and records available on public domain. This certificate is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Mrs. Mita P. Sanghavi
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: 7205
C P No. : 6364
UDIN NO-F007205C000777810
Place : Mumbai
Date : August 13, 2021
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Shareholders’ Information

1  Date, Time and Venue of Shareholder’s Meeting

2  Financial Year
3 Dateof Book Closure
4  Dividend PaymentDate

5  Addressfor Correspondence

6  Corporate Identity Number

7  Listingon Stock Exchanges

8 StockCode

9 ISINNo.

10 Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) Details
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Eleventh Annual General Meeting

Day & Date: Wednesday, September 29, 2021

Time : 04:00p.m.

Venue  :The Companyis conducting meeting through VC/OAVM.

April 1,2020 till March 31, 2021
From, Thursday, September 23, 2021 to Wednesday, September 29, 2021
NA

Registered Office / Corporate Office

Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400 018.
Tel: +91227154 1895, Fax: +9122 24955974

Website : www.zeelearn.com

L80301MH2010PLC198405

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

BSE Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

NSE:ZEELEARN
BSE:533287

INE565L01011 (Equity shares of X 1/- each, fully paid up)

As atMarch 31,2021, none of the Global Depository Receipts have remained outstanding
as all the GDRs have been converted into the underlying shares of the Company as on
January 15,2018 which forms part of the existing paid-up share capital of the Company.
AsonMarch 31,2021, none of the Global Depository Receipts have remained outstanding
as all the GDRs have been converted into the underlying shares of the Company as on
January 15, 2018, thus the services of the Overseas Depository and Domestic Custodian
has been discontinued.
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11. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101,247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,

Vikhroli West, Mumbai- 400083 Tel: +91 227154 1895, Fax: +9122 24955974
Emailid: rt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Investor Relations Officer

Mr. Anil Gupta, Company Secretary

Zee Learn Limited

Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
Tel: 91227154 1895, Fax: +91 22 2495 5974

E-mail: investor_relations@zeelearn.com

Listing Fee:

Company has paid the Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2021-22 to the stock exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed (viz NSE &
BSE).

PAN & Change of Address

Members holding equity share in physical form are requested to notify the change of address/dividend mandate, if any, to the Company’s Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent, at the address mentioned above.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding Shares in dematerialized form are requested to submit their PAN, notify the change of address including e-mail address/ dividend
mandate, if any, to their respective Depository Participant (DP). Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN, notify the change of address
including e-mail address/ dividend mandate, if any, to the Company/ Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Share Transfer System

Equity Shares sent for physical transfer or for dematerialisation are generally registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of
completed and validly executed documents. Further, in compliance with Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 issued by SEBI, the Company has
ceased to accept physical transfer of shares w.e.f. April 12019, except in case of transmission of securities.

Dematerialisation of Equity Shares & Liquidity

To facilitate trading in demat form the Company has made arrangements with both the depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Shareholders may open account with any of the Depository Participant registered with any of these two
depositories. As on March 31, 2021, 32,59,09,627equity shares constituting 99.94% of the outstanding shares were held in dematerialized form. Entire
Equity shareholding of the promoters in Company is held in dematerialized form.
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17. Unclaimed Shares 21.  Share Capital Build-up
As per Regulation 39 of Listing Regulations, details in respect of the physical shares, which were issued pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and lying in Particulars No. of Shares issued Date of Issue
the Suspense account, is as under: :
Description NUmberar Number of Issuedto Subscribers 50,000 20.01.2010
shareholders Equity Shares Sub- Division of Shares from Rs. 10/- each to Re. 1/- each 5,00,000 22.01.2010
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense accountas Issued to ZEEL Shareholders pursuantto Scheme 12,22,38,599 14.10.2010
on April 1,2020 217 38879 Issued to Essel Entertainment Media Limited Shareholders pursuant to Scheme 14,00,00,000 01.07.2011
Fresh undelivered cases during the Financial Year 2020-2021 NIL NIL Allotment under ESOP 2,12,000 30.11.2012
Allotmentunder ESOP 59,650 13.03.2013
Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from suspense account - -
till March 31 , 2021 NIL NIL Global Dep08|tory Recelpt 5,61 ,79,770 21.05.2013
Allotmentunder ESOP 18,500 14.08.2013
Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense account
till March 31’2021 NIL NIL Allotmentunder ESOP 52,500 25.10.2013
Allotment under ESOP 54,700 30.01.2014
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account
lying as on March 31, 2021 217 38879 Allotment under ESOP 15,925 24.03.2014
Allotment under ESOP 30,200 12.05.2014
The voting rights on the Equity shares outstanding in the suspense account as on March 31, 2021 shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares Alotment under ESOP 28250 11.06.2014
claims the shares. : —
Allotment under ESOP 36,550 25.08.2014
18. Transfer of Unclaimed dividend/ Shares to Investor Education Protection Fund Allotment under ESOP 2.39.189 24.09.2014
Section 124 and Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Allotment under ESOP 1,35,950 07.10.2014
Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’) mandates that companies transfer dividend that has remained unclaimed for a period of seven years from unpaid dividend Allotment under ESOP 74663 29.10.2014
account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, the Rules mandate the transfer of shares with respect to the dividend, which has not
been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more to |EPF. Accordingly, the dividend for the years mentioned as follows will be transferred to the Allotment under ESOP 52,500 0212.2014
IEPF on the respective dates if the dividend remains unclaimed for seven years, and the corresponding shares will also be transferred to IEPF if dividend is Allotment under ESOP 15,488 02.01.2015
unclaimed for seven consecutive years. The shareholders are requested to claim the unclaimed dividend amount immediately in order to avoid the transfer Allotment under ESOP 18,975 11.02.2015
of shares o [EPF. Allotment under ESOP 37,688 23.03.2015
Year Type of Dividend D|V|der1((iinF’;)r Share Datt; ;n; i(:/?g?r::tlon Due Dattc(e)sI If;:)r Ftransfer Allotment under ESOP 64,788 30.04.2015
Allotment under ESOP 20,600 11.06.2015
2016-17 Interim 0.05 21.10.2016 20.11.2023 Allotment under ESOP 29,000 06.08.2015
2016-17 Final 0.05 28.09.2017 27.10.2024 Allotment under ESOP 33,535 24.09.2015
2017-18 Final 0.10 24.09.2018 23.10.2025 Allotment under ESOP 45,188 03.11.2015
2018-19 Final 0.10 26.09.2019 25.10.2026 Allotment under ESOP 85,799 09.12.2015
o . . . Allotment under ESOP 5,591 18.12.2015
Shareholders who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the previous years may approach with unencashed dividend warrants to the Company,
atits Corporate Office for revalidation /issue of duplicate dividend warrants. Allotmentunder ESOP 16,035 19.12.2015
Allotmentunder ESOP 1,22,289 21.12.2015
19. Shareholders’ Correspondence
Allotment under ESOP 52,004 19.01.2016
The Corrllpapy has aFtended to all the investors .gr'levana.es/ queries/ Ilnformatlon requests. It is the endeavor of the Company to reply to all letters/ Allotment under ESOP 62,294 04.02.2016
communications received from the shareholders within a period of 5 working days.
) . ) . Allotmentunder ESOP 16,035 10.02.2016
All correspondence may please be addressed to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at the address given above. In case any shareholder is not satisfied
with the response or do not get any response within reasonable period, they may approach the Investor Relations Officer at the address given above. Allotmentunder ESOP 49,106 01.09.2016
20. Outstanding Convertible Securities

There are no outstanding warrants or any other convertible instruments which are likely to impact the equity capital of the Company as on March 31, 2021.
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22.  Stock MarketData Relating to Shares Listed in India

Particulars No. of Shares issued Date of Issue
Monthly high and low quotations and volume of Equity Shares traded on BSE and NSE for the financial year 2020 - 2021:
Allotment under ESOP 78,906 26.09.2016
Allotment under ESOP 51,248 08.11.2016 Honth BSE NSE
onths
e o ot 0 e M0 0 et
Allotment under ESOP 64,025 16.01.2017 April 2020 16.14 11.46 26,32,593 16.25 11.40 1,26,02,000
Allotment under ESOP 1,21,269 20.01.2016 May 2020 14.40 12.00 6,10,517 14.45 11.70 1,10,89,000
Allotment under ESOP 2,49,993 02.02.2017 June 2020 20.00 16.19 45,69,697 19.80 11.90 3,84,69,000
Allotment under ESOP 3,14,650 14.02.2017 July 2020 16.50 13.20 28,38,212 16.55 13.40 1,81,65,000
Allotment under ESOP 24,723 20.02.2017 August2020 17.18 13.35 37,53,698 17.15 13.20 2,42,66,000
Allotment under ESOP 2,64,825 28.02.2017 September 2020 16.21 11.40 21,51,224 16.20 11.35 1,57,36,000
Allotment under ESOP 1,58,525 02.03.2017 October 2020 13.26 10.04 31,35,214 13.25 10.05 2,77,20,000
Allotment under ESOP 1,96,650 14.03.2017 November 2020 12.65 10.50 33,11,243 12.65 10.50 1,84,52,000
Allotment under ESOP 217,250 21.03.2017 December 2020 15.28 12.07 58,20,623 15.25 11.80 4,0710,000
Allotment under ESOP 1,37,500 23.03.2017 January 2021 14.46 12.00 19,07,073 14.45 11.90 1,29,41,000
Allotment under ESOP 1,06,850 27.03.2017 February 2021 12.75 11.46 9,67,549 12.80 11.35 7,51,8000
Allotment under ESOP 217,606 24.04.2017 March 2021 13.74 9.89 38,47,329 13.70 09.85 26,79,8000
Allotmentunder ESOP 6,00,000 25.04.2017
Allotment under ESOP 25,067 28.04.2017
Alotmentunder ESOP 20158 18.05.2017 23.  Relative Performance of the Equity Shares Vs. BSE Sensex & Nifty Index
Allotment under ESOP 14,806 25.05.2017 Months BSE NSE
Allotmentunder ESOP 245238 07.06.2017 Script @) $ & P BSE SENSEX ) Script @) S & P BSE SENSEX 3)
Allotment under ESOP 2,35,000 08.06.2017
Allotmentunder ESOP 3,11,190 19.07.2017 April 2020 13.61 33,717.62 13.60 9,859.90
Allotmentunder ESOP 20,400 21.07.2017 May 2020 12.00 32,4241 12.00 9,580.30
Allotmentunder ESOP 31,425 07.09.2017 June 2020 16.19 34.915.8 16.20 10,302.10
Allotmentunder ESOP 410,820 23.10.2017 July 2020 13.50 37,606.89 13.50 11,073.45
Allotmentunder ESOP 82,634 02.11.2017 August 2020 14.95 38,628.29 14.90 11,387.50
Allotmentunder ESOP 24,925 06.12.2017 September 2020 11.71 38,067.93 11.70 11,247.55
Allotment under ESOP 3,57,747 22.12.2017 October 2020 10.78 39,614.07 10.80 11,642.40
Allotmentunder ESOP 6,56,075 31.01.2018 November 2020 12.34 44,149.72 12.35 12,968.95
Allotmentunder ESOP 1,70,000 21.06.2018 December 2020 1355 47,751.33 13.55 13,981.75
Allotmentunder ESOP 13,253 29.11.2018 January 2021 12.10 46,285.77 12.10 13,634.60
Allotmentunder ESOP 14,000 08.08.2019 February 2021 11.73 49,099.99 11.75 14,529.15
Issue & Paid- up Capitalason 31.03.2021 32,60,92,725 March 2021 10.38 49,509.15 10.35 14,690.70
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24.  Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2021

BSE INDEX & MOVEMENT OF SCRIPT No. of Equity Shares Share Holders No. of Shares
Number % of Holders Number % of Capital
60,000 18
50.000 y_ N 16 Up to 500 95307 85.5569 7069837 2.168
, \/ 14 501 - 1000 6811 6.1142 5806123 1.7805
40,000 (VT 1001 - 2000 4088 3.6698 6446905 1.977
oD
N 30500 0 2001 - 3000 1618 14525 4194097 1.2862
2 8 i 3001 - 4000 759 0.6814 2742264 0.8409
|c-1|)J 20,000 6 % 4001 - 5000 796 0.7146 3815099 1.1699
D 40,000 ;' Q 5001 -10000 1108 0.9946 8528640 2.6154
0 0 10001 and Above 909 0.816 287489760 88.162
Total 111396 100 326092725 100
\Q’Q \Q’Q o o » » e > @9 0519 » ‘Qﬂ:\ \ﬂi\
WA AN W o T @
APRIL 20 - MARCH 21 25. Categories of Equity Shareholders as on March 31,2021
BSE INDEX SCRIPT As on March 31, 2021
Category
No. of shares held % of shareholding
Promoters 85331615 26.1679
Individuals 59547375 18.2609
Body Corporate 99803498 30.6059
NSE INDEX AND MOVEMENT OF SCRIPT Foreign Portfolio Investors 70432219 21.5988
Non Resident Indians 5219636 1.6007
16,000 18
15 Others 5758382 1.7659
14,000 /A Total 326092725 100.00
12,000 —\( 14 L
ﬁ 12 3 26. Particulars of Shareholding
) 10,000 0 <>(
= 8.000 — a) Promoter Shareholding as on March 31, 2021
L ' 8§ o
(£ 6,000 6 Ef) Sr.No. Name of Shareholder No of Shares held % of shareholding
w
4,000 4 1 Jayneer Infrapower & Multiventures Private Limited 19404227 5.95
2,000 2 2 Asian Satellite Broadcast Pvt. Ltd 24888250 7.63
0 0 3 Jayneer Enterprises LLP 40000 0.01
D N o R D D ) D D n n N 4 Essel Media Ventures Private Limited 12121036 3.72
\ $ ¢ x¢ \Y (¥ 4 X \
W @Q;\ O Y SR RN IV SR N 5 Sprit Infrapower & Multiventures Private Limited 3864 0.00
APRIL 20 - MARCH 21 (Formerly Sprit Textiles Pvt. Ltd.)
e NSE INDEX ==@= SCRIPT 6 Essel Infraprojects Limited 0.00 0.00
7 Essel Holdings Limited 28874238 8.85
Total 85331615 26.16
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Sr.No. Name of Shareholder No of Shares held % of shareholding
1 Moon capital trading Pte. Ltd. 20955327 6.4262
2 Rattanindia Finance Private Limited 20950000 6.4246
3 Polus Global Fund 20400000 6.2559
4 Indusind Bank Ltd. 17370000 5.3267
5 Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 15805000 4.8468
6 Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) PTE. - ODI 13804546 42333
7 LAnd T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited 12560000 3.8517
8 Land TFinance Ltd 9602667 2.9448
9 Copthall Mauritius Investment Limited - ODI Account 8105371 2.4856
10 Vlyoman Tradelink India Private Limited 4949506 1.5178

27. CreditRating

The creditratings during the financial year 2020-21 for Overdraft Term Loan of the Company from Brickworks are as follows:

Overdraft Term: Loan During the year the rating was changed from BWR BBB, Credit Watch with negative implications to BWR BB, Credit Watch with

Negative Implications Downgrade.
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Business Responsibility Report

As per Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

L80301MH2010PLC198405

2. Name of the Company . Zee Learn Limited

3. Registered Address

Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai — 400018

4. Website . www.zeelearn.com

5. Email id . investor_relations@zeelearn.com

6. Financial Year reported

April 1, 2020 — March 31, 2021

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-
wise):

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of Education Support
Servicesi.e. our service in core education segment, ranges from Preschool to
K-12 Schools and vocational education — NIC code of main products/Services
(2008) - 9992900.

8. Three key products/services that the Company manufactures/
provides (as in balance sheet):

The Company along with its subsidiaries ("Group”) is one of the most
diversified premium education Group which has made its presence felt in the
areas of core and supplementary education. The Group services in core
segment range from Preschools to K-12 Schools and vocational education.
Under Preschool, the Group has Kidzee, Ankurum and Mount Litera World
Preschool. Under the K-12 category the Group operates through Mount Litera
Zee School and Mount Litera School International, which provides
outstanding education through their holistic based curriculum. In the Higher
Education area, we are associated with the leading state private university in
Dehradun called the Himgiri Zee University.

The offerings under supplementary education range from vocational to test
preparation to tutorials. Mahesh Tutorials helps students with Secondary
Education & foundation courses for competitive exams. While brands
Lakshya, MT Science, MT Commerce, Mahesh PU College, Sri Gayatri
Academy help students with higher secondary education and entrance
exams.

In the areas of vocational and skilling, the offerings are towards getting
students industry ready. Zee Institute of Creative Art (ZICA), Zee Institute of
Media Arts (ZIMA) and Design Art (ZIDA) are premier Animation, VFX, Film
making, Journalism and design Institute with more than 20 years of
experience.

The Group also offers a Teacher Training Programme that help budding
teachers to deliver preschool programmes successfully for desired
developmental outcomes.

In the Training and manpower area, our offering Liberium provides innovative
and customized manpower solutions to corporates thereby helping them
focus on their core businessissues better.

9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by
the Company:

() Number of International locations:
5Kidzee Centersin Nepal

(i) Number of National Locations:
750+ forKidzee and 110 + for MLZS

10. Markets served by the Company:
Preschool, K-12, Vocational and Test-Prep

Section B:

FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY (STANDALONE OPERATIONS)
1. Paid up Capital : Rs.32,60,92,725

2. Total Revenue . Rs.12,031.62 Lakhs

3. Total Profitaftertaxes : Rs.1,658.50 Lakhs

4. Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as
percentage of Profit after tax (%):

The Company is engaged in Education Support Services, due to the nation-
wide lockdown on spread of COVID-19 and subsequently many significant
restrictions imposed by government on the general movement and operation
of the Education Support Systems, the education sector has suffered a drastic
impactleading to a directimpact on the Company.

Annual Report 2020-21 | 89



Z sl

GROUP

Though the Company is able to realize profit during the COVID -19 period, it
has been facing an extreme situation of inadequate cash flows and the result
of which the Company was only able to spend CSR expenditure for the year
2018-19 and not been able to spend the CSR Expenditure for further years in
any projects, nor the Company has been able to transfer the amount
pertaining to unspent CSR amount in compliance with sub section (5) or (6) of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company is
continuously monitoring current indicators of future economic conditions and
expects full recoverability of its projected cash flow which will have sufficient
liquidity to pay CSR expenditure in near future.

5. Listofactivities in which expenditure in 4 above has beenincurred:
Nil

SECTIONC:

OTHERDETAILS

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/Companies?

As at March 31, 2021, the Company has 3 wholly owned subsidiaries,
namely Digital Ventures Private Limited; Academia Edificio Private Limited
and Liberium Global Resources Private Limited, one subsidiary MT Educare
Limited and seven step down subsidiaries.

2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR
initiatives of the parent Company? If yes, then indicate the number of
such subsidiary company(s).

No. As of now, the subsidiary companies are not engaged in BR initiatives
process of the Company.
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3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the
Company does business with participate in the BR initiatives of the
Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity /entities
(Less than 30 %, 30-60%, More than 60%):

No, other business partners of the Company do not directly participate in the
Company’s BR initiatives. The Company endeavors to encourage its
franchisees/suppliers/distributors (wherever possible) to participate in the
initiative towards BR and to adopt practices which would help them to carry out
businessin fairmanner.

SECTIOND:
BRINFORMATION
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR:

a) Details of the Director/Directors responsible for implemen-
tation of the BR policy/policies:

Z s

Management Report
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2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies

Sr.

No.

a. Details of Compliance (Reply in Y/N)

Public &

Regulatory CSR
Policy

Business Product Employee Shareholders Human Environment

Questions Ethics Responsibility Wellbeing Engagement Rights Protection

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Do you have a Policy/
policies for Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Has the Policy been formulated

in consultation with the relevant Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Stakeholders?

Does policy conform to any
national/ international standard

Policies are prepared ensuring adherence to applicable regulatory requirements and industry standards

Has the policy been approved  Policies mandated under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are approved by
by the board? If yes has it been the Board and other policies are approved by CEO

signed by MD/ CEO/

appropriate Board Director?

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1 DIN Number 02725365
2 Name Ritesh Handa
3 Designation CEO &Director
4 Telephone Number +91227154 1895
5 Email Id compliances@zeelearn.com

Does the Company have a
specified committee of the Board/

Director/ Official to oversee Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
implementation of the policy?

Most of the relevant policies are disseminated and uploaded for information of relevant stakeholders and
employees either on Company'’s intranet site or on corporate website. Mandatory policies viz. CSR policy,
Insider Trading Policy, Code of Conduct, Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy etc are available on
Company’s website www.zeelearn.com

Indicate the link for the policy to
be viewed online

Has the policy been formally
communicated to all relevant
internal and external
stakeholders?

Yes, wherever applicable

Does the Company have in
house structure to implement
the policy

Yes

Does the Company have a

grievance redressal mechanism

related to the policy to address Yes
stakeholders grievances related

to the policy?

Has the Company carried out
independent audit/ evaluation of
the working of this policy by an
internal or external agency?

Yes
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b. Ifanswertothe question at Sr. No 1 against any principle, is “No”, please explain why:

Public &

Sr. . Employee Shareholders Human Environment Customer
No. Questions Responsibility Wellbeing Engagement Rights Protection Reg::f:; W CSRRelation
P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1 The Company has not
" understood the principles
9 The Company is not at a
" stage where it finds itself in
a position to formulate and
implement the policies on
specified principles
The Company does not
3 have financial or manpower Not Applicable
" resources available for the
task
Itis planned to be done
4. within next six month
Itis planned to be done
5. within next one year
5 Any other reason (Please

specify)

3. Governancerelatedto BR
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The BRreportis/shall be available as part of Annual Report on www.zeelearn.com

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO assesses the BR performance of the Company. Within 3
months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year -

The overall BR performance of the Company is accessed annually by the Management/Board of Directors and its committees, while the varied aspects of BR
performance of each department/unit are assessed by the respective department/units heads on a regular basis. The Business Responsibility Report being
published by the Company as part of the Annual Report. The Report can also be accessed at company’s website at www.zeelearn.com.

Does the Company publish a BR or sustainability Report? What is hyperlink for viewing this report? How frequently it is published?
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SECTIONE: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1:

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics,
Transparency and Accountability

A company’s governance practices have a direct bearing on its sustainable
growth. Ethics and transparency are fundamental pillars which underline our
business activities. As a responsible organization, the Company does its
business with utmost integrity and adheres to best governance practices. The
Company’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management
Executives serves as a guiding tool and ensures that principles get translated
into consistent practice, thereby leading the Company towards high
standards of business conduct.

A Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism is also in place which provides a
channel to the employees and Directors to report to the management,
promptly and directly, the concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or any irregularity in the practices or violation of the
Company’s codes and policies. The Code, policies and standards
communicate our zero tolerance approach to ethical violations, and
communicate our commitment and requirement for legal compliance and
ethical good practice.

To ensure that all employees are well-versed with the Code, a mandatory
training is provided for new recruits, and refresher workshops on anti-
corruption policies and procedures are conducted for all the employees at
various levels.

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only
the Company? Yes/No. Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/ Contractors/NGOs/ Others?

The policies are applicable to the employees at all levels, including
subsidiaries. Though the Company’s policies do not apply to external
stakeholders including suppliers, contractors, NGOs etc., the Company
follows zero tolerance on any acts of bribery, corruption etc. by such
agencies during their dealings with the Company and or with any of its
employees.

2. How many stakeholders’ complaints have been received in the past
financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the
management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

As mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report, zero complaint was
received from Shareholders during FY 2020-21. Additionally, on an
ongoing basis the complaints/grievances/views/suggestions from all
stakeholders are dealt with by respective functions within the Company.
During the financial year, no complaints were received from any of the
Company’s stakeholders on ethics, transparency and accountability.

Management Report

Principle 2:

Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and
contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle

The Company’s business is in compliance with applicable regulations
issued by various regulatory authority from time to time.

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incor-
porated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or
opportunities.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing Education Support
Services across India, and it addresses social and environmental concerns.

2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of
resource use (energy, water, raw materials etc.) per unit of product
(optional) including

a) Reduction during sourcing/production/distribution
throughout the value chain and

b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has
been achieved since the previous year?

Considering nature of business of the Company the said questions are
not applicable to the Company.

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for sustainable
sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, what percentage of your
inputs was sourced sustainably?

Since the Company is not involved in the manufacturing activity, the
reporting on sustainable sourcing is not applicable.

4. Has Company taken any steps to procure goods and services from
local and small producers, including communities surrounding
their place of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to improve
the capacity and capability of local and small vendors

The Company wherever practically possible procure goods and services
fromlocal and small producers, which has contributed to their growth.

5. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products and
waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products and
waste. (Separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Since the Company is not involved in the manufacturing activity, it does
not discharge any effluent or waste. However mindful of the need for
recycling products and waste, the Company has been directing its efforts
inreducing use of plastic bottles, recycling used plastic bottles etc.

Annual Report 2020-21 | 93



Principle 3:

Business should promote the well-being of all employees

1.

2,

Please indicate the total number of employees: 253

Please indicate the total number of employees hired on temporary/
contractual /casual basis: 27

Please indicate the number of permanent women employees: 86
Please indicate number of permanent employees with disabilities: Nil

Do you have employee association that is recognized by
management?

The Company does not have an employee association. However,
mechanismiis in place for employees to represent their issues, if any, and
the same is resolved amicably.

What percentage of your permanent employees are members of this
recognized employee association? :

Not Applicable

Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour,
forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the last
financial year and pending as on the end of the financial year.

During the year under review, the Company had not received any
complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour,
sexual harassment atworkplace.

What percentage of your above-mentioned employees were given
safety and skill up-gradation training in the last year?

The Company organizes various training sessions in-house on a regular
basis for its employees and also sponsors its employees to attend training
sessions organized by external professional bodies to facilitate
upgradation of skill, of employees handling relevant functions.

Principle 4:

Businesses should respect interest of, and be responsive towards all
stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized

1.

Has the Company mapped its internal and external shareholders?
Yes. The Company has identified students, recruiters, franchise partners,
suppliers, vendors, landlords, employees, regulatory bodies, shareholders
and community at large, including the disadvantage groups and vulnerable
sectors like children/women and the civil society asiits stakeholders
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2. Out of the above, has the Company identified the disadvantaged,
vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders?

Yes, the Company has identified and is responsive towards the needs of
all its stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable
and marginalized.

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company to engage
with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders?
If so, provide details thereof

No
Principle 5:
Business should respect and promote human rights

As a socially responsible organization, the Company is committed to
protect and safeguard human rights. The Company has adopted several
policies viz. Code of Conduct, Policy against Sexual harassment, Whistle
Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy etc which ensures that there is no
violation of human rights inits conduct externally or internally.

1. Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover only the
Company or extend to the Group/Joint ventures/ suppliers/
contractors/ NGOs/Others?

The Company has put in place a Code of Conduct and expect its
stakeholders to adhere and uphold the standards contain therein.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past

financial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved by the
Management?

There were no complaints reported on violation of any human rights
during the financial year 2020-21.

Principle 6:

Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the
Environment

The Company’s business of providing Education Support Services have
minimal impact on the environment.

1. Does the policy related to principle 6 cover only the Company or
extend to the Group/Joint ventures/ suppliers/ contractors/ NGOS/
Others?

The Company’s environmental, health and safety policy extends to all
employees and group companies.
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2. Does the Company have strategies/initiatives to address global

environmental issues such as climate change, global warming,
etc.? YIN. Ifyes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

No

3. Does the company identify and assess potential environmental
risks? YIN
No

4. Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development
Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof in about 50 words or so.
Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report s filed?
No

5. Has Company undertaken any other initiatives on - clean
technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy etc? YIN. If yes,
please give hyperlink to web page etc.
No

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company within
permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being
reported?
Notapplicable

7. Number of show cause/legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB
which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as of end of
financial year.
Nil

Principle 7:

Business, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy,
should do soinaresponsible manner

1.

Is your Company a member of any trade and chambers or
association? If yes, name only those major ones that your business
deals with.

No

Management Report

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for

advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/No; If yes,
specify the broad areas

No

Principle 8:

Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable
development

CSRatZee Learnis all about creating sustainable programs, that actively
contribute to and support the social and economic development of the
society. In line with this intent, your Company has adopted a unified
approach towards CSR at Essel Group level.

Does the Company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects
in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 82

CSR activities at Zee Learn are primarily focused on Education, Health
Care, Women Empowerment and Sports as per the CSR Policy of the
Company.

Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/
own foundation/ external NGO/government structures/any other
organisation?

The CSR programmes/projects at Zee Learn are undertaken as per the
CSR policy of the Company.

Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

The CSR activities are placed before the CSR Committee for its review
and assessment.

What is Company’s direct contribution to community development
projects-Amount in INR and the details of the projects undertaken?

Refer details of CSR contributions in the Annual report on CSR forming
part of this Annual Report.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development
initiative is successfully adopted by the community?

Yes
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Principle 9:

Business should engage with and provide value to their customers and
consumers in aresponsible manner

The Company is committed to providing the best learning experience to
its students and fulfilling the business needs of its franchise partners to
the utmost level. All activities of the Company are targeted to provide
value toits customers.

1. What percentage of customer complaints/ consumer cases are
pending as on the end of financial year?

There are no consumer cases / customer complaints outstanding as on
the end of financial year.

2. Does the Company display product information on the product
label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws?

Information is furnished as per applicable local laws
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Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the Company
regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising and or
anticompetitive behavior during the last five years and pending as
of end of financial year?

None

Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/consumer
satisfaction trends?

The Company has dedicated customer service department to monitor
and address consumer issues and resolve them.

Z Management Report

Certification on Financial Statements of the Company

We, the undersigned, in our capacities as the "Chief Executive Officer" and "Chief Financial Officer" of Zee Learn Limited ("the Company"}, certify that:

1.

We have reviewed the Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

()  These Statementdo not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(i) - These Statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021 which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct;

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation
of suchinternal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies;

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that during the year:

()  Therehasnotbeen significant changes in internal control over financial reporting;
(i) There have notbeen any significant changes in accounting policies; and

(i) There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we are aware that involve the management or other employees, having significant role in
the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Ritesh Handa Rakesh Agarwal

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Date : June29,2021
Place : Mumbai
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2 Financial Statement

Independent Auditor’s Report on standalone financial statements

To

The Members of
Zee Learn Limited

1.

Qualified opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Zee Learn Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
March 2021, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the
‘Basis for qualified opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the CompaniesAct, 2013
(“the Act’) inthe manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
thatdate.

Basis for qualified opinion

As stated in note 53 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has non-current investment in its subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited
(MTEL) with a carrying value at cost of Rs. 27,812.22 lakhs. MTEL on a consolidated basis has a positive net worth as at 31 March 2021. Further as explained
in the said note, the Company, due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid-19 pandemic situation and the uncertainty connected to it, has not been able to
carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment of the asset in accordance with the principles of Indian Accounting standard — 36 “Impairment of Assets”
and hence no adjustments have been considered by the Company to the carrying value of this non-currentinvestment as at 31 March, 2021. In the absence of
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence by way of such detailed and comprehensive assessment due to the current COVID-19 pandemic situation, we are
unable to comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of this non-current investment on the standalone financial statements.

The audit report for the previous year ended 31 March 2020, which was audited by the predecessor auditor, was also qualified in respect of this matter.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Ourresponsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the standalone financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

a) Wedrawattention to note 33 to the standalone financial statements regarding the Company’s investments and loan amounting to Rs 51,729.39 lakhs in
its wholly owned subsidiary viz Digital Ventures Private Limited (DVPL) outstanding as at 31 March 2021. As stated in the said note, the Company has
carried out valuation of assets in DVPL by an independent agency and based on such valuation report the fair value of assets is more than the
investments and loan made by the Company. Accordingly, the management considers that no impairment is required to the said investments and loan
outstanding as at 31 March 2021.
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b) We draw attention to note 46 to the standalone financial statements that state that the management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on

the Company's operations, financial performance, and position as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021. Further, as stated in the said note, the Company
has made necessary provisions under the Expected Credit Loss model and concluded that there is no further impact which is required to be recognized in the
standalone financial statements. However, the extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company's result is dependent upon future
developments and the Company is monitoring the rapidly evolving situation and its potential impacts on the Company's financial position.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

a) Assessment of going concern basis (Refer note 2A(a)(ii)) to the standalone financial statements

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused an impact on the business operations of the Company and its financial health. Further, during the year, the credit
rating of Company’s borrowings has been downgraded and further its currentliabilities exceeded its current assets as at 31 March 2021.

While the above factors indicated a need to assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, as mentioned in aforesaid note, the Company
has taken into consideration the following mitigating factors in its assessment for going concern basis of accounting.

+ The Companyis in talks with its stakeholders like vendors to renegotiate the prices in order to decrease its costs thereby improving its margin.

+ The Company is discussing with its lenders to restructure its debt and avail moratorium so that it can conserve cash so as toimprove its cash flows.

+ The Company has undertaken several cost rationalisation measures and cut its fixed cost like employee cost, rent, warehousing & transport, etc to
improve its margins.

+ The Company has also undertaken several initiatives like blended learning program for its business partners in KIDZEE as well as MLZS so that the
education of children is not hindered.

Management has prepared future cash flow forecasts taking into cognizance the above developments and performed sensitivity analysis of the key
assumptions used therein to assess whether the Company would be able operate as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date of
the standalone financial statements, and concluded that the going concern basis of accounting used for preparation of the accompanying financial
statements is appropriate with no material uncertainty.

We have considered the assessment of management’s evaluation of going concern basis of accounting as a key audit matter due to the pervasive impact
thereof on the standalone financial statements and the significant judgements and assumptions that are inherently subjective and dependent on future
events, involved in preparation of cash flow projections and determination of the overall conclusion by the management.

Auditor’s Response
Our audit procedures included but were not limited to, the following in relation to assessment of appropriateness of going concern basis of accounting:

+  Obtained an understanding of the management's process for identifying all the events or conditions that could impact the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the process followed to assess the mitigating factors for such events or conditions. Also, obtained an understanding around the
methodology adopted and the associated controls implemented by the Company to assess their future business performance to prepare a robust cash
flow forecast;

+  Reviewed the cash flow forecast and considered the same to check whether the Company will be able to meet its financial obligations falling due within
next twelve months;

+  Tested the appropriateness of key assumptions used by the management, including the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on such assumption, that had
most materialimpactin preparation of the cash flow forecast;

+  Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the disclosures made in the standalone financial statements in respect of going concern.
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b) Revenue recognition and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of revenues and other related balances in view of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts

with Customers”

+ Sales are recognized when the control of the goods and services is transferred to the customer.

+ Revenue is recognized at the amount that reflects the considerations to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to customer.

* Revenueis recognized over a time or pointin time.

+ The Company focuses on revenue as a key performance measure which could create an incentive for revenue to be recognized before the control.

Auditor’s Response

We assessed the Company’s process of identifying the revenue accounting.
Ourauditapproach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:
+ Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) pertaining to revenue.

+ Assessing the application of Company’s accounting policies over revenue recognition and comparing the Company’s accounting policies with revenue
recognition with applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

+ Identifying the nature of the revenues and identification of any unusual contract terms.

+ Testing the revenue recognized including testing of Company’s control on revenue recognition, when applicable. Our testing included tracing the
information to agreements and payments.

+ Assessing the revenue recognized with substantive analytical procedures, and

+ Assessing the Company’s disclosure on revenue recognition.

Our procedures did notidentify any material exceptions.

Information other than the standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board Report and Chairman’s Statement but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
auditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Management’s responsibility for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
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effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under Section 143(3)(i) if the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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8. Othermatter

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the previous year ended 31 March 2020 were audited by the predecessor auditor who has
expressed a modified opinion on those standalone financial statements vide their report dated 07 October 2020.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,
we give inthe “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and except for the possible effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ section, obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) Exceptforthe possible effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ section, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of
changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ section, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended:;

e) The matter described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

f)  Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31 March 2021 and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’
paragraph above;

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
referto our separate Reportin “Annexure B;

i) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197 (16) of the act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

j)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial statements;
ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts having any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. ~There are no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year.

ForFord Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336

Mumbai, 29 June 2021

UDIN: 215336AAAADL7811
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 9(1Il) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the

Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Vi.

Vii.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management and as informed, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As informed, no
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act,
inrespect of loans given and investments made and guarantees and securities provided during the year.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and rules thereunder. We
have broadly reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have
not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and explanations given to us:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and others as applicable have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities except significant
delays in depositing advance income tax, taxes deducted at source and goods and service tax. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
aforesaid dues outstanding as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, duty of customs and duty of excise which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The disputed
dues of service tax, sales tax and value added tax which have not been deposited are as under:
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viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues payable to government and
Name of the Statute Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where dispute is pending financial institution. The Company has defaulted in repayment of following loans or borrowings to banks and debenture holders during the year, which were
the Dues (In lakhs) amount relate .
paid on or before the balance sheet date.
The Central Sales Sales Tax 49.95 F.Y. 2005 - 2006 Deputy Commissioner of o
Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax, Appeals Sr. No. Princiole Interest
- — Amount Period of delays Amount Period of delays
Sales Tax 90.81 F.Y.2010 - 2011 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax (Rs. in lakhs) (in days) (Rs. in lakhs) (in days)
Sales Tax 50.49 F.Y.2012 - 2013 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax 1 Debentures 117 1
The Maharashtra Value Value Added Tax 74.64 F.Y. 2005 - 2006 Deputy Commissioner of 2. Loan from Banks
Added Tax Act, 2002 Sales Tax , Appeals DCB Bank Limited 67.64 1-38 155.14 1-34
Value Added Tax - 46.55 Yes Bank 98.72 16-30 116.86 16-30
Penalty
Value Added Tax 42.85 F.Y. 2010 - 2011 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax x.  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
Value Added Tax 41.08 F.Y.2012- 2013 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of any such case by the Management.
- - . . . xi. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
Name of the Statute Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where dispute is pending fioni " ithih it | dated by th . ¢ Section 197 read with Schedule Vo the Act
ST (In lakhs) R remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
— Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
Finance Act 1994 Service Tax 17.90 F.Y 2009 - 2010 to Central Excise and Service applicable toit
F.Y. 2011- 2012 . Tax Appellate Tribunal . ' . . . . o . . .
Service Tax 19.49 FY 2007 - 2008 to Central Excise and Service xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
F.Y. 2010 - 2011 Tax Appellate Tribunal are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
Service Tax 11.51 F.Y 2007 - 2008 to Central Excise and Service required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.
FY 2012 - 2013 Tax Appellate Tribunal xiv. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
Service tax 512.33 F.Y.2011-2012 to Central Excise and Service ; : ;
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
FY. 2014 -2015 Tax Appellate Tribunal privalep iy or parfly convert uresuring ey
Service Tax - Penalty 553.97 xv. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into non-cash
Service Tax 602.73 F.Y. 2016 - 2017 to Commissioner of Central Goods transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
F.Y.2017-2018 and Service Tax xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934.

For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336

Mumbai, 29 June 2021
UDIN: 215336AAAADL7811
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in
paragraph 9(ll)(h) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
allmaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Basis for qualified opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been identified in the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting as at 31 March 2021:

The Company’s internal financial control with regard to evaluation of the carrying values of its investment in and loan given to its subsidiaries in compliance with
the applicable Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) were not operating effectively, as the Company could not carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment
of such investment/loan as per the applicable Ind AS due to the prevailing Covid-19 pandemic (as fully explained in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ of our main
report), which could result in the Company not providing for adjustments, if any, that may be required to be made and its consequential impact on the standalone
financial statements.

A ‘material weakness'’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in
the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragraph above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of
31March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, and the material weakness has affected our opinion on the
standalone financial statements of the Company and we have issued a Qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements.

For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336

Mumbai, 29 June 2021

UDIN: 215336AAAADL7811
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P
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(% lakhs)
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 426.06 603.98
(b) Right-of-use asset 4 1,216.12 1,913.55
(c) Investment property 5 5.85 5.85
(d) Intangible assets 6 114.01 154.29
(e) Intangible assets under development 6 12.20 12.61
(f) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7 50,603.80 50,602.76

(ii) Loans 8 18,467.12 15,724.46

(iii) Other financial assets 9 172.31 218.10
(9) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 642.99 503.57
(h) Non-current tax assets (net) 1 5.43 174.85
(i) Other non-current assets 12 111.52 121.87
Total non-current assets ,777.41 70,035.89
Current assets
(a) Inventories 13 1,065.78 1,769.93
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 14 9,572.00 9,572.00

(if) Trade receivables 15 1,578.89 1,800.30

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 16 (A) 86.85 107.32

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 16 (B) 59.43 57.12

(v) Other financial assets 9 1,147.25 983.93
(c) Other current assets 12 169.70 202.02
Total current assets 13,679.90 14,492.62
Total Assets 85,457.31 84,528.51
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Equity share capital 17 3,260.93 3,260.93
(b) Other equity 18 46,358.84 44,492.12
Total Equity 49,619.77 47,753.05
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 19 11,064.53 11,508.25

(ii) Lease liabilities 20 1,133.60 1,486.86

(iii) Other financial liabilities 21(B) 697.04 738.76
(b) Provisions 22 191.76 196.88
(c) Other liabilities 23 5,936.01 6,911.52
Total non-current liabilities 19,022.94 20,842.27
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 19 4,361.74 4,384.66

(ii) Lease liabilities 20 223.69 549.70

(iii) Trade payables 21 (A)

(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 953.46 578.54
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 990.45 1,098.11

(iv) Other financial liabilities 21(B) 6,900.00 4,483.84
(b) Other current liabilities 23 2,914.46 4,578.24
(c) Provisions 22 33.85 30.51
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 24 436.95 229.59
Total current liabilities 16,814.60 15,933.19
Total Liabilities 35,837.54 36,775.46
Total Equity and Liabilities 85,457.31 84,528.51
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 1-54
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the board
For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089

Nanette D'sa Surender Singh

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336
Ritesh Handa
Chief Executive Officer
Place : Mumbai
Date :29 June 2021
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Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(% lakhs)
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income
Revenue from operations 25 9,031.07 19,437.24
Otherincome 26 3,000.55 2,393.32
Total Income 12,031.62 21,830.56
Expenses
Operational cost 27 1,820.64 3,364.82
Employee benefits expense 28 2,483.94 3,058.86
Finance costs 29 2,585.70 2,451.91
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 771.62 872.08
Otherexpenses 31 2,086.15 2,967.49
Total Expenses 9,748.05 12,715.16
Profit before tax 2,283.57 9,115.40
Less : Tax expense
Currenttax 32 771.57 2,288.89
Deferred tax charge / (credit) (146.50) (35.41)
Total Tax Expense 625.07 2,253.48
Profit for the year (A) 1,658.50 6,861.92
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurementgain/(loss) on defined benefit plan 28.14 (18.09)
Income tax effect on above (7.08) 4.64
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (B) 21.06 (13.45)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 1,679.56 6,848.47
Earnings per equity share (face value ¥ 1 each) 47
Basic (%) 0.51 2.10
Diluted (}) 0.51 2.10
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 1-54
As perour attached report of even date Forand on behalf of the board
For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089
Nanette D'sa Surender Singh
Director Director

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336
Ritesh Handa
Chief Executive Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date :29June2021

DIN-05261531 DIN-08206770

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Anil Gupta
Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

(% lakhs)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Cash flow from operating activities

A. Equity share capital Note (%Lakhs)
Balance as at 01 April 2019 17 3,260.79
Changes in equity share capital 17(a) 0.14
Balance as at 31 March 2020 17 3,260.93
Changes in equity share capital 17(a) -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,260.93
B. Other equity (X Lakhs)
Reserves and surplus
Securities Debenture Share options General Retained Total other
premium redemption  outstanding reserve earnings equity
reserve account
Balance as at 01 April 2019 12,522.38 1,218.75 560.43 13,971.80 9,741.93 38,015.29
Profit for the year - - - - 6,861.92 6,861.92
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined
benefit plans (net of tax) - (13.45) (13.45)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 6,848.47 6,848.47
12,522.38 1,218.75 560.43 13,971.80 16,590.40 44,863.76
Transferred from retained earnings - 203.13 (203.13) -
Dividend paid - - (326.09) (326.09)
Dividend distribution tax paid - - (67.03) (67.03)
Exercise of shares options 463 (1.85) - 2.78
Share based payment expense (net) - - 18.70 - - 18.70
Balance as at 31 March 2020 12,527.01 1,421.88 577.28 13,971.80 15,994.15 44,492.12
Profit for the year - - - - 1,658.50 1,658.50
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined
benefit plans (net of tax) - 21.06 21.06
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,679.56 1,679.56
12,527.01 1,421.88 577.28 13,971.80 17,673.71 46,171.68
Share based payments
- Share based payment expense (net) - - 187.16 - 187.16
- Transferred to retained earnings on lapse of vested options - - (50.59) 50.59 -
- - 136.57 - 50.59 187.16
Balance as at 31 March 2021 12,527.01 1,421.88 713.85 13,971.80 17,724.30 46,358.84

B w N -~
= =

Securities premiumis used to record premium on issue of shares. Itis utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
Debenture redemption reserve created out of the profits is for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
Share options outstanding account is related to share options granted by the Company to its employee under its employee share option plan.
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General Reserve includes I/Lakhs 8,881.25

(Z/Lakhs 8,881.25) pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation, sanctioned by the Hon'ble Court of Bombay and shall not be used for the purpose of declaring

dividend.

5) Retained eamings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the Company over the years.

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29June2021
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Forand on behalf of the board

Ritesh Handa

Chief Executive Officer

Nanette D'sa
Director
DIN-05261531

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Surender Singh

Director

DIN-08206770

Anil Gupta

Company Secretary

Net profit before tax 2,283.57 9,115.40
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 771.62 872.08
Liabilities no longer required / excess provision written back (199.38) (88.02)
Share based payment expense 187.16 18.70
Net gain on Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - (4.21)
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets 17.03 0.67
Interest expense 2,583.30 2,447.78
Allowances for credit losses 621.69 242.21
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets 35.84 4.07
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs 6.26 6.26
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 333.65 378.64
Dividend income (0.01) (0.01)
Interest income (2,009.66) (1,461.45)
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,631.07 11,532.12
Changes in working capital :

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 704.15 (455.45)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables (483.20) 202.84
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables (2,832.66) (1,064.35)
Cash generated from operations 2,019.36 10,215.16
Income tax paid (net) (394.79) (2,091.94)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 1,624.57 8,123.22

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets / capital work-in-progress (46.27) (346.31)
Proceed from/(Investments) in deposits with bank (2.81) 0.40
Purchase of current investments - (1,000.00)
Sale of current investments - 1,000.00
Loans given to subsidiary companies (2,090.49) (6,364.71)
Receipt of loans given to subsidiary companies 1,202.84 1,094.21
Loans given to others - (83.90)
Dividend received (0.02) -
Interest received 150.78 160.07
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (785.97) (5,540.24)
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

(X lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium) - 2.92
Proceeds from non-current borrowings (Refer note 5 below) 1,470.47 5,755.00
Repayment of non-current borrowings (Refer note 5 below) (861.17) (3,839.57)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest) (591.02) (696.91)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) - (393.12)
Interest paid (877.35) (4,271.78)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (859.07) (3,443.46)
Net cash flow during the year (A+B+C) (20.47) (860.48)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 107.32 967.80
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 86.85 107.32
Add : Balances earmarked 59.43 57.12
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 146.28 164.44

Notes (%lakhs)
1. Component of cash and bank balances as follows 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 86.85 107.32
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 59.43 57.12
Total 146.28 164.44

2. Asrequired by Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, a reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising
from financing activities is given in note 52.

3. The above statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on "Cash Flow Statements".
The impact of non-cash transactions have not been given in the above statement of cash flows, details of which are given in note 52

5. Proceeds from and repayments of non-current borrowings include I/lakhs 1,470.47 and I/lakhs 746.88 respectively, relating to wholly owned
subsidiary.

6. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary.

As perour attached report of even date Forand on behalf of the board

ForFord Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089 Nanette D'sa Surender Singh
Director Director
Nitin Jain DIN-05261531 DIN-08206770
Partner
Membership Number 215336
Ritesh Handa Rakesh Agarwal Anil Gupta
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29June2021
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

1 Corporate Information

Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company”) was incorporated in State of
Maharashtra on 4 January, 2010. The Company is one of the most
diversified premium education companies which delivers learning
solutions and training through its multiple products viz. Kidzee, Mount
Litera Zee Schools, Mount Litera World Preschool, Zee Institute of
MediaArts (ZIMA), Zee Institute of Creative Arts (ZICA) and E - Learning
Online Education and Testing.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2021, were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 29 June 2021.

2 A Basis of preparation and Other significant accounting policies

a Basis of preparation

)

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as and when amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there under
and guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI).

These standalone financial statements have been prepared and
presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies stated out
below.

Going concern

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused an impact on the business
operations of the Company and its financial health. Further, during
the year, the credit rating of Company’s borrowings has been
downgraded and also its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets as at 31 March 2021. However, the standalone financial
statements of Company have been prepared on going concern
basis based on the future business potentials and mitigating
factors adopted which are as follows:

The Company is in talks with its stakeholders like vendors to
renegotiate the prices in order to decrease its costs thereby
improving its margin.

The Company is discussing with its lenders to restructure its debt
and avail moratorium so that it can conserve cash so as to improve
its cash flows.

The Company has undertaken several cost rationalisation
measures and cut its fixed cost like employee cost, rent,
warehousing and transport, etc toimprove its margins.

i)

The Company has also undertaken several initiatives like blended
learning program for its business partners in KIDZEE as well as
Mount Litera Zee School (MLZS) so that the education of children
is not hindered.

Management has prepared future cash flow forecasts taking into
cognizance the above developments and performed sensitivity
analysis of the key assumptions used therein to assess whether
the Company would be able operate as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from the date of financial
statements, and concluded that the going concern basis of
accounting used for preparation of the accompanying standalone
financial statements is appropriate with no material uncertainty.

Functional and Presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees , whichis also the company's functional currency.

All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule Il (except per share data), unless
otherwise stated. Zero '0.00' denotes amount less than ¥ 500/-.

iv) Current non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current
as per the company’s normal operating cycle (twelve months) and
other criteria setoutinthe Schedule lll to the Act.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

Freehold land is carried at cost. Other property, plant and
equipment acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful life. The carrying
amount of the replaced part accounted for as a separate asset
previously is derecognised. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plantand equipment as a replacementif the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
standalone statement of profit and loss when incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if
the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and
equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the reporting date.
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Investment property

Investment property is land held for capital appreciation. Investment
property is measured initially at cost including purchase price. It is
measured and carried at cost.

Intangible assets / Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets acquired or developed are measured on initial
recognition at cost and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss, if any. Expenditure incurred on acquisition /
development of intangible assets which are not put/ready to use at the
reporting date is disclosed under intangible assets under development.

Depreciation / amortisation on property, plant and equipment /
intangible assets

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment / intangible
assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less
its estimated residual value.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (except freehold land
which is stated at cost) is provided on straight-line method as per the
useful life prescribed in Schedule |1 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of Lease or
useful life of asset, whichever is lower.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over their
respective individual useful life estimated by the management. The
useful life ofintangible assets are 3 years.

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment/intangible assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If there are indicators of
impairment, an assessment is made to determine whether the asset’s
carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unitto which the assetbelongs.

An impairment is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of net selling price, defined as the fair value less costs to sell, and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market rates and risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit are
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reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount since the lastimpairment loss was recognised and
is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised..

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment / intangibles /
investment property

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment /
intangibles / investment property is derecognised on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The
gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment/ intangibles is measured as the difference between the
net disposal in proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the item
is derecognised.

Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for
building premises. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a
right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in which itis a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For
these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate
the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The lease liability is initially
measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicitin the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

(i) Operating lease / Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of rented premises (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

(i)  Cashand cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(i) For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and on hand, short-
term deposits and balances earmarked, as defined as they are
considered an integral part of company's cash management.

Inventories

Educational goods and equipments are valued at lower of cost or
estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises cost of purchase, freight
and other expense incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Costs are taken on weighted average basis and
specific identification method.

k

Fair value measurement

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Allfinancial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorised within
thefair value hierarchy, described as follows, based onthe lowestlevelinput
thatis significantto the fair value measurementas awhole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, or

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurementis unobservable.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of a fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

Financial assets are recognized when the company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the standalone
statement of profitand loss.
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(A) Financial assets
(1) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
amortised cost, financial assets ‘at Fair value through profit and loss'
(FVTPL), ‘Fair value through other comprehensive income' (FVTOCI).
The classification depends on the Company's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of cash flows.

(i) Debtinstrument
(a) Amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of
the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets.

b)  The asset's contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the standalone statement of profit and loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OClI is reclassified from the equity to standalone
statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
Effactive Interest Rate (EIR) method.

(c) Fairvalue through Profitand Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL s a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
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instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect
to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However,
such election is considered only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency

(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are

measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
standalone statement of profitand loss.

(i) Equity investments

The Company measures equity investments other than its
subsidiaries at fair value through profit and loss. Where the
Company's management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to standalone
statement of profitand loss. Dividends from such investments
are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss as
other income when the Company's right to receive payment is
established.

(iii) Investmentin subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
impairment loss in accordance with IND AS 27 on "Separate
Financial Statements".

(2) Derecognition of financial assets
Afinancial assetis derecognised only when

a) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or the rights have expired or

b)  The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash

flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients in an arrangement

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates

whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset s notderecognised.

Z
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its
assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significantincrease in credit risk.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Expected credit loss :

The company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurementand recognition of loss allowance on the following.

i) Tradereceivables

i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade
receivables)

i) Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the company follows a simplified
approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL measured and
recognised as loss allowance. Loss allowances for trade receivable
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12 month expected credit losses are the portion
of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period
ifthe expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In case of other assets, the company determines if there has been a
significant increased in credit risk of the financial assets since initial
recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, an amount equal to 12 months ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

(i)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument s any contract that evidences a residual interest
inthe assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are
issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of
the equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when company becomes party to
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company classifies all
financial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance costs in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the standalone statement
of profitorloss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
standalone statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants
atthe measurementdate.

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company
uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to
determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and available
quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred
and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the standalone statement of profit and loss over the period of the
borrowings using the EIR.

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets ill the time such assets are ready for intended use are
capitalised as part of cost of the assets. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably
estimated.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the standalone financial
statements, however they are disclosed where the inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset and is recognised
asanasset.

Revenue recognition

A.Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or

118 | Annual Report 2020 -21

receivable. Revenue is recognised only when it can be reliably measured
anditis probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

Transaction price is accounted net of Goods and Services Tax (GST).
GST is not received by the Company on its own account, rather, it is
collected by the Company on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is
excluded fromrevenue.

()  Sales - Educational goods and equipments /content is recognised
upfront at the point in time when the goods/ equipments/ content is
delivered to the customer via online/offline delivery, wherever
applicable, while the Company retains neither managerial
involvement nor the effective control.

(i) Services

a) Course fees and Royalty income is recognized over the
duration of the course and as per agreed terms

b)  Franchise fees is recognized as per the agreed terms of the
agreement.

¢)  Revenuefromother services is recognised as and when such
services are completed/performed.

(i) Interest income from financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amountoninitial recognition.

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to
receive dividend is established.

(v) Other income including financial guarantee commission and
premium on redeemable preference shares is recognised as per
terms of agreement.

B. Arrangements with Multiple Performance Obligations

The Company’s contracts with customers may include multiple
performance obligations. For such arrangements, the Company
allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on its
relative standalone selling price, which is generally determined
based on the price charged to customers.

C. Contractassets and liabilities

Contract assets relate primarily to the Company’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at each reporting
date. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights
become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company
issues an invoice to a customer.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to consideration received in
advance from customers, for which the performance obligation is
yet to be satisfied.

m_
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Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which the Company will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the promised goods or services to the customer. Where
customers are provided with discounts, rebates etc, such
discounts and rebates will give rise to variable consideration. The
Company follows the ‘most likely amount’ method in estimating
the amount of variable consideration.

p Retirementand otheremployee benefits

(M)

(i)

(v)

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at
the undiscounted amount in the standalone statement of profit
and loss for the year in which the related services are rendered.
Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Defined benefit plans

a) Post-employment and other long-term employee benefits are
recognized as an expense in the standalone statement of profit
and loss for the year in which the employee has rendered
services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the
amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprises of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest) are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss of the year
when the contribution to the respective funds are due. There are no
other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

Leave entitlementand compensated absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next
twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. Leave
entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are
provided based on a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity
benefit. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
oceur.

Transactions in foreign currency

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (“3 ).

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange
rate prevailing on the date of such transactions.

(il

(i)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on
reporting such monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in
previous financial statements are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at historical cost
and translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the
transaction.

Income taxes
Tax expense comprises of currentand deferred tax.
Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of
taxable profit for a period. Current tax for current and prior periods
is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is
also notaccounted for if it arises frominitial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Presentation of current and deferred tax

Currentand deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense
in the standalone statement of profit and loss, except to the extent
they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the current and deferred tax income / expense are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

he carrying amounts of non financial assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable
amount s the greater of an asset's or cash generating unit's, net selling
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to the present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the
standalone statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed by
crediting the standalone statement of profit and loss if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive
earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares
outstanding during the period, except when the results would be anti-
dilutive.

Share based payments

Equity settled share based compensation benefits are provided to
employees under the various Employee Stock Option Schemes. The
fair value of options granted under the Employee Stock Option Scheme
is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity as "Share options outstanding account". The total
amount to be recognised is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

+ including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share
price)

+ excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

+ including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement
foremployees holdings shares for a specific period of time).

The total expenses are amortised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.
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At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the service and non-
market performance vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the standalone statement of
profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. In case
vested options forfeited or expires unexercised, the related balance
standing to the credit of the "Share options outstanding account” is
transferred to "Retained earnings".

Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition
method under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Company. The cost of acquisition also includes the
fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of
acquisition.

Business combinations between entities under common control is
accounted for at carrying value. Transaction costs that the Company
incurs in connection with a business combination such as finder’s fees,
legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting
fees are expensed asincurred.

Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before
the end of the reporting period but remaining undistributed at the end of
the reporting period, where the same has been appropriately
authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the entity.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
adeduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Exceptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type, or incidences of the item of income or
expenses pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such
that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Company, such income or expenses is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly, disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

Critical accounting judgment and estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements requires
management to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s
accounting policies. It also requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures including
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disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis, with revisions recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

a  Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise
from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential
liabilities that have a low probability of crystallising or are very
difficult to quantify reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the standalone financial statements. There can be no assurance
regarding the final outcome of these legal proceedings.

b  Usefullife and residual values

The Company reviews the useful life and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at each
financial year end.

¢ Impairmenttesting

i Judgment is also required in evaluating the likelihood of
collection of customer debt after revenue has been
recognised. This evaluation requires estimates to be made,
including the level of provision to be made for amounts with
uncertain recovery profiles. Provisions are based on historical
trends in the percentage of debts which are not recovered, or
onmore detailed reviews of individually significant balances.

i Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has
any indication of impairment also requires judgment. If an
indication of impairment is identified, further judgment is
required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows forecast
to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash flow
projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

d Income Taxes

i The Company’s tax charge is the sum of the total current and
deferred tax charges. The calculation of the Company’s total
tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and
judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment
cannot be finally determined until resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate,
through a formallegal process.

i Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make
judgments and estimates in relation to tax related issues and
exposures.

i The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon
whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable
taxable profits will be available in the future against which the
reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. Where
the temporary differences are related to losses, the
availability of the losses to offset against forecast taxable

profits is also considered. Recognition therefore involves
judgment regarding the future financial performance of the
particular legal entity or tax Company in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognized.

Defined benefit obligation

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment
benefits are charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss
in accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ over the period
during which benefit is derived from the employees’ services. The
costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the
management. These assumptions include salary escalation rate,
discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality
rates. The same is disclosed in Note 48-, ‘Employee benefits’.

Fairvalue of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined using valuation techniques. In applying
the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of
market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far
as possible, consistent with observable data that market
participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable
data is not observable, management uses its best estimate about
the assumptions that market participants would make. These
estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in
anarm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model. The
estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the
non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is
reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to
extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the
lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant
leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs
relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to the Company's operations and the availability
of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current
economic circumstances. After considering current and future
economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes
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arerequired to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts. incorporate some of the guidance in Ind AS 1 about immaterial 3 Property, plantand equipment

information. In particular, the amendments clarify:
2 (C)  RecentIndianAccounting Standards (IND AS) P fy (% Lakhs)

- that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in Description of Assets Furniture and Vehicles Office Computers Leasehold Total

a. Standardsissued but not effective

which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating that information, and Fixtures Equipment Improvements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or that an entity assesses materiality in the context of the financial
amendments to the existing standards. There is no such statements as awhole, and l. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2019 32.56 21.57 231.58 145.53 154.04 585.28
notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2021, - the meaning of ‘primary users of general purpose financial statements’ Additions during the year 19.69 153,17 6004 113.68 34718
b. Changes in accounting policies and adoption of to whom those standalone financial statements are directed, by defining Disposals during the year 0.35 6.40 0.09 6.84
new/revision in accounting standard: them as ‘existing and potential investors, lenders and other creditors’ Balance as at 31 March 2020 51.90 21.57 378.95 205.48 267.72 925.62
) ) that must rely on general purpose financial statements for much of the
i. COVID-19 related rent concessions: Amendment to Ind AS financial information they need. Additions during the year . 0.47 139 33.34 35.20
116 on ‘Leases’: . .
D Is d th - 26.86 26.86
. The adoption of the amendment has not had any material impact on the 'Sposals during fhe year
The MCA issued amendments to Ind AS 116 on "Leases’, to disclosures or on the amounts reported in these standalone financial Balance as at 31 March 2021 51.90 21.57 379.42 206.87 274.20 933.96
provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a statements.
COVID-19 related rent concession is a lease modification. The Accumulated depreciation
amendments allowed the expedient to be applied to COVID-19 iii. Definition ofa Business -Amendments to Ind AS 103: Il Depreciation upto 31 March 2019 11.18 0.78 58.59 22.14 42.94 135.63
related o eoncessins bpamens ,°”?'”a”y d“fe o before The amended defnition of a business in Ind AS 103 on ‘Business Depreciation charge for the year 4.66 270 67.62 69.56 4764 192.18
30 Jun?e O a‘nd also require disc osur.e of the amount Combinations’ requires an acquisition to include an input and a Disposals during the year - 6.08 0.09 6.17
recognised in profit or loss to reflect changes in lease payments substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
that arise from COVID-19 related rent concessions. The reporting o ‘ . upto 31 March 2020 15.84 3.48 120.13 91.61 90.58 321.64
R ; ) o create outputs. The definition of the term ‘outputs’ is amended to focus
period in which a lessee first applies the amendment, it is not on goods and services provided to customers, generating investment Depreciation charge for the year 4.74 2.70 70.79 68.64 49.22 196.09
required to disclose certain quantitative information required . . . . . .
income and other income, and it excludes returns in the form of lower Disposals during the year - 9.83 9.83
underIndAS 8. . ) . - .
costs and other economic benefits. This amendment will likely result in
) o - . - upto 31 March 2021 20.58 6.18 190.92 160.25 129.97 507.90
The Company has not recogmsed any reversal of lease ||ab|||ty on more aCQUISItIOﬂS belng accounted for as asset aCQUISItIOﬂS. However
account of COVID-19 related rent concessions in the standalone during the year this amendment had no impact on the standalone Net carrying value
statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 as financial statements ofthe Company. Balance as at 31 March 2021 31.32 15.39 188.50 46.62 144.23 426.06
there were no amendments made to rent agreements on account iv. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Amendments to Ind AS Balance as at 31 March 2020 36.06 18.09 258.82 113.87 177.14 603.98
of COVID-19. 107, Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 39:
ii.  Definition of Material ~Amendments toInd AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Disclosures and Ind AS 109 on ‘Financial Instruments’ provide certain Detalls of Capitalwork-In-progress R _aihs)
o ) ) P i 31March 2021 31 March 2020
Amendments have been made to Ind AS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial reliefs in relation to interest rate benchmark reforms. The reliefs relate to -
Statements’ and Ind AS 8 on ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in hedge accounting and have the effect that the reforms should not :gjnrc?dt')t'alandce' . 100.57
Accounting Estimates and Errors’ which use a consistent definition of generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. However, any hedge in Acdiionduringineyear )
o . . . . Less : Capitalized during the year 100.57
materiality throughout the Ind AS and the Conceptual Framework for effectiveness should continue to be recorded in the income statement.
Financial Reporting’ C|arify when information is material and The Company has not taken the benefit of the amendment Closing balance -
(% Lakhs)
Net carrying value 31 March 2021 31March 2020
Property, plantand equipment 426.06 603.98
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For details of property, plantand equipment pledged as security, refer note 51
The amount of contractual commitment for the acquisition of property, plantand equipmentis disclosed in note 36
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4  Right-of-use asset 5 Investmentproperty
(X Lakhs) (% Lakhs)
Description of Assets Leased Premises Total Description of Assets Freehold Land # Total
. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2019 2,605.24 2,605.24 . Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2019 5.85 5.85
Additions during the year 100.34 100.34 Additions during the year - -
Disposals during the year 186.38 186.38 Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2,519.20 2,519.20 Balance as at 31 March 2020 5.85 5.85
Additions during the year 210.08 210.08 Additions during the year - -
Disposals during the year 527.74 527.74 Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,201.54 2,201.54 Balance as at 31 March 2021 5.85 5.85
Il.  Amortization upto 31 March 2019 - - Il.  Depreciation upto 31 March 2019
Amortisation for the year 620.62 620.62 Depreciation charge for the year . .
Disposals during the year 14.97 14.97 Disposals during the year . .
upto 31 March 2020 605.65 605.65 upto 31 March 2020 i i
Amortisation for the year 499.58 499.58 -
Disposals during the year 119.81 119.81 D.epre0|at|on <.:harge for the year | i
upto 31 March 2021 985.42 985.42 Disposals during the year ; ;

upto 31 March 2021 - .

Net carrying value

Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,216.12 1,216.12 Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,913.55 1,913.55 Balance as at 31 March 2021 5.85 5.85
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5.85 5.85
(% Lakhs) (X Lakhs)
Net carrying value 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Fair value *
Right-of-use asset 1,216.12 1,913.55 As at 31 March 2021 12.85 12.85
As at 31 March 2020 12.34 12.34

#  Mortgaged against the Secured Debentures.

The fair value of the Company’s investment property has been arrived by the management on the basis of a appropriate ready reckoner value. The fair
value measurement is categorised as Level 3.
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Non-currentinvestments

(% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Investments carried at cost - Unquoted
Investment in Equity instruments
In wholly owned subsidiaries
5,010,000 (5,010,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each of Digital Ventures Private Limited
(Refer note 1 below) 10,601.00 10,601.00
1,000 (1000) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each of Academia Edificio Private Limited 0.10 0.10
1,000 (1000) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each of Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 0.10 0.10
In subsidiaries - Others
42,701,173 (42,701,173) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each of MT Educare Limited
(extent of holding) 59.12% (59.12%) 27,812.22 27,812.22
Investment in Convertible Debentures
In wholly owned subsidiaries-unquoted
11,324,025 (11,324,025) 0.01 %, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of ¥ 100/- each of
Digital Ventures Private Limited (Refer below note 2) 11,329.71 11,328.67
Others - In wholly owned subsidiaries
Fair value of financial guarantee issued 860.67 860.67

Total 50,603.80 50,602.76

(All the above securities are fully paid up)

1 Non disposal undertaking given to banks for 51% shares held by the Company for loan taken by subsidiary Company viz Digital Ventures Private
Limited.

2 0.01 %, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) of ¥ 100 each fully paid up are compulsorily convertible into equity shares at a conversion
rate to be decided based on fair value of equity shares any time from the date of allotment but not later than 10 years from the date of allotment.

(X Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 50,603.80 50,602.76

(¥ Lakhs)

Description of Assets ContentDevelopment Software Total

. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2019 807.82 158.39 966.21
Additions during the year 101.77 9.17 110.94
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 909.59 167.56 1,077.15
Additions during the year 35.67 - 35.67
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 945.26 167.56 1,112.82

IIl.  Amortization upto 31 March 2019 797.89 65.69 863.58
Amortisation for the year 21.42 37.86 59.28
Disposals during the year - -
upto 31 March 2020 819.31 103.55 922.86
Amortisation for the year 37.06 38.89 75.95
Disposals during the year - -
upto 31 March 2021 856.37 142.44 998.81
Net carrying value
Balance as at 31 March 2021 88.89 2512 114.01
Balance as at 31 March 2020 90.28 64.01 154.29
Details of Intangible Assets under Development  Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31March 2020
Opening balance 12.61 50.86
Add : Addition during the year - -
Less : Capitalized during the year 0.41 38.25
Closing balance 12.20 12.61
(¥ Lakhs)

Net carrying value 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
IntangibleAssets 114.01 154.29
Intangible Assets under Development 12.20 12.61

For details of intangible assets and intangible assets under development pledged as security, refer note 51
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The Company's exposure to credit risk related to trade receivable is disclosed in note 50.

P
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
8 Loans % Lakhs) 12 Otherassets (X Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
Non-Current
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31March 2021 31 March 2020 31March 2021 31 March 2020
Capital advances (unsecured)
Unsecured and considered good -Considered good 12.22 20.77 -
- torelated parties (Refer note 49) 18,373.53 15,640.56 - Creditimpaired 33.71 33.71 -
- toothers 93.59 83.90 4593 5448 ;
Total 18,467.12 15,724.46 Less: Allowances for doubtful advances (33.71) (33.71) -
12.22 20.77 -
Other advances (unsecured)
9 Otherfinancial assets - Considered good - - 102.16 91.90
Prepaid expenses - 0.83 43.54 73.31
% Lakhs) Balance with government authorities
Non-Current Current -Indirect taxes 99.30 100.27 24.00 36.81
31March 2021 31March 2020 31March 2021 31March 2020 111.52 121.87 169.70 202.02
Depositwith banks having maturity period of more 13 Inventories ( Lakhs)
than twelve months (Refer note 16 B) 4.65 4.16 - 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Advances and deposits -unsecured and considered good Educational goods and equipment (Refer note (a) below) 1,085.78 1,769.93
-torelated parties (Refer note 49) - 15.24 105.26 90.00 (includes Goods In TransitZ/lakhs 115.68 (Z/lakhs 65.53)
-toothers 167.66 198.70 38.31 29.81 Total 1,065.78 1,769.93
) a. Inventories were written down to net realisable value by X /lakhs 507.68 (3 /lakhs 407.68)
Premium accrued on redeemable Preference b.  Fordetails ofinventories being pledged as security, Refer note 51
shares of wholly owned subsidiary (Refer note 49) 1,003.00 863.00 ' gpieds Y
Claims receivable 0.67 1.10 14 Currentinvestments [ Lakhs)
Dividend receivable - wholly owned subsidiary 0.01 0.02 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total 172.31 218.10 1,147.25 983.93 Investmentatamortised cost
Investment in preference shares - unquoted
Wholly owned subsidiary
10 Deferred tax assets 100,000(100,000) 0.1%, Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
The components of deferred tax balances are as under: Shares of ¥ 10/-each fully paid up of Digital Ventures Private Limited * 9,572.00 9,572.00
P ' [ Lakhs) Total 9,572.00 9,572.00
31 March 2021 31March 2020
Deferred tax assets Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 9,572.00 9,572.00
Employee benefits obligation 56.78 58.27 . . _ _ ) )
Depreciation and amortization 213.05 222 89 0.1% Non-CorTvenlbIe Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares will bfe redgemable f':mytlme at the request of the Company on or b.efore 31 March
Allowances for creditlosses 322,60 169.16 2022 atapremiumof ¥ 10,705 per share. In case of early redemption the premium will be decided by mutual consent on the date of redemption.
Disallowances under section 40(a) of the Income TaxAct, 1961 12.44 12.66 15 Tradereceivables - (Unsecured) (% Lakhs)
Difference in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 38.12 40.59
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deferred tax assets 642.99 503.57 Considered good
- Related parties (Refer note 49) 506.25 280.59
11 Non-currenttax assets (net) (% Lakhs) - Others 1,072.64 1,519.71
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Considered doubtful 1,281.80 660.11
: — 2,860.69 2,460.41
Balances with governmentauthorities Less: Allowances for credit losses (1,281.80) (660.11)
- Direct taxes (net of provisions for taxes) 5.43 174.85 Total 1,578.89 1,800.30
Total 5.43 174.85 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit period extended to themis 0-180 days.
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16 Cashandbankbalances  Lakhs) c) The Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other than cash or bought back equity shares during the five years
preceding 31 March 2021.
31March 2021 31 March 2020

. . . 0 .
A Cashandcashequivalents d) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate Equity shares

Balances with banks in Currentaccounts 83.82 104.63 Name of the Shareholders 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cashonhand 3.03 2.69 Number of % Shareholding Number of % Shareholding
Total (A) 86.85 107.32 equity shares equity shares
B  Bankbal therthan 16(A) ab
B:; ncssw;]es;k:_' an16(A)above Essel Holdings Limited 2,88,74,238 8.85% 2,88,74,238 8.85%
. o Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 2,48,88,250 7.63% 5,73,93,250 17.60%
- Unclaimed dividend account - Bank balance @ 23.42 2342 i )
Y ) . ) Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd 2,09,55,327 6.43% 2,09,55,327 6.43%
- In deposits with banks having maturity period upto twelve months # 36.01 33.70 o : .
- Indeposits with banks having maturity period of more than twelve months # 4.65 4.16 Rattanindia Finance Private Limited 2,09,50,000 6.42% X ;
P 9 - - : Polus Global Fund 2,04,00,000 6.26% 2,06,27,966 6.33%
. o 64.08 61.28 Jayneer Capital Private Limited 194,04,227 5.95% 6,12,10,000 18.77%
Disclosed under "Other non-current financial assets" (Refernote 9) (4.65) (4.16) Indusind Bank Limited 1,73,70,000 5.33% ) )
Total (B) 59.43 57.12
Total (A+B) 146.28 164.44 As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
@ The Company can utilise these balances only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend.
# Lienfor Governmentauthorities ¥ /lakhs 0.50 (¥ /lakhs 0.50) Lien for others ¥ /lakhs 33.10 (% /lakhs 33.10) e) Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)
17 Equity share capital The Company has amended its Employee Stock Option scheme (ZLLESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP 2010- AMENDED 2015 to align the scheme with provisions
(% Lakhs) of Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014 for issuance of upto 16,007,451 stock options (increased from
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 6,136,390) convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of X 1 each not exceeding the aggregate of 5% of the issued and paid up capital of the
Company to the employees of the Company and its subsidiary viz Digital Ventures Private Limited as amended in board resolution dated 30 September
Authorised 2016 at the market price determined as per the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014. The said Scheme is administered by the
1 ,000,000,000 (1 ,000,000,000) Equty Shares of ¥ 1/- each 10,00000 10,00000 Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
10,000.00 10,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up f)  Summary of options granted under the Scheme
326,092,725 (326,092,725) Equity Shares of X 1/- each fully paid up 3,260.93 3,260.93
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total 3,260.93 3,260.93
Average exercise price Number of Average exercise price Number of
a) Reconciliation of number of Equity shares and Share capital per share option% options per share optionT options
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Opening balance 22.29 76,67,696 31.56 51,72,625
Number of T Lakhs Number of T Lakhs Granted during the year 14.10 1,50,000 18.70 39,62,181
equity shares equity shares Exercised during the year (Refer Note (i) below) - - 30.49 14,000
Atthe beginning of the year 32,60,92,725 3,260.93 32,60,78,725 3,260.79 Forfeited during the year 14.10 588,503 30.62 14,53,110
Add : Allotted on exercise of Employee Stock Option - - 14,000 0.14 Closing balance 72,29,193 76,67,696
- Vested and exercisable 35,53,047 38,58,717
Outstanding at the end of the year 32,60,92,725 3,260.93 32,60,92,725 3,260.93

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1 each. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The final
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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g) Expiry date and exercise prices of the share options outstanding at the end of the year:
- - - - - - - - - Scheme 6th Grant 7th Grant 8th Grant 9th Grant 10th Grant
Grant Grantdate Expirydate  Exerciseprice Revised Expirydate Revised Exercise price Share options
Numbers 3 (Refer note h) (Refer note h) 31March2021 31 March 2020 Grant date 28-Oct-2015 25-Jul-2016 30-Sep-2016 15-Jan-2018 19-Feb-2018
i Weighted average fair value of options granted ¥ 3.03 200.24 4.80 922.16 15.15
Tst Grant 27-Jan-2011 27-Jan-2018 26.05 27-Jan-2018 26.05 - - Revised Exercise price (Refer note h above) ¥ 14.10 31.40 14.10 46.50 14.10
g":gra"t‘ 38?:;812 32?:;8;3 ;ggg :8;3”28;2 E?g S0 070 Share price at the grant date ¥ 32.15 3135 35.20 46.80 4275
rd Gran -Oct- -Oct- . -Dec- . , , " 0 0 0 0 0
4th Grant 2-Apr-2014 2-Apr-2021 27.55 2-Apr-2021 27.55 - - E)-(pke : ted-v?latm:y t 332:; 322;’;0 322;; 3?3451‘;0 3?22";0
SthGrant  29-Sep-2014  29-Sep-2021 35.25 30-Dec-2024 14.10 96,075 1,35,637 ISk free interest rate - oo ot poll poll
6thGrant ~ 28-0ct2015  28-Oct-2022 3180 30-Dec-2024 14.10 21,552,490 21,52,490 Dividend yield . 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
TthGrant  25u-2016  25-Ju-2023 31.40 25-Jul-2023 31.40 - 50,000 Expected life of the options (years) 219 257 275 33 34
8th Grant 30-Sep-2016  30-Sep-2023 34.15 30-Dec-2024 14.10 8,32,884 9,05,134
9th Grant 15-Jan-2018 15-Jan-2025 46.50 15-Jan-2025 46.50 - -
10th Grant 19-Feb-2018  19-Feb-2025 42.20 19-Feb-2025 14.10 547,774 7,12,703
Mth Grant  9-Aug2018  9-Aug-2025 36.90 9-Aug-2025 36.90 : . Scheme 1th Grant 12th Grant 13th Grant
12th Grant 22-Oct-2019 22-Oct-2026 18.70 22-Oct-2026 14.10 34,83,944 37,02,031 Grant date 9-Aug-2018 22-0ct-2019 24-Apr-2020
13th Grant 24-Apr-2020  24-Apr-2027 14.10 24-Apr-2027 14.10 1,10,000 - Weighted average fair value of options granted ¥ 11.99 10.05 8.10
Total 72,29,193 76,67,696 Revised Exercise price (Refer note h above) ¥ 36.90 14.10 14.10
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period (in years) 4.67 3.65 Share price at the grant date ¥ 36.90 17.80 14.65
) i . i ) Expected volatility 35.02% 79.00% 68.00%
h)  During the year, the Company modified/repriced 82,70,157 outstanding (as on 31 Dec 2019) stock option granted (whether vested or not but yet to be . _ . . .
exercised) to option grantees, in one or more tranches under the Employees Stock Option Scheme 2010 as amended in 2015 (hereinafter referred to as Risk free interest rate 7.98% 6.30% 4.58%
"Scheme"), exercisable into not more than 82,70,157 (as on 31 Dec 2019) fully paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 1/- (Rupee one) each upon Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
payment of the Exercise price ranging from Rs. 18.70 to Rs. 42.20 per option, as above to Rs. 14.10 per option w.e.f 24 April 2020, and as a consequence Expected life of the options (years) 3.86 372 378
thereof and as connected therewith, extend the exercise period by four years from the date of shareholders approval in Annual General Meeting held on 30
December 2020.

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future

volatility due to publicly available information.
i)  The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the black scholes model with the following assumptions

Scheme 1st Grant 2nd Grant 3rd Grant 4th Grant 5th Grant i) Expense arising from share based payments transactions  Lakhs)
Grant date 27-Jan-2011 30-Jan-2012 9-Oct-2013 2-Apr-2014 29-Sep-2014 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Weighted average fair value of options granted ¥ 23.82 6.89 7.98 40048 13.3 o
Share price at the grant date I 24.70 14.50 2225 26.85 35.30 deemed investmentin subsidiaries )
Expected volatility 41.56% 38.53% 36.90% 37.02% 38.82% .
Risk free inferest rate 6.89% 6.93% 701% 710% 715% Emplloyee share based payment expense /(reversal) recognised in standalone statement of

profit and loss (Refer note 28) 187.16 18.70
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life of the options (years) 0.66 0.92 1.72 1.92 2.25 Notes:

(i) Theweighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2021 was ¥29.23 (3 30.49).
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18 Otherequity  Lakhs) (i) Debentures
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 400 (400) 10.40% Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Z/lakhs 10.00 each fully paid up aggregating to I/lakhs
4,372.60 (X/lakhs 4,374.40) [including interest of T/lakhs 21.49 (I/lakhs 374.40), are issued for a period of 5 years and 3 months from the date of allotment
§:§3:;?::"r::ﬁ{ﬂus as per original terms. The terms of the NCDs have been revised w.e.f. 14 July 2020. As per the revised terms 400, 10.02% (revised coupon rate) NCDs of
As perlast I;alance sheet 12.527.01 12.522.38 3llakhs 6.85 (revised face value) are redeemable by 13 July 2022 in three installments starting from 13 January 2021. The terms of NCDs were revised
Add: Onissue of shares under Employee stock option plan - 4.63 again and are now redeemable in six installments starting from 13 January 2021. The NCDs are secured by first pari passu charge on all the fixed and
12,527.01 12,527.01 currentassets, all the rights, titles and interests to provide security cover of 1.1 times on outstanding amount.
Debenture redemption reserve " .
As per last Balance sheet 1,421.88 1,218.75 (i) Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured
Add: Transferred irom retained samings . 203.13 The loan carries Interest @12.5% p.a and is repayable on or before 31 March 2023.
1,421.88 1,421.88
Share option outstanding account (iii) Termloanfrom Development Credit Bank (DCB) of%/lakhs 1,472.47 (%/lakhs 1,408.22) [including interest of I/lakhs 72.47 (I/lakhs 8.22) is secured by way
As perlastBalance Sheet 577.28 560.43 of first charge ranking pari pasu over movable assets including current assets, loans and advances with minimum coverage of 1.25x for entire tenure of the
ﬁggs igirsfgfrsezdtgzgﬁgtde:g;?;es(gitl)a o ofvested options 15%751)6 18.70 facility which includes charge on the accounts that receive cash from franchisee/revenue of the Company plus DSRAequivalent to one month interest to be
' Transfer to Securities Premiurg on allor;ment ofshareg (%0. ) (1.85) maintained upfront and one immediate installment to be maintained one month prior to its schedule payment. The loan carries interest of 9.76% and is
713.85 577.28 repayable in 12 quarterly installments beginning from financial year 2018-19 as per original terms. However, the Company opted to defer the tenure of its
General reserve ' ’ term loan under Moratorium benefits and now the outstanding amountis payable in three equal monthly installments starting from July 2021. (Also refer note
As per last Balance Sheet 13,971.80 13,971.80 vibelow)
Retained earnin 13,971.80 13,971.80 (iv) Overdraftfrom Yes bank and Development Credit Bank (DCB) of Z/lakhs 4,361.74 (Z/lakhs 4,384.66) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on all the
Ogsr:inz bZIaan(I:egs 15.994.15 9741.93 movable assets (including current assets, loans and advances) of the company and cross collateralization of pledge of shares given for term loan. The loan
Add : Profitforthe year 1 :658.50 6:861 92 carries interest rates ranges from 10.20% to 12%.
Add : Transf f h i i | f i . -
ad Rza_r:ezrsrﬁ(rierrr?gts g:irr‘]aso/?:)osr;ig;} ;S;z';?ilr?gdaggﬁggtt g;r?sp(srxo\;?:f)m options g?gg (13.45) (v) Vehicleloan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited of Z/lakhs 12.73 (/lakhs 17.01) is secured against hypothecation of respective vehicle. The rate of interest
Less : Appropriations is 8.92% p.aand repayable upto 05 February 2023.
Transferred to Debent dempti 203.13
Drisir:iseﬁ(rjr:aig ebeniureredemption reserve 5326.092 (vi) During the previous year, the Company availed to defer scheduled Term Loan / Overdraft servicing payments as per RBI Circular of 27 March 2020 and 23
Dividend Distribution tax paid - (67.03) May 2020 on Moratorium for debt servicing for period 1 March 2020 till 31 August 2020. Accordingly, the Company opted to defer interest on term loan
17,724.30 15,994.15 amounting to/lakhs 14.47 and interest on bank overdraft facility amounting to Z/lakhs 20.45 and repayable not later than 31 March 2021. The same is paid
Total 46,358.84 44,492.12 til 31 March 2021.
19 Borrowings  Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31March 2020
Debentures (Refer note (i) below) - Secured 1,780.44 3,484.18 2,592.16 890.22
Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured (Refer note (ii) below) 9,276.02 7,661.35 - -
[(Including interest Z/lakhs 901.08 (I/lakhs 455.50)]
Total (A) 11,056.46 11,145.53 2,592.16 890.22
Others - Secured
Termloan from
- Banks (Refer note (iii) and (vi) below) - 350.00 1,472.47 1,058.22
- Financial institution (Refer note (v) below) 8.07 12.72 4.66 4.29
Bank overdraft facility (Refer note (iv) and (vi) below) 4,361.74 4,384.66
Less: Amountdisclosed under the head
"Other current financial liabilities" (Refer Note 21 B) - (4,069.29) (1,952.73)
Total (B) 8.07 362.72 1,769.58 3,494.44
Total (A+B) 11,064.53 11,508.25 4,361.74 4,384.66

Fortransactions relating to related party, Refer note 49.
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20 Lease liabilities (X Lakhs) 23  Otherliabilities (% Lakhs)
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
31March 2021 31 March 2020 31March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Lease liabilities (Refer note 34) 1,133.60 1,486.86 223.69 549.70 Contractliabilities (Refer note 42) - - 2,471.21 414510
Statutory dues payable - - 276.05 219.85
Total 1,133.60 1,486.86 223.69 549.70 Deferred deposit 5,936.01 6,911.52 167.20 213.29
21 Financial liabilities (? Lakhs) Total 5,936.01 6,911.52 2,914.46 4,578.24
Non-Current Current 24 Currenttax liabilities [ Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020 31March 2021 31 March 2020
31March 2021 31 March 2020
A  Trade payables - ‘
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and Provision for taxation (net of advances) 436.95 229.59
small enterprises (Refer note 39) - - 953.46 578.54 Total 436.95 229.59
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - 990.45 1,098.11 25 Revenue from operations  Lakhs)
akhs
Total (A) - - 1,943.91 1,676.65

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

B  Otherfinancial liabilities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 19) - - 4,069.29 1,952.73 Services
Deposits received - Customers 10.45 1045 2.00 2.00 - Course fees/Royalty 4,152.22 8,348.30
Deposits received - Others 467.14 - - - Franchisee fees 618.85 989.25
Financial guarantee obligation 261.17 - - - Others 4.00 77.46
Unclaimed dividend payable # - 23.42 2342 Sales - Educational qoods and equi t 4.248.33 9917.89
Employee benefits payable 231.71 43187 thes “(t’.a '0na goods and eqipments g o424
Creditors for capital expenditure €7 operating revenue : :
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and Total 9,031.07 19,437.24
small enterprises (Refer note 39) - - 24.56 -
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2 her i
enterprises and small enterprises - - 31.72 40.64 6 Other income (¥ Lakhs)
Otherpayables 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (Refer note 39) - - 68.99 20.44 Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro - on bank deposits 312 5.11
enterprises and small enterprises - . 2,448.31 2,012.74 - on loans and advances to related parties (Refer Note 49) 1,994.93 1,453.70
Total (B) §97.04 738.76 6,00.00 4,483.54 - on loans and advances to others 10.49 0.06
Total (A+B) 697.04 738.76 8,843.91 6,160.49 Interest income others
Fortransactions relating to related party payables refer note 49. - on debentures of related party 113 1.14
Trade payable and others are non-interest bearing and the credit term the for same is generally in the range of 0-90 days. - others - 1.46
pany’s exp y quictty by ' Premium on redeemable preference shares - related party (Refer Note 49) 140.00 140.00
Gain on sale of current investments - 4.21
22 Provisi T Lakhs
rovisions ( ) Financial guarantee commission from related parties 282.00 282.00
Non-Current Current Unwinding of discount of Interest free deposits / Financial guarantee obligation 333.65 378.64
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Reversal of provision / liabilities no longer required 199.38 88.02
Provision for employee benefits Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets 35.84 4.07
- Gratuity 139.72 136.85 10.01 11.93 Miscellaneous income - 34.90
- Leave benefits 52.04 60.03 23.84 18.58 Total 3,000.55 2,393.32
Total 191.76 196.88 33.85 30.51
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27 Operational cost [ Lakhs) 31 Otherexpenses % Lakhs)
31March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Educational goods and equipments
Opening - Inventories 1,769.93 1,314.48 Rent 101.10 51.49
Add: Purchases ) 784.58 3,236.56 Repairs and maintenance - others 92.37 403.08
Less: Closing - Inventories (Refer note 13) (1,065.78) (1,769.93)
Total (A) 1,488.73 278111 Insurance 31.50 8.2
Rates and taxes 33.28 24.99
b)  Othereducational operating expenses Electricity and water charges 33.07 33.09
o Communication expenses 67.97 83.11
- Electricity 23.01 42.72 o )
- Manpower cost and other professional fees 283.47 380.87 Printing and stationery 34.39 90.45
-Others 25.43 160.12 Travelling and conveyance expenses 105.25 481.65
Total (B) 331.91 583.71 Legal and professional charges 269.37 216.74
Total (A)+(B) 1,820.64 3,364.82 Payment to auditors (Refer note 38) 20.67 24.56
28 Employee benefits expense (% Lakhs) Frelght and. Packlng charges 556.65 773.79
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Directors sitting fees 6.10 5.54
Loss on sale/discard of property, plantand equipment (net) 17.03 0.67
Salaries and allowances 2,018.60 2,697.62 )
Share based payment expense (Refer note 17 (j)) 187.16 18.70 AIIowar.mces forcrédltlosses N 62169 24221
Contribution to provident and other funds 163.31 197.46 Marketing, advertisementand publicity expenses 25.21 487.01
Staff welfare expenses 114.87 145.08 Corporate social responsibility expenditure ( Refer Note 44) 55.37 -
Total 2,483.94 3,058.86 Miscellaneous expenses 15.13 15.90
29 Finance costs @ Lakhs) 2,086.15 2,967.49
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest expenses on
- Borrowings 2,105.89 1,985.05
- Defined benefit obligation (Refer note 48) 9.06 8.17
- Leases 145.44 238.74
- Other 187.47 92.50
Unwinding of discount on interest free deposits 135.44 123.32
Other financial charges 240 413
Total 2,585.70 2,451.91
30 Depreciation and amortisation expense [ Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 196.09 192.18
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 499.58 620.62
Amortisation of intangible assets 75.95 59.28
Total 771.62 872.08
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32 Taxexpense (X Lakhs)
a) The major components of income tax for the year are as under:  Lakhs) g) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 503.57 463.53
31 March 2021 31March 2020 Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in
Income tax related to items recognised directly in the standalone statement of profit and loss - Statement of profit and loss 146.50 35.41
Currenttax - currentyear 771.57 2,314.18 - Recognised in other comprehensive income (7.08) 4.63
-earlieryears - (25.29) Total 642.99 503.57
Deferred tax charge / (credit) (146.50) (35.41)
Total 625.07 2,253.48 33 The Company has investments in its wholly owned subsidiary company viz Digital Ventures Private Limited (DVPL) in the form of Equity shares, Convertible

Debentures, Preference Shares (including redemption premium) and loan amounting to ¥/lakhs 51,729.39 as at 31 March 2021. The Company has carried

b) Areconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at Company’s effective income out valuation of assets of DVPL by an independant agency and based on the valuation report, the fair value of the assets is more than the investments and

tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is as follows:

% Lakhs) loan made by the Company. Accordingly, the management considers that no impairment is required to the said investments and loan outstanding as at 31
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 March 2021.
Profit before tax 2,283.57 9,115.40 .
Income tax rate of 25.17% (25.63%) 57473 2,335.88 34 z:sf]'t°;”l;::‘:::;t"(‘;:$m (Leases)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 325.91 160.73 g
Additional allowances for tax purposes (129.07) (207.72) (a) ROU asset' comprises leased assets of office/branch premises that do not meet the definition of investment property. % Lakhs)
Other temporary difference (146.50) (35.41) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 625.07 2,253.48 Opening Balance 1,913.55 -
Assets created on transition date (01 April 2019) - 2,605.24
c) Deferred tax recognized in statement of other comprehensive income Additions during the year 210.08 100.34
(% Lakhs) Amortisation duringthe year 499.58 620.62
For the year ended 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Disposal during the year (net) 407.93 171.41
Defined benefits obligation (7.08) 4.63 Closing Balance 1,216.12 1,913.55
d) The applicable tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate is 25.17% (25.63%) for the year ended 31 March 2021. The aggregate amortisation expense on right-of-use asset is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the standalone statement of profit
and loss.
During the previous year, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115 BAA of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the
Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognized provision for income tax and re-measured its net deferred tax (b)  Thefollowingis the break-up of currentand non-current lease liabilities
liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said section. (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred tax balances (after o
offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note 10. Current lease liabilities 22369 549.70
Non current lease liabilities 1,133.60 1,486.86
e) The Company does not have any temporary differences in respect of unutilized tax losses. Total 1,357.29 2,036.56
f) Deferred tax recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss (X Lakhs)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Defined benefits obligation (5.59) 427
Depreciation and amortization 9.84 35.03
Provision for expected credit losses (153.45) (47.47)
Difference of Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 247 (40.59)
Other temporary difference 0.23 13.35
Total (146.50) (35.41)
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37 Managerial remuneration

Remuneration paid or provided in accordance with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 to Managing Director, included in Note 28 "Employee benefits
expense"isasunder:

(% Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Salary and allowances (Referaand b below) 60.45 190.73
Total 60.45 190.73

Notes:
a) Mr.Ajey Kumar has resigned from the position of Managing Director with effect from 18 August 2020.

b) Salary and allowances include basic salary, house rent allowance, leave travel allowance, provident fund and performance bonus but excluding leave
encashmentand gratuity provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

GROUP
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

() Thefollowing is the movementin lease liabilities [ Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening Balance 2,036.56 2,569.87

Additions 210.08 100.34

Interest on lease liability 145.44 238.74

Payment of lease liabilities 591.02 696.91

Disposal / Dereognition of Lease Liability 443.77 175.48

Closing Balance 1,357.29 2,036.56

(d)  Lease liabilities Maturity Analysis  Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Lessthanone year 841.18 765.44

Onetofive years 1,169.24 1,747.37

More than five years - -

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 2,010.42 2,512.81

(e)  LeaserentalsofX/lakhs 101.10 (Z/lakhs 79.79) pertaining to short term leases and low value asset has been charged to statement of profit and loss.

35 A) Contingentliabilities (to the extent not provided for) :
(% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a)  Claimsagainstthe company notacknowledged as debts (Refer note (i) and (ii) below) 95.98 46.98
b) Disputed indirect taxes 2,213.62 2,213.62
c)  Corporate guarantee to wholly owned Subsidiary to the extent of loans availed/
outstanding Z/lakhs 10,994.49(%/lakhs 10,937.00) 15,000.00 15,000.00
d)  Corporate guarantee to others to the extent of loans
availed/outstanding Z/lakhs 41,242.83 (Z/lakhs 38,687.62) @ 47,000.00 47,000.00
() Amountrepresents the best possible estimates. The Company has engaged reputed professionals to protect its interest and has been advised that it
has firm legal position against such disputes.
(i) The company has received legal notices of claims/law suits filed against it relating to other matters. In the opinion of the management, no material
liability is likely to arrive on account of such claims/law suits.
@  Company has provided Corporate guarantees to various trusts pursuant to the long term partnership arrangement entered. Corporate Guarantee is
utilised for business purposes.

B) The Company has withdrawn the merger with Tree House Education and Accessories Limited (THEAL) and has reserved its rights for suitable actions
against adverse allegations by THEAL. The company has received and filed legal notices of claims. The managementis of the view that no material liability
is likely to arrive on account of these claims.

36 Capital and other commitments

a) Thereis no estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances).

b) Non disposal undertaking given to banks for 51% shares held by the Company in Digital Ventures Private Limited for loan taken by subsidiary
Company.
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38 Paymentto auditors* [ Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Auditfees (including limited review) 17.50 17.00
Taxauditfees 2.50 2.00
Tax representation - 1.27
Certification and Others 0.67 4.29
Total 20.67 24.56
*Includes fees paid to retiring auditor
39 Micro, small and medium enterprises
Disclosure required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006 ("The Act") are given as follows. % Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 807.66 49248
b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 132.86 51.34
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 239.35 106.50

f)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise,
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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40 |. Disclosures as required by Schedule V (A) (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Revenue Disaggregation by Industrial Vertical & Geography is as follows :  Lakhs)
(@) Loangiven towholly owned Subsidiary Companies (Loanee) (% Lakhs) -
. Revenue by offerings : 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance as at Maximum amount

outstanding during the year Educational Services / India 9,031.07 19,437.24
31March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 ot 5.031.07 1943724

Digital Ventures Private Limited 18,362.92 15,495.15 18,362.92 15,495.15 2 L asal
Academia Edificio Private Limited 10.61 3.67 203.11 3.67 Timing of Revenue Recoghnition :  Lakhs)

Liberi lobal R Private Limit - 141.7 267. 715.

Iberium Global Resources Private Limited > 67.56 5.89 Revenue by offerings : 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
The loan has been given for general business purpose of the entity and carries interest @ 12.5% p.a. The above figures are including interest accrued. Services transferred at point in time 4,878.85 11,088.94
(b) Theloanee has not made investments in the shares of the Company. Services transferred over period in time 4152.22 8,348.30

Total 9,031.07 19,437.24

Il. Information required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

| Loans given (% Lakhs) Contract balances (% Lakhs)
Name of the party 31 March 2020 Given* Repaid 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Digital Ventures Private Limited 15,495.15 3,603.05 735.28 18,362.92 Advances received and uneamed revenue (contract liabilities) as at 2,471.21 4,145.10
Academia Edificio Private Limited 3.67 206.94 200.00 10.61 Trade receivables as at 1,578.89 1,800.30
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 141.75 125.81 267.56 -
Mount Litera Education Foundation 83.90 9.69 - 93.59 Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2021 I/lakhs 2,471.21 will be recognised

15,724.46 3,945.49 1,202.84 18,467.12 as revenue till the year ended 31 March 2022.

Theloan has been given for general business purpose of the entity and carries interest @12.5% p.a. The above figures includes interest accrued.

ii) Investments made
There are no investments made during the year except those mentioned in Note 7 and Note 14.

iii) Corporate guarantees given (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
To secure obligations of wholly owned Subsidiary (Refer note 49) 15,000.00 15,000.00
To secure obligations of various trusts @ 47,000.00 47,000.00
Total 62,000.00 62,000.00

@ Company has provided Corporate guarantees to various trusts pursuant to the long term partnership arrangement entered. Corporate Guarantee is utilised for

business purposes.
iv) Securities given
The Company has given securities of Z/lakhs 5406.51 ( Z/lakhs 5406.51) for loan taken by wholly owned subsidiary - Digital Ventures Private Limited.

41 Dividend
No Dividend on equity shares is paid or proposed declared by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31 March 2021.

42 Disclosures as required by Ind AS 115

Revenue consists of following : (% Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Services

- Course fees/Royalty 4.152.22 8,348.30
- Franchisee fees 618.85 989.25
-Others 4.00 77.46
Sales - Educational goods and equipments 4,248.33 9,917.89
Other operating revenue 7.67 104.34
Total 9,031.07 19,437.24
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46

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’)

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India and subsequently on 13 November 2020 draft rules were published and invited for
stakeholders' suggestions. The Central Government on 30 March 2021 has deferred the implementation of the said Code and the date on which the Code
will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will account for the related impactin
the period the Code becomes effective.

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has a CSR Committee. The Company is required to spend 3/lakhs 163.15 (3/lakhs 108.85)
for the year against which NIL (Nil) has been spent on activities specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year, the company has
spent CSR expenditure ofZ/lakhs 55.37 for the year 2019.

Segment information
The Company has presented Segment information on the basis of the consolidated financial statements as permitted by Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.

Covid 19 -Impact

The nation-wide lockdown due to spread of COVID-19 and other significant restrictions imposed on the movement had an impact on the education sector as
most of the schools continued to remain shut for major part of the year ended 31 March 2021. However, during this period, the Company has taken lots of
efforts to keep the disruption in the business to the minimum.

In preparation of these standalone financial statements, the Company has taken into accountinternal and external sources of information to assess possible
impacts of the pandemic, including but not limited to the assessment of liquidity and going concern, recoverable value of its financial and non-financial
assets, and the impact on revenues. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of
its assets. Basis the Company’s projected cash flows for the next one year, management has concluded that the Company will have sufficient liquidity to
continue its operations, although it expects possible delays with respect to collections from its customers. The Company has made necessary provisions
under the Expected Creditloss model.

The extent of the impact on the Company’s operations remain uncertain and may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone
financial statements and will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions continue which will in turn depend on the currently unknowable duration of
COVID-19 and among other things, the impact of governmental actions imposed in response to the pandemic. The Company is monitoring the rapidly
evolving situation and its potential impacts on the Company’s standalone financial position, results of operations, liquidity and cash flows.
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47 Earnings per share (EPS)

Z Financial Statement

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit after Tax (3 lakhs) 1,658.50 6,861.92
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (in numbers) 32,60,92,725 32,60,86,681
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in numbers) 32,60,92,725 32,60,86,681
Face value of equity shares (%) 1 1
BasicEPS (%) 0.51 2.10
Diluted EPS (%) 0.51 2.10

48 Employee Benefits
The Disclosures as per IndAS 19 - Employee Benefits is as follows:

A Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to provident and other funds” is recognized as an expense in Note 28 “Employee benefit expenses” of the standalone statement of profit

andloss.
B Defined BenefitPlans

The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.

( Lakhs)
I Expensesrecognised during the year 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Gratuity (Non Funded)
1 CurrentService Cost 40.84 36.67
2 InterestCost 9.06 8.17
3 PastService cost - -
Total Expenses 49.90 44.84
IIl. Amountrecognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) 31March 2021 31March 2020
1. Opening amountrecognized in OCI (34.10) (52.19)
2. Remeasurementduring the period due to experience adjustments
- Changes infinancial assumptions 2.85 12.70
- Changes in experience charges (30.99) 5.39
3. Closingamountrecognizedin OCI (62.24) (34.10)
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lIl.  NetAsset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheetas at 31 March 31March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation (DBO) 149.73 148.77
2 NetAsset/(Liability) (149.73) (148.77)
IV.  Reconciliation of Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 NetAsset/(Liability) at the beginning of year (148.77) (128.05)
2 Expenseasperlabove (49.90) (44.84)
3 Othercomprehensive income as per Il above 28.14 (18.09)
4 Benefits paid 20.80 42.21
NetAsset/ (Liability) at the end of the year (149.73) (148.77)
V. Thefollowing payments are expected to defined benefit plan in future years : 31March 2021 31March 2020
1 Expected benefits for year 1 10.01 11.93
2 Expectedbenefits foryear2to year5 53.18 47.49
3 Expectedbenefits beyond year 5 60.01 62.30
VI. Actuarial Assumptions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Discountrate 6.32% 6.55%
2  Expectedrate of salaryincrease 6.00% 6.00%
3 Mortality IALM (2012-14) IALM (2006-08)
4 Employee Attrition Rate Age:0t060:8% Age:0t060:8%
VII. Sensitivity Analysis
The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The
following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of
anincrease or decrease in the reported assumption by 100 basis points.
(¥ Lakhs)
Discount Rate Salary Escalationrate
Impact of increase in 100 bps on DBO 137.97 162.57
Impact of decrease in 100 bps on DBO 163.23 138.33
Notes:
(@) The current service cost recognized as an expense is included in Note 28 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
(b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary.
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
C  Other long term benefits

The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method and accordingly the long term paid absences
have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 28 ‘Employee benefits expense’.
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Related party disclosures

List of parties where control exists
Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Digital Ventures Private Limited

Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

Subsidiary company

MT Educare Limited (extent of holding - 59.12% [59.12%)])

Step down subsidiary companies (held through MT Educare Limited)

Lakshya Forrum for Competitions Private Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare Private Limited)
MT Education Services Private Limited

Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited

Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited

Robomate Edutech Private Limited

Letspaper Technologies Private Limited

Labh Ventures India Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Ajey Kumar - Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f. 18 August 2020)

Ms. Sangeeta Pandit- Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 01 October 2019)
Mr. Himanshu Modi - Chairman and Non-Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 07 January 2020)
Dr. Manish Agarwal - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 01 April 2020)

Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 14 Jan 2021)
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj - Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar - Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Nanette D'sa - Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Umesh Pradhan - Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 07 October 2019)

Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay - Chief Executive Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 23 April 2020)

Mr. Vikash Kar - Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director (Resigned w.e.f. 14 June 2021)
Mr. Surender Singh - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 31 July 2020)
Mr. Karunn Kandoi - Non-Executive Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 03 March 2021)

Mr. Ritesh Handa - Chief Executive Officer (Appointed w.e.f 14 June 2021)

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 07 April 2020)

Mr. Bhautesh Shah - Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 12 May 2020)

Mr. Prashant Parekh - Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f29 January 2021)

Mr. Anil Gupta - Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 29 June 2021)

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on the last day of the year.

Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited, Diligent Media Corporation Limited, Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited, Pan India Network
Infravest Private Limited, Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Essel Infra Projects Private Limited, Zee Studios Limited (Formerly Essel Vision
Productions Limited), Zee Media Corporation Limited, Essel Corporate LLP, Digital Subscriber and Management Consultancy Services Private Limited,
Himgiri Zee University (upto September 2019).
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(% Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
A) Transactions with related parties

Long-term borrowings 1,470.47 5,755.00
Subsidiary company
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 1,470.47 -
Otherrelated parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 5,755.00
Repayment of Long- term borrowings 756.88 35.00
Subsidiary company
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 746.88 -
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 10.00 35.00
Interest expense 974.13 506.11
Subsidiary company
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 16.50 -
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 957.63 506.11
Loans, advances and deposits given 2,090.48 6,364.71
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited 1,764.64 5,647.84
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 125.81 715.85
Academia Edificio Private Limited 200.03 1.02
Loans, advances and deposits given repaid 1,202.84 1,094.21
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited 735.28 519.36
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 267.56 574.85
Academia Edificio Private Limited 200.00 -
Sales and services 370.00 456.00
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited 265.00 220.00
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 75.00 60.00
MT Educare Limited 30.00 120.00
Otherrelated parties
Himgiri Zee University 56.00
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

(X Lakhs) (% Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 B) Balances outstanding as at 31 March 31 March 2021 31March 2020
O.th.er income 2,136.07 1,662.87 Long-term borrowings 9,276.02 7,661.35
Dividendincome o
Subsidiary company Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited 0.01 0.01 Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 738.86 -
Premium on redeemable preference shares Otherrelated parties
Subsidiary company ) i ) o
Digital Ventures Private Limited 140.00 140.00 Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 8,537.16 7,661.35
Interest on compulsorily convertible debentures
Subsidiary company Investments 60,175.80 60,174.76
Digital Ventures Private Limited 1.13 1.14 Subsidiary companies
g’;ﬁ;ﬁgt:&g‘;ﬁ;‘;ﬁ’a‘e deposits Equity shares of Digital Ventures Private Limited 10,601.00 10,601.00
Digital Ventures Private Limited 1,987.46 1,445.69 Preference shares of Digital Ventures Private Limited 9,572.00 9,572.00
Academia Edificio Private Limited .47 033 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Digital Ventures Private Limited 11,329.71 11,328.67
Liberium Global R.e§ourcgs }?r.n{ate Limited . i 768 Fair value of financial guarantee issued of Digital Ventures Private Limited 860.67 860.67
Reversal of provision/liabilities no longer required ) o
Other related parties Equity shares of MT Educare Limited 27,812.22 27,812.22
Diligent Media Corporation Limited 88.02 Equity shares of Academia Edificio Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Purchase of Property, plantand equipment and Intangible assets 60.00 61.17 Equity shares of Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited 25.00 - Loans, advances and deposits given 18,478.79 15,745.83
Otherrelated parties -
Essel Corporate LLP 35.00 61.17 Subsidiary company
Burch FServi 353.00 122710 Digital Ventures Private Limited 18,362.92 15,495.15

urchase of Services . ,2217. e o -
Subsidiary company Academia Edificio Private Limited 10.61 3.67
Digital Ventures Private Limited - 178.75 Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 141.75
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 85.68 87.17 Otherrelated parties
Other related parties . : -
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited 12.99 8.66 Essel Infr.a Prc.)Je.cts Private Limited 10.00 10.00
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 104.02 101.51 Zee Studios Limited 15.26 15.26
Digital Subscriber Managementand Consultancy Services Private Limited 8.66 13.09 Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited 80.00 80.00
Diligent Media Corporation Limited. - 112.00
Zee Media Corporation Limited 20.89 29.63 Other financial assets (other than advances) 1,003.01 863.02
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited 38.30 15.00 .
Essel Corporate LLP 75.00 30.00 Subsidiary company
Zee Studios Limited - 21.19 Digital Ventures Private Limited
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited 7.50 630.10 -Premium accrued on redeemable Preference Shares 1,003.00 863.00
Remuneration 111.60 145.97 - Dividend receivable on Preference shares 0.01 0.02
Key Managerial personnel
Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay 26.14 74.32 Advance from customer 115 115
Mr. Umesh Pradhan - 54.64 .
Mr. Vikash Kar 4819 _ Otherrelated partles
Mr. Rakesh Agarwal 28.98 - Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 1.15 1.15
Mr. Bhautesh Shah 2.51 17.01
Mr. Prashant Parekh 5.78 - Trade receivables 506.25 280.59
Directors sitting fees 6.10 5.54 Subsidiary company
gm":ﬁgﬂe’;ﬁ I:‘I*'“"“e' 220 Digital Ventures Private Limited 444.75 179.55
Ms. Sangeetg Pandit ) 1,00 Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 26.10 11.76
Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar 0.30 0.60 MT Educare Limited 35.40 -
ms-sNa”ege Ds'§a ) ggg - Other related parties
r. Surender Sing . - L .

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar 150 0.54 Himgiri Zee University 89.28
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj 2.00 1.20
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(X Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Other payables 686.81 666.89
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited 12.31 2.64
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited 12.06 10.56
Diligent Media Corporation Limited 281.02 281.02
Zee Media Corporation Limited - 41.77
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 269.27 177.26
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited 12.00 2227
Essel Corporate LLP 42.11 -
Zee Studios Limited 40.73 40.73
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited 17.31 90.64
Guarantees given 15,000.00 15,000.00
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited 15,000.00 15,000.00

Note: 1) Details of remuneration to Managing Director are disclosed in Note 37.
2)  Figures considered based on the IND AS financials of the company

50 Financial instruments

(i)

1)

Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company'’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments,
loans, trade receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
marketrisk include loans and borrowings, deposits, other financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of
fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of floating
interest bearing investments will vary because of fluctuations in interest rates.

The Company'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term loan from banks. Non-convertible
Debentures and Intercorporate deposits carries fixed coupon rate and hence is not considered for calculation of interest rate sensitivity of the company.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all
other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowings, as follows:
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([ Lakhs)

Increase/decrease in Effect on Profit
basis points before tax
Ason 31 March 2021 +50/-50 29.23
Ason 31 March 2020 +50/-50 29.05

2) Foreigncurrencyrisk

The Company enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The Company
analyses currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that Company. The management has taken a
position not to hedge this currency risk.

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are nothedged considering the insignificantimpact and period involved on such exposure.

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:

(% Lakhs)
Currency Assets as at Liabilities as at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31March 2020
United States Dollar (USD) - - 2.00 214

Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 10% increase / decrease in foreign currencies with all other variable held constant. The below impact on
the Company's profit before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance sheet date.

(% Lakhs)
Currency Sensitivity Analysis
31 March 2021 31March 2020
T decrease by % increase by T decrease by < increase by
10% 10% 10% 10%
United States Dollar (USD) 0.20 (0.20) 0.21 (0.21)

3)

Creditrisk

Creditriskis the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at bank.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which
the entity operates. Expected Credit Loss is based on actual credit loss experienced and past trends based on the historical data.

Ageing of trade receivables (% Lakhs)

Asat31March2021 Asat31March2020

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

Over sixmonths 1,837.70 1,257.85
Less than six months 1,022.99 1,202.56
Total (A) 2,860.69 2,460.41
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% Lakhs)

Asat31March2021 Asat31March2020

Movementin allowance for credit loss during the year was as follows :

Opening Balance 660.11 417.90
Add :- Provided during the year 621.69 242.21
Closing balance as at (B) 1,281.80 660.11
Net Trade receivable (A+B) 1,578.89 1,800.30

b)

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include other debt instruments.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The Company's principal source of liquidity is cash and cash
equivalents and the cash flow i.e. generated from operations. The Company consistently generated strong cash flows from operations which together with
the available cash and cash equivalents and currentinvestment provides adequate liquidity in short terms as well as in the long term.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2021
(% Lakhs)

Less than1 year 2 to 5 year More than 5 years
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other financial liabilities 8,887.45 174.12 479.34
Borrowings* 4,361.74 11,064.54 -
Lease liabilities 223.69 1,133.60
Total 13,472.88 12,372.26 479.34

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating 3/lakhs 4,069.29 from part of other financials liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2020

(X Lakhs)
Less than1 year 2to5year more than 5 years
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other financial liabilities 6,204.02 174.12 521.11
Borrowings* 4,384.66 11,508.25 -
Lease liabilities 549.70 1,486.86
Total 11,138.38 12,372.23 521.11

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating I/lakhs 1,952.73 form part of other financials liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.
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(ii) Capitalmanagement

For the purpose of the Company' s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Company manages its capital
structure to ensure thatitwill be able to continueasa going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt % Lakhs)

Asat31March2021 Asat31March2020

Gross Debt (inclusive long term and short term debt) 19,495.56 17,845.64
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances (118.21) (136.86)
Net Debt 19,377.35 17,708.78
Total Equity 49,619.77 47,753.05
Total Capital 68,997.12 65,461.83
Gearing ratio 28.08% 27.05%

(i)

Categories of financial instruments and fair value thereof

(% Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Carrying amount Fairvalue Carrying amount Fairvalue
A) Financial assets
(other than investment in subsidiary companies carried at cost)
i) Measured atamortised cost
Trade Receivables 1,578.89 1,578.89 1,800.30 1,800.30
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances 146.28 146.28 164.44 164.44
Otherfinancial assets 1,319.56 1,319.56 1,202.03 1,202.03
Loans 18,467.12 18,467.12 15,724.46 15,724.46
Current Investment 9,572.00 9,572.00 9,572.00 9,572.00
B) Financial liabilities
i) Measured atamortised cost
Trade Payables 1,943.91 1,943.91 1,676.65 1,676.65
Borrowings (Non current) 11,064.53 11,064.53 11,508.25 11,508.25
Borrowings (Current) 4,361.74 4,361.74 4,384.66 4,384.66
Lease Liabilities 1,357.29 1,357.29 2,036.56 2,036.56
Other Financial Liabilities 7,597.04 7,597.04 5,222.61 5,222.61
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, certain investments, trade
payables and other current liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Difference between carrying
amount and fair value of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is not
significantin each of the year presented.
iv)  Fairvalue hierarchy

All other financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are inlevel 3 of fair value hierarchy and have been considered at carrying amount.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 3 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

Annual Report 2020-21 | 155



2 m Financial Statement
ou

GROUP
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
51 Collateral/ Security Pledged
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings of the companies and subsidiary companies are as under;
(X Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Property, plant and equipment (includes Capital work in progress, Investment property,
Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development) 558.12 776.73
Inventories 1,065.78 1,769.93
Other current and non-current assets 32,270.77 29,712.65
Total assets pledged 33,894.67 32,259.31
52 Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as required by Ind
AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" is as under: % Lakhs)
Non Cash Changes
As at Cash Cash As at
31 March2020 Inflows  outflows Interest Other 31 March 2021
Accrued  Changes
Long Term Borrowings 11,508.25 1,470.47 (1,738.52) - (175.67) 11,064.53
Short Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities) 6,337.39 - - 1,352.18 736.80 8,426.37
(For Bank, Financial Institution and intercorporate
deposits etc.)
Lease liabilities (including interest) 2,036.56 - (591.02) - - 1,357.29
(% Lakhs)
Non Cash Changes
As at Cash Cash As at
31 March 2019 Inflows outflows Interest Other 31 March 2020
Accrued Changes
Long Term Borrowings 12,436.60 5,755.00 (6,683.36) - - 11,508.25
Short Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities) 5,684.44 - - 65295 - 6,337.39
(ForBank, Financial Institution and intercorporate
deposits etc.)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) - - 393.12 - - -
53 The Company has non-current investments in its subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited (MTEL) with a carrying value at cost of %/lakhs 27,812.22.
MTEL on a consolidated basis has a positive net worth as at 31 March 2021. Due to the prevailing unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic situation further
prolonged by continuous lockdowns and restrictions in movements imposed at regular intervals by State and Central Governments, the Company has not
been able to carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment of the asset in accordance with the principles of IND-AS 36 “Impairment of Assets” and
hence no adjustments have been considered by the Company to the carrying value of this non-current investment as at 31 March 2021. Moreover, the
Company'sinvestmentin MTEL is strategic in nature and any impact due to COVID-19is short term in nature and hence no impairmentis required.
54 Prioryear comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified / rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classifications /
disclosures, figures in brackets pertain to previous year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To
The Members of
Zee Learn Limited

1. Qualified opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (herein-after referred to as “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors
on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of subsidiaries referred to in the ‘Other matters’ paragraph below, except for the
effects/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for qualified opinion” section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and their consolidated loss,
their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date..

2. Basis for qualified opinion

a)  The consolidated financial statements include goodwill having carrying value of Rs. 31,323.64 lakhs on acquisition of its subsidiary company viz MT
Educare Limited (MTEL). Due to the prevailing unprecedented Covid-19 pandemic situation and the uncertainty connected to it, the Holding Company
has not been able to carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment of the asset in accordance with the principles of Indian Accounting standard -
36 “Impairment of Assets” and hence no adjustments have been considered by the Holding Company to the carrying value of goodwill as at 31 March
2021. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate audit evidence by way of such detailed and comprehensive assessment due to the current COVID-
19 pandemic situation, we are unable to comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of goodwill.

b)  In one of the subsidiaries viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited the consolidated annual financial statements of MTEL
reported that MTEL has recognized net deferred tax assets of Rs. 6,981.87 lakhs based on the estimate that sufficient taxable profits would be
available in future years against which deferred tax assets can be utilized. In the opinion of the other auditor, due to uncertainties arising out of the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the existence of unutilized tax losses available, itis uncertain that MTEL would achieve sufficient taxable profits in
future against which deferred tax assets can be utilized. Accordingly, the other auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
corroborate the Management's assessment of recognition of deferred tax assets as at 31 March 2021. Had the deferred tax assets not been
recognized, the netloss for the year ended 31 March 2021 would have been higher by Rs. 6,981.87 lakhs.

c)  Inone of the subsidiaries viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited the consolidated annual financial statements of MTEL
reported that MTEL did not obtain/receive balance confirmations from most of the customers /creditors and other parties including certain advances
other than related parties for the balances as at 31 March 2021 due to Covid-19 disruption. Hence, the other auditor could not obtain external
confirmations as required in SA- 505, Standards on Auditing and were unable to comment on adjustments or disclosures, if any, that may arise.

d)  In one of the subsidiaries viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited the consolidated annual financial statements of MTEL
reported that MTEL has loans, trade and other receivables of Rs 4,904.26 lakhs (net of provisions on consolidated basis) outstanding as at 31 March
2021, from other parties having operations in the education sector, which are overdue. The managementis of the opinion that COVID-19 pandemic and
the subsequent lockdowns have disrupted the operations of parties in education sector and such outstandings have arisen primarily due to lockdowns
and therefore management considers the same as good and recoverable. Accordingly, owing to the aforementioned overdues, the other auditor is
unable to comment upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the outstanding receivables and further provisions, if any,
required and the consequential impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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The audit report for the previous year ended 31 March 2020, which was audited by the predecessor auditor, was also qualified in respect of the matters stated
in(a)and (b) above.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibility’ for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the ‘Other matters’ paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Material uncertainty relating to Going Concern

As stated in Note 62 of the consolidated financial statements, in case of one of the subsidiaries viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited
the consolidated annual financial statements of MTEL reported that the Covid-19 pandemic has caused an adverse impact on the business operations of
MTEL and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “MTEL Group”) and their financial health. The revenue of MTEL Group has declined sequentially for the
year ended March 2021 and as a result MTEL Group has been incurring losses. Further, MTEL Group has defaulted in its debt and other obligations. These
indicate the existence of uncertainty that may cast doubt on MTEL Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The appropriateness of assumption of going
concern is dependent upon improvement in cash flows through normal operations post COVID-19 pandemic, timely monetization of assets and approval of
MTEL Group’s one-time restructuring of debts.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Emphasis of matters
We draw attention to:

a) Note 59 of the consolidated financial statements regarding recoverability of long outstanding vocational trade receivables and unbilled receivables
aggregating to Rs. 3,074.97 lakhs (net of provision) outstanding as at 31 March 2021, which represent amounts recoverable for various Central and
State Government/ Agencies projects in education/skill development sector. Based on internal assessment of the management which includes
considering the progress of the discussions with the relevant government parties, past trends, contractual rights and evidence of service delivery, the
managementis of the view that the aforesaid receivables (net of provisions) outstanding as at 31 March 2021 are good and recoverable.

b) Note 60 of the consolidated financial statements regarding invocation of pledge held by one of the promoters of MT Educare Limited (MTEL) by the
lender on account of repayment defaults by MTEL and its subsidiaries.

c) Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements that state that the management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s
operations, financial performance, and position as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021. Further, as stated in the Note, the Group has made
necessary provisions under the Expected Credit Loss model and concluded that there is no further impact which is required to be recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s result is dependent upon future
developments and the Group is monitoring the rapidly evolving situation and its potential impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial position.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the “Basis for qualified opinion” section we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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a) Assessmentofgoing concern basis (Refernotes 1B(ii) and 62 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused an impact on the business operations of the Group and its financial health. Further, during the year, the credit rating
of Holding Company’s borrowings has been downgraded and further its current liabilities exceeded the current assets as at 31 March 2021.

While the above factors indicated a need to assess the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, as mentioned in the aforesaid note, the Holding
Company has taken into consideration the following mitigating factors in its assessment for going concern basis of accounting.

+  TheHolding Company is in talks with its stakeholders like vendors to renegotiate the prices in order to decrease its costs thereby improving its margin.

+  The Holding Company is discussing with its lenders to restructure its debt and avail moratorium so that it can conserve cash so as to improve its cash
flows.

+  The Holding Company has undertaken several cost rationalisation measures and cut fixed cost like employee cost, rent, warehousing, transport etc so
as toimprove the margins.

+  The Holding Company has also undertaken several initiatives like blended learning program for its business partners in KIDZEE as well as MLZS so that
the education of childrenis not hindered.

Management has prepared future cash flow forecasts taking into cognizance the above developments and performed sensitivity analysis of the key
assumptions used therein to assess whether the Group would be able to operate as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and concluded that the going concern basis of accounting used for preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements is appropriate with no material uncertainty.

We have considered the assessment of management’s evaluation of going concern basis of accounting as a key audit matter due to the pervasive impact
thereof on the consolidated financial statements and the significant judgements and assumptions that are inherently subjective and dependent on future
events, involved in preparation of cash flow projections and determination of the overall conclusion by the management.

Auditor’s response
Ouraudit procedures included but were notlimited to, the following in relation to assessment of appropriateness of going concern basis of accounting:

+  Obtained an understanding of the management’s process for identifying all the events or conditions that could impact the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and the process followed to assess the mitigating factors for such events or conditions. Also, obtained an understanding around the
methodology adopted and the associated controls implemented by the Holding Company to assess their future business performance to prepare a
robust cash flow forecast;

+  Reviewed the cash flow forecast and considered the same to check whether the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations falling due within next
twelve months;

+  Tested the appropriateness of key assumptions used by the management, including the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on such assumption, that had
most material impactin preparation of the cash flow forecast;

Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements in respect of going concern

b) Revenuerecognition

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of revenues and other related balances in view of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”

+  Salesarerecognized when the control of the goods and services is transferred to the customer.

*  Revenue is recognized at the amount that reflects the considerations to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to customer.

*  Revenueisrecognized overatime orpointintime.

+  The Group focuses on revenue as a key performance measure which could create an incentive for revenue to be recognized before the control.
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Auditor’s Response

We assessed the Group’s process of identifying the revenue accounting.

Ouraudit approach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

+  Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) pertaining to revenue.

+  Assessing the application of Group’s accounting policies over revenue recognition and comparing these accounting policies on revenue recognition with
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

+ ldentifying the nature of the revenues and identification of any unusual contract terms.

+  Testing the revenue recognized including testing of Group’s control on revenue recognition, when applicable. Our testing included tracing the
information to agreements and payments.

+  Assessing the revenue recognized with substantive analytical procedures, and

+  Assessing the Group’s disclosure on revenue recognition.

Our procedures did notidentify any material exceptions.

6.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
ourauditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
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accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The respective Board of

Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

. Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(If the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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9. Other matters

10.

a)

b)

We did not audit the annual financial statements of eleven subsidiaries whose annual financial statements/consolidated financial statements (before
consolidation adjustments) reflect total assets of Rs. 118,291.18 lakhs as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of Rs. 22,072.44 lakhs, total net loss after tax
of Rs. 3,134.92 lakhs, total comprehensive loss of Rs. 3,102.08 lakhs and total cash outflows of Rs. 222.67 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These annual financial statements/consolidated annual financial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of Section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to these subsidiaries is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and our ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ below, is not modified in
respect of the above matter with regard to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company for the previous year ended 31 March 2020 were audited by the predecessor auditor, who
have expressed a modified opinion on those consolidated financial statements vide their report dated 07 October 2020.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

We have sought and except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragraph above, obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors;

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
forthe purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

The matters described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragraph above, in our opinion may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the group.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as at 31 March 2021 and taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in Indiais disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’
paragraph above;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Reportin “Annexure A”;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Reportin accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matters’ paragraph :
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i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated
financial statements;

ii. The Group did nothave any long-term contracts including derivative contracts having any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There are no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India except in one of the subsidiaries viz MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited the consolidated annual financial
statements of MTEL reported in its Auditor’s Report the following instances of delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

Year Amount (Rs. in lakhs) Due Date Transferred to IEPF on Delay in no. of days
2012-13 0.20 12 July 2020 03 February 2021 57
2013-14 0.37 11January 2021 03 February 2021 22

ForFord Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 102860W/W100089

Nitin Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 215336
Mumbai, 29 June 2021

UDIN:21215336AAAADK1842
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Annexure - Ato the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in
paragraph 10(h) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Zee Learn Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zee Learn Limited (“the Company” or “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India as of 31 March 2021, in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management'’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India, in
terms of their reports referred to in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
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financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for qualified opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit and consideration of the reports of the other auditors as referred to in ‘Other
matter’ paragraph below, the following material weaknesses have been identified as at 31 March 2021:

a) The Holding Company’s internal financial control with regard to assessment of impairment of goodwill of Rs. 31,323.64 lakhs (on acquisition of its subsidiary
company viz MT Educare Limited) in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) were not operating effectively, as the Holding
Company could not carry out a detailed and comprehensive assessment ofimpairment of goodwill as per the applicable Ind AS due to the prevailing Covid-19
pandemic (as fully explained in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ of our main report), which could result in the Holding Company not providing for adjustments, if
any, that may be required to be made and its consequential impact on the consolidated financial statements.

b) Inone of the subsidiaries viz. MT Educare Limited (MTEL), the other auditor who audited the consolidated annual financial statements of MTEL reported the
following material weaknesses:

i.  The information Technology General Controls being the access controls and changes management controls with respect to accounting for student
revenue and controls on the financial statement closure process were operating ineffectively to this extent; and

ii. Independent confirmations were not obtained/received from most of the customers/creditors and other parties including certain loans and advances
otherthan related parties for the balances as on 31 March, 2021.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on atimely basis.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors as
referred to in ‘Other matter’ paragraph below, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’
paragraph above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India have maintained, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as of 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, and the material weaknesses have affected our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and we have issued a qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Other matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(If the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to eleven subsidiary companies incorporated in India, is based on corresponding reports
of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 102860W/W100089
Nitin Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 215336

Mumbai, 29 June 2021
UDIN: 21215336AAAADK1842
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(% lakhs)
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 4,124.03 4,391.88
(b) Right-of-use assets 4 5,604.99 8,820.89
(c) Capital work-in-progress 3 - 676.11
(d) Investment property 5 24,677.55 25,744.27
(e) Investment property under development 5 30,305.62 29,553.91
(f) Goodwill 6 31,323.64 31,323.64
(9) Other intangible assets 7 6,422.87 7,168.54
(h) Intangible assets under development 7 5,257.65 5,270.02
(i) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 0.34 0.34
(ii) Loans 9 6,498.66 8,920.17
(iii) Other financial assets 10 208.44 877.30
() Deferred tax assets (net) 1" 7,809.48 8,697.47
(k) Non-current tax assets (net) 12 3,053.12 3,266.76
(I) Other non-current assets 13 1,582.17 1,613.39
Total non-current assets 1,26,868.56 1,36,324.69
Current assets
(a) Inventories 14 1,065.78 1,769.93
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 15 0.01 1,051.94
(ii) Trade receivables 16 9,135.97 6,670.91
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 17 (A) 566.27 809.40
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 17 (B) 760.21 743.64
(v) Loans 9 5,437.29 1,936.04
(vi) Other financial assets 10 2,769.78 2,088.13
(c) Other current assets 13 496.31 791.19
Total current assets 20,231.62 15,861.18
Assets classified as held for sale 18 - 64.25
Total Assets 1,47,100.18 1,52,250.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 19 3,260.93 3,260.93
(b) Other Equity 20 (A) 43,165.62 4381719
Equity attributable to owners of the parent (a+h) 46,426.55 47,078.12
Non-controlling Interests 20 (B) 15,008.81 16,231.25
Total Equity 61,435.36 63,309.37
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 25,067.31 27,412.60
(ii) Lease liabilities 22 4,192.15 6,572.75
(iii) Other financial liabilities 23(B) 1,838.86 1,267.03
(b) Provisions 24 645.66 636.04
(c) Other liabilities 25 16,147.13 18,289.36
Total non-current liabilities 47,891.11 54,177.78
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 4,900.47 4,384.66
(i) Lease liabilities 22 1,523.05 2,281.71
(iii) Trade payables 23 (A)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,046.31 653.91
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8,170.04 5,117.58
(iv) Other financial liabilities 23 (B) 14,922.23 9,232.09
(b) Other current liabilities 25 6,540.56 12,636.34
(c) Provisions 24 234.68 215.50
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 26 436.37 241.18
Total current liabilities 37,773.711 34,762.97
Total Liabilities 85,664.82 88,940.75
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,47,100.18 1,52,250.12
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 1-63
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the board
For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089 Nanette D'sa Surender Singh
Nitin Jain Bif8526 1531 Bif'85206770
Partner
Membership Number 215336 Ritesh Handa Rakesh Agarwal Anil Gupta
Place : Mumbai Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date :29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(% lakhs)
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income
Revenue from operations 27 25,712.25 51,482.78
Otherincome 28 5,632.53 4,155.40
Total Income 31,344.78 55,638.18
Expenses
Operational cost 29 5,725.02 13,753.89
Employee benefits expense 30 10,354.56 14,137.98
Finance costs 31 5,149.12 5,904.91
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 4,994.95 6,410.60
Otherexpenses 33 5,322.98 6,751.87
Total Expenses 31,546.63 46,959.25
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional item and tax (201.85) 8,678.93
Less: Exceptional item 51 - 3,114.65
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (201.85) 5,564.28
Less : Tax expense
Currenttax 34 1,043.33 2,533.20
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 869.86 519.61
Total Tax Expense 1,913.19 3,052.81
Profit/ (Loss) forthe year (A) (2,115.04) 2,511.47
Profit/ (Loss) for the year attributable to
Owners of the parent (879.30) 4,369.30
Non-controlling interest (1,235.74) (1,857.83)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan 71.94 (68.04)
Income tax effect on above (18.03) 19.11
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (B) 53.91 (48.93)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to
Owners of the parent 40.60 (34.26)
Non-controlling interest 13.31 (14.67)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (A+B) (2,061.13) 2,462.54
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to
Owners of the parent (838.70) 4,335.05
Non-controlling interest (1,222.43) (1,872.51)
Earnings per equity share (face value ¥ 1 each) 46
Basic (%) (0.27) 1.34
Diluted (%) (0.27) 1.34
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 1-63
As per our attached report of even date Forand on behalf of the board
For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089
Nanette D'sa Surender Singh
Director Director
Nitin Jain DIN-05261531 DIN-08206770
Partner
Membership Number 215336
Ritesh Handa Rakesh Agarwal Anil Gupta
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date :29June2021
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2021

(% lakhs)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

A. Equity share capital Note (ZLakhs)

Balance as at 01 April 2019 19 3,260.79

Changes in equity share capital 19(a) 0.14

Balance as at 31 March 2020 19 3,260.93

Changes in equity share capital 19(a) -

Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,260.93
B. Other equity (%Lakhs)

Reserves and surplus
Non
Capital Securities  Debenture Share General Retained Total Controlling Total
reserves Premium  redemption  options reserves earnings  attributable o iorect
reserve  outstanding to owners
account of the parent
Balance as at01April 2019 17.49 12,957.96 1,218.75 532.71 13,971.80  11,155.05  39,853.76 ~ 18,103.75  57,957.51
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - - - - - 4,369.30 4369.30  (1,857.83) 2,511.47
Re-measurementgains/ (losses)
on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - (34.26) (34.26) (14.67) (48.93)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 4,335.04 4,335.04 (1,872.50) 2,462.54
17.49 12,957.96 1,218.75 532.71 13,971.80  15,490.09  44,188.80  16,231.25  60,420.05
Transferred from retained earnings 203.13 (203.13) - - -
Dividend paid - (326.09) (326.09) - (326.09)
Dividend distribution tax paid - - - (67.03) (67.03) - (67.03)
Exercise of shares options - 4.63 (73.96) 7211 - 2.78 - 2.78
Share based payment expense (net) - 18.70 - 18.70 - 18.70
Balance as at 31 March 2020 17.49 12,962.59 1,421.88 47745 14,043.91  14,893.87 4381719  16,231.25  60,048.41
Loss for the year - - - (879.30) (879.30)  (1,235.74)  (2,115.04)
Re-measurementgains/ (losses)
on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 40.60 40.60 13.30 53.90
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (838.70) (838.70)  (1,222.44)  (2,061.14)
17.49 12,962.59 1,421.88 477.45 14,043.91 14,055.14 42,978.46  15,008.81  57,987.27
Share based payments
- Share based payment expense (net) 187.16 187.16 - 187.16
- Transferred to retained earnings on
lapse of vested options (50.59) 50.59 - - -
- - - 136.57 50.59 187.16 - 187.16

Balance as at 31 March 2021 17.49 12,962.59 1,421.88 614.02 14,043.91 1410573  43,165.62  15,008.81  58,174.43

1

BN

) Capital Reserve is created on account of gain on bargain purchase of an indirect subsidiary.

) Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. Itis utilised in accordance with the provisons of Companies Act, 2013.
)  Debenture redemption reserve created out of the profits is for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
)
)

Share option outstanding account is related to share options granted by the group to its employee under its employee share option plan.
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General Reserve includes %/Lakhs 8,881.25 (3/Lakhs 8,881.25)

pursuantto the scheme of Amalgamation, sanctioned by the Hon'ble Court of Bombay and shall not be used for the purpose of declaring dividend.
6) Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the group over the years.

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
As perour attached report of even date
ForFord Rhodes Parks & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860/W100089

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336 Ritesh Handa
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29June 2021
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Forand on behalf of the board

Nanette D'sa

Director

DIN-05261531

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Surender Singh
Director
DIN-08206770

Anil Gupta
Company Secretary

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax (201.85) 5,564.28
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,994.95 6,410.60
Liabilities no longer required/ excess provision written back (1,497.98) (88.01)
Share based payment expense 187.16 18.70
Net gain on Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - (8.31)
Bad debts /advance written off - 396.80
Loss on sale /discard of property, plantand equipment/intangible assets 27.78 27.91
Impairmentloss on property, plantand equipment 103.76 -
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets (166.89) (4.07)
Netgain on sale of investments (24.44) (13.68)
Netloss on foreign exchange transaction and translation 0.61 0.69
Interest expense 5,077.11 5,783.91
Allowances for credit losses 2,229.40 99.54
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs 6.26 6.26
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 352.19 335.11
Dividend income - (14.33)
Interestincome (3,179.19) (2,827.25)
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,908.87 15,688.15
Changes in working capital :

(Increase)/ Decrease ininventories 704.15 (455.45)
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables (1,907.65) 1,083.12
Increase / (Decrease) intrade and other payables (4,840.00) (1,402.41)
Cash generated from operations 1,865.37 14,913.41
Income tax paid (net) (622.37) (2,739.63)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 1,243.00 12,173.78
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plantand equipment/intangible assets /

investment property / capital work-in-progress (133.82) (876.85)
Sale of property, plantand equipment/ intangible assets 62.34 243
Proceed from/(Investments) in deposits with bank 612.09 1,287.79
Purchase of currentinvestments - (2,847.73)
Sale of currentinvestments 1,051.93 2,025.00
Loans givento others (565.30) (537.14)
Receipt of Loans given to others - 1,198.90
Dividend received 10.32 14.33
Interest received 388.25 1,271.86
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 1,425.81 1,538.59
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2021

(% lakhs)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

C. Cashflowfromfinancing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium) - 2.92
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 1,569.00 5,755.00
Repayment of non-current borrowings (1,475.82) (9,108.72)
Proceeds from current borrowings - -
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest) (1,225.45) (3,134.28)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) - (393.12)
Interest paid (1,779.67) (8,094.98)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (2,911.94) (14,973.18)
Net cash flow during the year (A+B+C) (243.13) (1,260.81)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 809.40 2,070.21
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 566.27 809.40
Add : Balances earmarked 760.21 743.64
Cashand bank balances at the end of the year 1,326.48 1,553.04

Notes:

1. Component of cash and bank balances as follows 31March 2021 31March 2020
Cashand cash equivalents 566.27 809.40
Bank Balances other then cash and cash equivalents 760.21 743.64
Total 1,326.48 1,553.04

2. Asrequired by IndAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, a reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising
fromfinancing activities is given in note 56

3. Theabove statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the " Indirect Method " as set out in the Ind AS -7 on " Cash Flow Statements".

4. Theimpactof non-cash transactions have not been given in the above statement of cash flows, details of which are given in note 56

5. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary.

As per our attached report of even date

For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 102860W/W100089

Nitin Jain
Partner
Membership Number 215336
RiteshHanda
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date :29June 2021
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Director
DIN-05261531
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Surender Singh
Director
DIN-08206770

Anil Gupta
Company Secretary
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Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. A Corporate Information

Zee Learn Limited (“the Company” or "the Holding Company) was
incorporated in State of Maharashtra on 4 January, 2010. The
Company along with its subsidiaries ("Group") is one of the most
diversified premium education Group which delivers learning solutions
and training through its multiple products viz. Kidzee, Mount Litera Zee
Schools, Mount Litera World Preschool, Zee Institute of Media Arts
(ZIMA), Zee Institute of Creative Arts (ZICA) and E - Learning Online
Education and Testing. The Group is also in the business of providing
and servicing school infrastructure on long-term lease agreements. It
also provides education support and coaching services for studentsin
the secondary and higher secondary school and for students pursuing
graduation degree in commerce, preparing for various competitive
examinations and undertaking chartered accountancy examinations.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021, were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 29 June 2021

Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements and
other significant accounting policies

i) These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there under and
guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared and
presented under the historical cost convention, on accural basis of
accounting except for certain financial assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
stated in the accounting policies stated out below.

i)  Going concern (also refer note 62 of consolidated financials
statements)

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused an impact on the business
operations of the Group and its financial health. Further, during the
year, the credit rating of Holding Company’s borrowings has been
downgraded and also its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets as at 31 March 2021. However, the consolidated financial
statements of Group have been prepared on going concern basis
based on the future business potentials and mitigating factors
adopted which are as follows:

+  The Holding Company is in talks with its stakeholders like vendors
to renegotiate the prices in order to decrease its costs thereby
improving its margin.

+  The Holding Company is discussing with its lenders to restructure
its debt and avail moratorium so that it can conserve cash so as to
improve its cash flows.

+  TheHolding Company has undertaken several cost rationalisation
measures and cut its fixed cost like employee cost, rent,
warehousing & transport, etc to improve its margins.

+  The Holding Company has also undertaken several initiatives like
blended learning program for its business partners in KIDZEE as
well as Mount Litera Zee School (MLZS) so that the education of
childrenis not hindered.

Management has prepared future cash flow forecasts taking into
cognizance the above developments and performed sensitivity
analysis of the key assumptions used therein to assess whether
the Group would be able operate as a going concern for a period of
at least twelve months from the date of consolidated financial
statements, and concluded that the going concern basis of
accounting used for preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements is appropriate with no material
uncertainty.

i) Functional and Presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees , whichis also the Group's functional currency.

Allamounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule Ill (except per share data), unless
otherwise stated. Zero'0.00' denotes amount less than % 500/-

iv)  Currentnon-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-
current as per the group’s normal operating cycle (twelve months)
and other criteria set outin the Schedule Il to the Act.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of Zee Learn Limited and entities controlled by Zee Learn
Limited.

Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity.
Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to
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direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's
returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences
until the date control ceases.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a
line-by-line basis and intra-group balances and transactions including
unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are eliminated upon

consolidation. These consolidated financial statements are prepared by
applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (as listed in the
table below)

Name of the Subsidiaries

Principal activities

Proportion of Interest

Principal place
(including beneficial mneipa’ P

\ " of business

interest) / Voting Power

(either directly / indirectly

or through Subsidiaries)
Direct Subsidiaries
Digital Ventures Private Limited Construction and leasing for education 100 % (100 %) India
Academia Edificio Private Limited Education support and coaching services 100 % (100 %) India
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited Training manpower and related activities 100 % (100 %) India
MT Educare Limited (MTEL) Education support and coaching services 59.12 % (59.12%) India

Name of the Subsidiaries

Principal activities

Proportion of Interest

. . - Principal place
(including beneficial

\ . of business
interest) / Voting Power
(either directly / indirectly
or through Subsidiaries)
Indirect Subsidiaries (held through MTEL)
Lakshya Forrum for Competitions Private Limited Education support and
coaching services 100 % (100 %) India
) . . o Education support and
MT Education Services Private Limited coaching services 100 % (100 %) India
Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited Education support and
coaching services 100 % (100 %) India
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited Education support and
coaching services 75 % (75 %) India
. - Education support and
Robomate Edutech Private Limited coaching services 100 % (100 %) India
Letspaper Technologies Private Limited Education support and _
coaching services 100 % (100 %) India
o - Acquiring and leasing
Labh Ventures India Private Limited properties 100 % (100 %) India
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Summary of significant accounting policies
Property, plantand equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. Other property, plant and
equipment acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. The carrying
amount of the replaced part accounted for as a separate asset
previously is derecognised. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in consolidated statement of profit and loss when incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective assetif the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and
equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the reporting date.

Investment property / investment property under
development

Investment property is land held for capital appreciation.
Investment property is measured initially at cost including
purchase price. It is measured and carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, ifany.

Expenditure incurred on acquisition / development of investment
property which are not ready to use at the reporting date is
disclosed under investment property under development.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions
required to complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the plan to sell will be made or that the
decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified
as held for sale only if the management expects to complete the
sale within one year from the date of classification.

(i

(i)

Goodwill and impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred over the net of acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each assets in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit
andloss.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Intangible assets/Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets acquired or developed are measured on initial
recognition at cost and stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Expenditure incurred on
acquisition / development of intangible assets which are not put /
ready to use at the reporting date is disclosed under intangible
assets under development.

Depreciation / amortisation on property, plant and equipment
lintangible assets /investment property

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment/intangible
assets / investment property is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.

Depreciation on property, plantand equipment(except freehold land
which s stated at cost) is provided on straight-line method as per the
usefullife prescribed in Schedule I to the CompaniesAct, 2013.
Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of Lease
or useful life of asset, whichever is lower.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over their
respective individual useful life estimated by the management.
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The useful life ofintangible assets are as follows ;

Intangible assets

Useful life (in years)

Brand 7
Software including SAP 3-5
Content development 3
Developmentrights 30

(iv)

Depreciation / amortisation of investment property is provided on
straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il
tothe CompaniesAct, 2013.

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment / intangible
assets/ investment property

The carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
there are indicators of impairment, an assessment is made to
determine whether the asset's carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
assetbelongs.

An impairment is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
and loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of net selling price, defined as the fair value
less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and
risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit
are reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised and is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment/ intangibles
assets /investment property

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment/
intangibles / investment property is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
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disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an
item of property, plantand equipment/intangibles is measured as
the difference between the net disposal in proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss when the item is derecognised.

Leases

() The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases
for building premises . The Group assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves
the use of an identified asset (ii) the group has substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (ii) the group has the right to direct the
use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes
aright-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on
astraight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or
terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets
and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairmentlosses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The lease liability is initially measured at amortized
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cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the group changes its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Operating lease / Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of rented premises (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificantrisk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and on hand, short-
term deposits and balances earmarked, as defined as they are
considered as integral part of Group's cash management.

Inventories

Educational goods and equipments  are valued at lower of cost or
estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises cost of purchase,
freight and other expense incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Costs are taken on weighted
average basis and specific identification method.

Fair value measurement

The Group has an established control framework with respect to
the measurement of fair values. The management regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

-Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

-Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, or

-Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurementis unobservable.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability
fall into different levels of a fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

Financial assets are recognized when the group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
oninitial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profitand loss.
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(A) Financial assets
(1) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: amortised cost, financial assets ‘at Fair value through
profit and loss' (FVTPL), ‘Fair value through other comprehensive
income' (FVTOCI). The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of cash flows.

() Debtinstrument

(a) Amortised cost

Afinancial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it
is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
assetin order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.

(b) Fairvalue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the
following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets.

b)  The asset's contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interestincome using the EIR method.

(c) Fairvaluethrough Profitand Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
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(i)

()

@)

at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument,
which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
consolidated statement of profitand loss.

Equity investments

The Group measures equity investments at fair value through
profit and loss. Where the Group's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to consolidated statement of profit
and loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit and loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Derecognition of financial assets
Afinancial assetis derecognised only when

a) The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or the rights have expired or

b) The Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients in
anarrangement.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates
whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset s not derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group measures the expected credit loss associated with its
assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the
business enviornment in which the entity operates or any other
appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends
onwhether there has been a significantincrease in credit risk.
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Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own
equity instruments.

Expected creditloss :

The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following.

i)  Tradereceivables

i)  Financial assets measured at amorised cost (other than trade
receivables)

i) Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach
wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL measured and recognised as
loss allowance. Loss allowances for trade receivable are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12 month expected credit losses are the portion of
expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument s less than 12 months).

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

In case of other assets, the Group determines if there has been a
significant increased in credit risk of the financial assets since initial
recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, an amount equal to 12 months ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

U]

(ii)

(b)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument s any contract that evidences a residual interestin
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued
for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilties are recognized when group becomes party to
contractual provisions of the instrument.The Group classifies all
financial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
as described below:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profitand loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group
uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on
market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The
methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash
flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and
such value may never actually be realized.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs
incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR.

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets till the time such assets are ready for intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of the assets. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle such obligation and the amount of such
obligation can be reliably estimated.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured
reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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(i)

(ii)

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements, however they are disclosed where the inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent
assetand isrecognised as an asset.

Revenue recognition

A.Revenue -
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received

or receivable. Revenue is recognised only when it can be reliably
measured and itis probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group. Transaction price is accounted net of Goods and
Services Tax (GST). Since GST is not received by the group on its
own account, rather, it is collected by the Group on behalf of the
government. Accordingly, itis excluded from revenue.

Sales - Educational goods and equipments /content is recognised
upfrontat the pointin time when the goods/ equipments/ content is
delivered to the customer via online/offline delivery, wherever
applicable, while the Group retains neither managerial
involvement nor the effective control.

Services

a) Course fees and Royalty income is recognized over the
duration of the course and as per agreed terms.

b) Franchise fees/ Management fees are recognized as per the
agreed terms of the agreement.

c) Revenue related to coaching services to students/
government is recognised based on time elapsed mode and
revenue is straight lined over the period of course duration.

d) Revenue from sale of hardware/content is recognised
upfront at the point in time when the hardware / content is
delivered to the customer via online/offline delivery, wherever
applicable, while the Group retains neither managerial
involvement nor the effective control.

In arrangements of providing both coaching services as well
as hardware/content to students, the Group has applied the
guidance in Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contract with
Customers”, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for
each distinct performance obligation. For allocating the
transaction price, the Group has measured the revenue in
respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its
relative standalone selling price. The price thatis regularly

Z

(i)

(iv)

m_
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charged for an item when sold separately is the best
evidence of its standalone selling price.

e) Revenue from government projects includes fees for
services rendered and is recognised over the period of the
training and coaching service duration, after taking into
account the uncertaininy involved in condition to be fulfilled
vide the terms of contract.

f)  Manpower supply services/Reimbursement of expenses are
recognised as per the agreed terms of agreement.

g) Onboarding and recruitment charges are accounted when
services are completed as per agreed terms.

h) Revenue from other services is recognised as and when
such services are completed/performed.

Interest income from financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amounton initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive
dividend is established.

Other income including financial guarantee commission and
premium on redemption of preference shares is recognised as
per terms of agreement.

B. Arrangements with Multiple Performance Obligations

The Group’s contracts with customers may include multiple
performance obligations. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on its
relative standalone selling price, which is generally determined
based on the price charged to customers.

C. Contractassets and liabilities

Contract assets relate primarily to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at each reporting
date. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group
issues aninvoice to a customer.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to consideration received in
advance from customers, for which the performance obligation is
yetto be satisfied.

D. Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer. Where customers
are provided with discounts, rebates etc, such discounts and
rebates will give rise to variable consideration. The Group follows
the ‘most likely amount’ method in estimating the amount of
variable consideration.

q Retirementand other employee benefits

(i)

(il

(i)

(iv)

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at
the undiscounted amount in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss for the year in which the related services are rendered.
Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Defined benefit plans

Post-employment and other long-term employee benefits are
recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss for the year in which the employee has rendered
services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the
amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprises of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest) are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss of the year
when the contribution to the respective funds are due. There are no
other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

Leave entitlementand compensated absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next
twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. Leave
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entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are
provided based on a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity
benefit. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of leave entitiement are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
occur.

Transactions in foreign currency

(i)

(il

(i)

The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupees (“3 ).

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of such transactions.

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on reporting
such monetary items at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous
financial statements are recognised as income or as expenses in
the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at historical cost
and translated at the exchange rate prevelant at the date of the
transaction.

Income taxes

Tax expense comprises of currentand deferred tax.

(i)

(ii)

Currenttax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of
taxable profit for a period. Current tax for current and prior periods
is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Presentation of current and deferred tax

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, except to the
extent they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income /
expense are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based
on internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. The
recoverable amount s the greater of an asset’s or cash generating
unit's, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided
on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting
periods is reversed by crediting the consolidated statement of

m_
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profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. Dilutive earnings per share is computed and
disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and
dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the period,
exceptwhen the results would be anti-dilutive.

Share based payments

Equity settled share based compensation benefits are provided
to employees under the various Employee Stock Option
Schemes.The fair value of options granted under the Employee
Stock Option Scheme is recognised as an employee benefits
expense with a corresponding increase in equity as ""Share
options outstanding account™. The total amount to be
recognised is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

* including any market performance conditions (e.g., the
entity’s share price)

+ excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period), and

* including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the
requirement for employees holdings shares for a specific
period of time).

The total expenses are amortised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the service
and non-market performance vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity. In case vested options forfeited or expires
unexercised, the related balance standing to the credit of the
"Share options outstanding account" is transferred to "Retained
earnings".

Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the
acquisition method under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business
Combinations.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the
assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. The cost of
acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent
consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.

Business combinations between entities under common control
is accounted for at carrying value.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a
business combination such as finder’s fees, legal fees, due
diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are
expensed asincurred.

Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or
before the end of the reporting period but remaining
undistributed at the end of the reporting period, where the same
has been appropriately authorised and is no longer at the
discretion of the entity.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as adeduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Exceptional items

Certain occassions, the size, type, or incidences of the item of
income or expenses pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
Group is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of
the performance of the Group, such income or expenses is
classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements.
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B  Critical accounting judgment and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
management to exercise judgment in applying the Group's
accounting policies. It also requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures
including disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.

a  Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from
litigation and other claims against the Group. Potential liabilities that
have a low probability of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify
reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements. There can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of these legal proceedings.

b Usefullife and residual values

The Group reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets at each financial year end.

¢ Impairmenttesting

i Judgmentis also required in evaluating the likelihood of collection
of customer debt after revenue has been recognised. This
evaluation requires estimates to be made, including the level of
provision to be made for amounts with uncertain recovery profiles.
Provisions are based on historical trends in the percentage of
debts which are not recovered, or on more detailed reviews of
individually significant balances.

i Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any
indication of impairment also requires judgment. If an indication of
impairment is identified, further judgment is required to assess
whether the carrying amount can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset.
This forecast involves cash flow projections and selecting the
appropriate discountrate.
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d Income Taxes

i The Group'’s tax charge is the sum of the total current and deferred
tax charges. The calculation of the Group'’s total tax charge necessarily
involves a degree of estimation and judgment in respect of certain items
whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has
been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through
aformal legal process.

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgments
and estimates in relation to tax related issues and exposures.

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more
likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available
in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be
deducted. Where the temporary differences are related to losses, the
availability of the losses to offset against forecast taxable profits is also
considered. Recognition therefore involves judgment regarding the
future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax Group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

Defined benefit obligation

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment benefits
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss in
accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ over the period during
which benefit is derived from the employees’ services. The costs are
assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the management.
These assumptions include salary escalation rate, discount rates,
expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. The same is
disclosedin Note 47, ‘Employee benefits’.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. In applying the
valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market
inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible,
consistent with observable data that market participants would use in
pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable,
management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market
participants would make. These estimates may vary from the actual
prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date.

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment requires determination
of the most appropriate valuation model. The estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or
terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-
by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain
that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In
evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term,
costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to the Group's operations and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to
ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances. After considering current and future economic
conditions, the Group has concluded that no changes are required to
lease period relating to the existing lease contracts.

(C) RecentIndianAccounting Standards (IND AS)
a. Standardsissued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or
amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2021.

b. Changes in accounting policies and adoption of
newi/revision in accounting standard:

i.  COVID-19 related rent concessions: Amendment to Ind AS
116 on ‘Leases’:

The MCA issued amendments to Ind AS 116 on ‘Leases’, to
provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a
COVID-19 related rent concession is a lease modification. The
amendments allowed the expedient to be applied to COVID-19
related rent concessions to payments originally due on or before

30 June 2021 and also require disclosure of the amount
recognised in profit or loss to reflect changes in lease payments
that arise from COVID-19 related rent concessions. The reporting
periodinwhichalessee

first applies the amendment, it is not required to disclose certain
quantitative information required under Ind AS 8.

The Group has not recognised any reversal of lease liability on
account of COVID-19 related rent concessions in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31
March 2021 as there were no amendments made to rent
agreements on accountof COVID-19.

Definition of Material -Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8:

Amendments have been made to Ind AS 1 on ‘Presentation of
Financial Statements’ and Ind AS 8 on ‘Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ which use a
consistent definition of materiality throughout the Ind AS and the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, clarify when
information is material and incorporate some of the guidance in
Ind AS 1 about immaterial information. In particular, the

amendments clarify:
- that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations

in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating that
information, and that an entity assesses materiality in the context
of the financial statements as awhole, and

- the meaning of ‘primary users of general purpose financial
statements’ to whom those consolidated financial statements are
directed, by defining them as ‘existing and potential investors,
lenders and other creditors’ that must rely on general purpose
financial statements for much of the financial information they
need.

The adoption of the amendment has not had any material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements.

Definition of a Business —Amendments to Ind AS 103:

The amended definition of a business in Ind AS 103 on ‘Business
Combinations’ requires an acquisition to include an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
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ability to create outputs. The definition of the term ‘outputs’ is amended to focus on goods and services provided to customers, generating investment
income and other income, and it excludes returns in the form of lower costs and other economic benefits. This amendment will likely result in more

acquisitions being accounted for as asset acquisitions. However during the year this amendment had no impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.
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Disclosures and Ind AS 109 on ‘Financial Instruments’ provide certain reliefs in relation to interest rate benchmark reforms. The reliefs relate to hedge
accounting and have the effect that the reforms should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. However, any hedge in effectiveness

should continue to be recorded in the income statement. The Group has not taken the benefit of the amendment.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendments to Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 39:

iv.

185
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4  Right-of-use asset 5 Investment property

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(% Lakhs) (% Lakhs)
Description of Assets Leased Premises Total Description of Assets Building Freehold Furniture & Office Computer Total
Land (#) Fixtures Equipment
I.  Gross carryingamountas at01April 2019 9,274.73 9,274.73 ] -
Additions during the year 200346 2.903.46 'I&((j;dr.?ss c:rryln?hamountas at01April2019  26,079.65 1,687.64 6::;&3) 52:;; 19;.2; 29,1:(15.22
Disposals during the year 186.38 186.38 ) rons urlng ¢ year i i ' ' ' '
Disposals during the year - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 199181 1199181 Balance as at 31 March 2020 26,079.65 1,687.64 §91.82 543.29 19466 29,197.06
Additions during the year - - 41.26 - 41.26
Additions during the year 164.57 164.57 Disposals during the year - - - - - -
Disposals during the year 2/487.63 2,487.63 Balance as at 31 March 2021 26,079.65 1,687.64 733.08 543.29 194.66 29,238.32
Il. Depreciation upto 31 March 2019 1,700.81 - 190.97 286.50 137.93 2,316.21
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,668.75 3,668.75 Depreciation charge for the year 977.07 . 69.76 74.39 1536 1,136.58
IIl.  Amortization upto 31 March 2019 - - Disposals during the year - - - - - -
Amortisation for the year 3,185.88 3,185.88 upto 31 March 2020 2,677.88 - 260.73 360.89 153.29 3,452.79
Disposals during the year 14.96 14.96 Depreciation charge forthe year 982.77 - 72.49 44.89 7.83 1,107.98
upto 31 March 2020 3,170.92 3,170.92 Disposals during the year . . . - i -
upto 31 March 2021 3,660.65 - 333.22 405.78 161.12 4,560.77
Amortisation for the year 2,319.94 2,319.94 Net carrying value
Disposals during the year 1,427.10 1,427.10 Balance as at 31 March 2021 22,419.00 1,687.64 399.86 137.51 33.54 24,677.55
Balance as at 31 March 2020 23,401.77 1,687.64 431.09 182.40 41.37 25,744.27
upto 31 March 2021 4,063.76 4,063.76
Details of Investment property under development (% Lakhs)
Net i |
etearrying vate Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5,604.99 5,604.99 _
Balance as at 31 March 2020 8,820.89 8,820.89 Opening balance 29,553.91 28,928.34
Add : Addition during the year 1,639.85 1,434.75
(% Lakhs) Less : Expensed off during the year 788.14 809.18
Net carrying value 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Closing balance 30,305.62 29,553.91
Right-of- 5,604.99 8,820.89 R Lakhs)
lght-ohuse asset i o Netbook value 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Investment property 24,677.55 25,744.27
Investment property under development 30,305.62 29,553.91
Fair value Land Building Category
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,103.75 34,546.23 Level 2
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,052.33 2,828.58 Level 3*
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2,103.75 34,546.23 Level 2
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,051.82 2,828.58 Level 3*

#  Mortgaged againstthe Secured Debentures.

*  Thefairvalue of the Group’s investment property has been arrived by the management on the basis of a appropriate ready reckoner rate/book value rate.
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6  Goodwill  Lakhs) 7 Other intangible assets (% Lakhs)
Description of Assets Brands Software DeS;rc‘)trTent De‘é?;%‘:? ° nt Total
Description of Assets Goodwill *
I. Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2019 31,323.64 l. Grlc.>ss carrying amount as at 01 April 2019 3,203.80 263.25 807.82 5,176.85 9,451.72
y i Additions during the year - 15.03 101.78 - 116.81
Additions during the year Disposals during the year ) ) ) )
Di | ingth
Isposals during the year Balance as at 31 March 2020 3,203.80 278.28 909.60 5,176.85 9,568.53
Balance as at 31 March 2020 31,323.64 Additions during the year - 12.18 35.66 - 47.84
Disposals during the year - - - -
Additions during the year - Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,203.80 290.46 945.26 5,176.85 9,616.37
Disposals during the year - Il. Amortization upto 31 March 2019 381.41 80.24 797.89 364.59 1,624.13
Balance as at 31 March 2021 31,323.64 Amortisation for the year 457.68 67.60 2143 229.15 775.86
Disposals during the year - - - - -
II. Amortization upto 31 March 2019 - upto 31 March 2020 839.09 147.84 819.32 593.74 2,399.99
Amortisation for the year - Ny
Disposals during the year Amortisation for the year 457.69 69.62 37.05 229.15 793.51
Disposals during the year - - - - -
upto 31 March 2020 - upto 31 March 2021 1,296.78 217.46 856.37 822.89 3,193.50
isation Net carrying value
Amortisation for the year . Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,907.02 73.00 88.89 435396 6,422.87
Disposals duringthe year - Balance as at 31 March 2020 2,364.71 130.44 90.28 4,583.11 7,168.54
upto 31 March 2021 Details of Intangible Assets under development (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net carrying value Opening balance 5,270.02 5,300.86
Balance as at 31 March 2021 31,323.64 Add : Addit.ion. during tlhe year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 31,32364 Less: Capltallzed dUrlng the year 12.37 30.84
Closing balance 5,257.65 5,270.02
*Arising on acquisition of MT Educare Limited  Lakhs)
Net carrying value 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Intangible Assets 6,422.87 7,168.54
Intangible Assets under Development 5,257.65 5,270.02

*Developments rights is a (i) right to execute development work, (ii) right to set up, run, operate and administer, and manage the school, institutes and units
set up on the allocated plot and undertake other ancillary operations in accordance with the terms of this Agreements; (iii) the first right to receive all funds,
receivables, revenues, profits and other incomes in respect of the operations of the school, institutes and Units from all parties in accordance with terms of

arrangement between parties.
Expenses incurred for execution of work as per terms of arrangement under development rights yet to be ready to use is shown as intangible assets under

development.

For details of intangible assets and intangible assets under development pledged as security, refer note 55.

The amount of contractual commitment for the acquisition of intangible assets is disclosed in note 38.
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8 Non-currentinvestments % Lakh 11 Deferred tax assets (net)
(¥ Lakhs) The components of deferred tax balances are as under: (X Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31March 2021 31 March 2020
Investments in equity instrument (fully paid up) Deferred tax assets
Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss - Unquoted Employee benefits obligation 284.23 333.64
. . . . - Depreciation and amortization 1,429.69 1,545.01
1,250 (1,250) Equity Shares of¥ 25 each fully paid up of The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited 0.31 0.31 Allowances for credit losses 5713.90 6,680.07
290 (290) Equity shares of X10/- each fully paid up of The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited 0.03 0.03 Disallowances under section 40(a) of the Income TaxAct, 1961 134.90 25.37
Total 0.34 0.34 Difference in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 272.61 168.09
. . Others 56.44 80.35
(Z Lakhs) Total (A) 7,891.77 8,832.53
Deferred tax liabilities
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Depreciation and amortization 93.66 146.43
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.34 0.34 Total (B) 93.66 146.43
Mat credit entitiement 11.37 11.37
Total (C 11.37 11.37
9 Loans @ Lakhs) otal (C)
Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B+C) 7,809.48 8,697.47
Non-Current Current
31March 2021 31 March 2020 31March 2021 31 March 2020 12 Non-currenttax assets (net))
Unsecured - considered good 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Security deposits 374.49 477.61 856.61 743.79 Balances with government authorities
Loans receivables -Direct taxes (net of provisions) 3,053.12 3,266.76
Others - considered good (Unsecured) # 13,284.28 17,714.23 10,987.45 4,306.89 Total 3.053.12 3266.76
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits and loans and advances  (7,160.11) (9,271.67) (6,406.77) (3,114.64)
Net Loans receivables 6,124.17 8,442.56 4,580.68 1,192.25 13 Otherassets (% Lakhs)
Total 6,498.66 8,920.17 5,437.29 1,936.04
Non-Current Current
#in case of one subsidiary viz Liberium Global Resources Private Limited the loan of Z/lakhs 169.57 (X/lakhs 453.52) carries interest @ 12.5% p.a. given to four 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

educational trust and is repayable on or before 31 March 2024.

Capital advances (unsecured)

10 Otherfinancial assets [ Lakhs) - Considered good 648.13 678.28 : -
Non-Current Current - Considered doubtful 33.71 33.71 - -

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 681.84 711.99 - -

Less: Allowances for doubtful advances (33.71) (33.71) - -

Deposit with banks having maturity period of more 6.62 630.52 - - 648.13 678.28 - -

than twelve months (Refer note 17 B) Other loans and advances (unsecured)

Advances and deposits - unsecured and considered good - Considered good 834.74 834.00 176.94 321.08
-torelated parties (Refer note 48) - 15.25 105.26 90.00 Prepaid expenses ) 084 84.41 121.46
-toothers 201.82 231.53 39.43 59.75 )

Claims receivable : : 0.67 110 Gratuity Fund - - 481 4t

Contractassets (Refer note 42) - - 492.03 546.96 Balance with government authorities

Other receivables (net) . . 2,132.39 1,390.32 - Indirecttaxes 99.30 100.27 230.15 344.38

Total 208.44 877.30 2,769.78 2,088.13 Total 1,582.17 1,613.39 496.31 791.19
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14 Inventories (% Lakhs) 17 Cashandbankbalances % Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Current
31March 2021 31March 2020
Educational goods and equipments (Refer note (a) below) 1,065.78 1,769.93
Total 1,065.78 1,769.93 A Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in Current accounts 563.22 799.98

a Inventories were written down to net realisable value by ¥ /lakhs 507.68 (3 /lakhs 407.68)

b Fordetails ofinventories being pledged as security, refer note 55 Cash on hand Total (A) 5622? Boglii
15 Currentinvestments % Lakhs) B Other balances with banks
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Balances with banks -
] ] ] - Unclaimed dividend account - Bank balance @ 27.83 25.04
Investments carried at fair value through Profit and loss - In deposits with banks having maturity period upto twelve months # 732.38 718.60
Mutual funds - Quoted (at face value of 31000 each) - In deposits with banks having maturity period of more than twelve months # 6.62 630.52
. . o _ . 766.83 1,374.16
Nil (10,474) units of HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth option - 409.16 Disclosed under "Other non-current financial assets” (Refer note 10) (6.62) (630.52)
0.355 (16,465) units of HDFC Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth option (Face value of ¥ 1000 each) 0.01 642.78 Total (B) 760.21 743.64
Total 0.01 1,051.94 Total (A+B) 1,326.48 1,553.04
(Allthe above securities are fully paid up) . . -
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof 0.01 1051.94 @ The Group can utilise these balances only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend.
# a) Lien for Government authorities Z/lakhs 0.50 (Z/lakhs 0.50) Lien for others Z/lakhs 33.10 (Z/lakhs 33.10)
16 Tradereceivables  Lakhs) b) Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees issued I/lakhs 278.33 (Z/lakhs 264.90) and Held as lien by bank against loan given I/lakhs 420.00
(Nakhs 420.00).
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Considered good - secured ) 499.27 18 Assets classified as held for sale (% Lakhs)
Considered good - unsecured 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
-Related parties (Refer note 48) 650.57 501.18
-Others 8,485.40 5,670.46 Assets classified as held for sale - 64.25
Considered doubtful 9,130.97 11,793.92 Total . 64.25
18,266.94 18,464.83
Less: Allowances for creditlosses (9,130.97) (11,793.92) The Group dispose off property at Gazipur during the year.
Total 9,135.97 6,670.91

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit period extended to them is 0-180 days.

There are no debts due by directors or other officers of the Group or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or
private companies in which any director is a partner or a director oramember.

The Group's exposure to credit risk related to trade receivable is disclosed in note 52.
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19  Equity share capital (X Lakhs) e) Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 The Holding Company has amended its Employee Stock Option scheme (ZLL ESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP 2010- AMENDED 2015 to align the scheme with
provisions of Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014 for issuance of upto 16,007,451 stock options
Authorised (increased from 6,136,390) convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of T 1 each not exceeding the aggregate of 5% of the issued and paid up
1,000,000,000 (1,000,000,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- each 10,000.00 10,000.00 capital of the Holding Company to the employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiary viz Digital Ventures Private Limited as amended in board
10,000.00 10,000.00 resolution dated 30 September 2016 at the market price determined as per the SEBI (Shared Bases Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014. The said
Issued, subscribed and paid up Scheme is administered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
326,092,725 (326,092,725) Equity Shares of T 1/- each fully paid up 3,260.93 3,260.93
Total 3.260.93 3.260.93 f)  Summary of options granted under the Scheme
o . . 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Reconciliation of number of Equity shares and Share capital
Average exercise price Number of Average exercise price Number of
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 per share option¥ options per share option ¥ options
Number of % Lakhs Numberof 3 Lakhs Opening balance 22.29 76,67,696 31.56 51,72,625
equity shares equity shares Granted during the year 14.10 1,50,000 18.70 39,62,181
Atthe beginning of the year 32,60,92,725 3,260.93 32,60,78,725 3,260.79 Exercised during the year (Refer Note (i) below) X X 3049 14,000
Add : Allotted on exercise of Employee Stock Option - - 14,000 0.14 Forfeited during the year 1410 588,503 30.62 14,53,110
Closing balance - 72,29,193 - 76,67,696
Outstanding atthe end of the year 32,60,92,725 3,260.93 32,60,92,725 3,260.93 Vested and exercisable _ 35,53 047 _ 38,58,717
b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares g) Expiry date and exercise prices of the share options outstanding at the end of the year:
The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1 each. The Holding Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Grant Grant date Expirydate  Exerciseprice  Revised Expiry Revised Exercise Share options
Rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Numbers 3 date (Refernoteh)  price (Refer note h) 31March2021 31 March 2020
g
In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after
o ) L . . 1st Grant 27-Jan-2011 27-Jan-2018 26.05 27-Jan-2018 26.05 - -
distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
2nd Grant 30-Jan-2012 30-Jan-2019 14.50 30-Jan-2019 14.50 - -
c) The Holding Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other than cash or bought back equity shares during the five 3rd Grant 9-Oct-2013 9-Oct-2020 20.85 30-Dec-2024 14.10 6,026 9,701
years preceding 31 March 2021. 4th Grant 2-Apr-2014 2-Apr-2021 27.55 2-Apr-2021 27.55 - -
5th Grant 29-Sep-2014  29-Sep-2021 35.25 30-Dec-2024 14.10 96,075 1,35,637
d) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate Equity shares of the Holding Company 6th Grant 28-0ct-2015 28-0ct-2022 31.80 30-Dec-2024 14.10 21,52,490 21,52,490
7th Grant 25-Jul-2016 25-Jul-2023 31.40 25-Jul-2023 31.40 - 50,000
Name of the Shareholders 31March 2021 31 March 2020 8th Grant 30-Sep-2016  30-Sep-2023 34.15 30-Dec-2024 14.40 832,884 905,134
Number of . _ Numberof . 9th Grant 15-Jan-2018  15-Jan-2025 46.50 15-Jan-2025 46.50 - -
equityshares % Shareholding equityshares % Shareholding 10thGrant ~ 19-Feb-2018  19-Feb-2025 42.20 19-Feb-2025 14.10 547,774 712,703
Essel Holdings Limited 2,88,74,238 8.85% 2,88,74,238 8.85% 11th Grant 9-Aug-2018 9-Aug-2025 36.90 9-Aug-2025 36.90 - -
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 2,48,88,250 7.63% 5,73,93,250 17.60% 12th Grant 22-0Oct-2019 22-0ct-2026 18.70 22-Oct-2026 14.10 34,83,944 37,02,031
Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd 2,09,55,327 6.43% 2,09,55,327 6.43% 13th Grant 24-Apr-2020 24-Apr-2027 14.10 24-Apr-2027 14.10 1,10,000 -
Rattanindia Finance Private Limited 2,09,50,000 6.42% - 0.00% Total 72,29,193 76,67,696
Polus Global Fund 2,04,00,000 6.26% 2,06,27,966 6.33% Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period (in years) 4.67 3.65
Jayneer Capital Private Limited 1,94,04,227 5.95% 6,12,10,000 18.77%
Indusind Bank Limited 1,73,70,000 5.33% - 0.00% h)  During the year, the Holding company (Zee Learn Limited) modified/repriced 82,70,157 outstanding (as on 31 Dec 2019) stock option granted (whether

vested or not but yet to be exercised) to option grantees, in one or more tranches under the Employees Stock Option Scheme 2010 as amended in 2015
(hereinafter referred to as "Scheme"), exercisable into not more than 82,70,157 (as on 31 Dec 2019) fully paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 1/-
(Rupee one) each upon payment of the Exercise price ranging from Rs. 18.70 to Rs. 42.20 per option, as above to Rs. 14.10 per option w.e.f 24 April 2020,
and as a consequence thereof and as connected therewith, extend the exercise period by four years from the date of shareholders approval in Annual
General Meeting held on 30 December 2020.

As per the records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the black scholes model with the following assumptions

Scheme 1st Grant 2nd Grant 3rd Grant 4th Grant 5th Grant
Grant date 27-Jan-2011 30-Jan-2012 9-Oct-2013 2-Apr-2014 29-Sep-2014
Weighted average fair value of options granted ¥ 23.82 6.89 7.98 400.48 13.3
Revised Exercise price (Refer note h above) I 26.05 14.50 14.10 27.55 14.10
Share price at the grant date ¥ 24.70 14.50 22.25 26.85 35.30
Expected volatility 41.56% 38.53% 36.90% 37.02% 38.82%
Risk free interest rate 6.89% 6.93% 7.01% 7.10% 7.15%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life of the options (years) 0.66 0.92 1.72 1.92 2.25
Scheme 6th Grant 7th Grant 8th Grant 9th Grant 10th Grant
Grant date 28-Oct-2015 25-Jul-2016 30-Sep-2016 15-Jan-2018 19-Feb-2018
Weighted average fair value of options granted ¥ 3.03 200.24 4.80 922.16 15.15
Revise Exercise price (Refer note h above) ¥ 14.10 31.40 14.10 46.50 14.10
Share price at the grant date ¥ 32.15 31.35 35.20 46.80 42.75
Expected volatility 38.87% 37.56% 35.81% 35.05% 35.05%
Risk free interest rate 7.21% 6.36% 6.38% 7.04% 7.04%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life of the options (years) 2.79 2.57 2.75 3.3 34
Scheme 11th Grant 12th Grant 13th Grant
Grant date 9-Aug-2018 22-0ct-2018 24-Apr-2020
Weighted average fair value of options granted ¥ 11.99 10.05 8.10
Revise Exercise price (Refer note h above) ¥ 36.90 14.10 14.10
Share price at the grant date ¥ 36.90 17.80 14.65
Expected volatility 35.02% 79.00% 68.00%
Risk free interest rate 7.98% 6.30% 4.58%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life of the options (years) 3.86 3.72 3.78

J)

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future

volatility due to publicly available information.

Expense arising from share based payments transactions

(% Lakhs)

Financial Statement

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Gross expense / (reversal) arising from share based payments 187.16 18.70
Less: Options granted/(forfeited) to/(from) employees of subsidiaries

recognised as deemed investment in subsidiaries - -
Employee share based payment expense /(reversal) recognised in consolidated

statement of profit and loss (Refer note 30) 187.16 18.70

Notes:

(i)  The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2021 was ¥ 29.23 (¥ 30.49).
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20. (A) Otherequity (% Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Reserves and surplus
Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 17.49 17.49
17.49 17.49
Securities premium
As per last Balance Sheet 12,962.59 12,957.96
Add: Onissue of Shares under Employee Stock Option Plan - 463
12,962.59 12,962.59
Debenture redemption reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 1,421.88 1,218.75
Add: Transferred from retained earnings - 203.13
1,421.88 1,421.88
Share options outstanding account
As perlast Balance Sheet 477.45 532.71
Add: Share based payment expense (net) 187.16 18.70
Less: Transferred to retained earnings on lapse of vested options (50.59) -
Less : Transfer to securities premium on allotment of shares - (1.85)
Less : Transfer to general reserve on allotment of shares - (72.11)
614.02 477.45
Generalreserve
As per last Balance Sheet 14,043.91 13,971.80
Add: Onissue of Shares under Employee Stock Option Plan - 7211
14,043.91 14,043.91
Retained earnings
Opening Balance 14,893.87 11,155.06
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year (879.33) 4,383.99
Add: Transferred from share options outstanding account on lapse of vested options 50.59 -
Re-measurementgains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 40.60 (48.93)
Less: Appropriations
Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve - (203.13)
Dividend paid - (326.09)
Dividend Distribution tax paid - (67.03)
14,105.73 14,893.87
Total 43,165.62 43,817.19
20 (B) Non-controlling Interest
(% Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
As per last Balance Sheet 16,231.25 18,103.75
Add : Non-controlling interest arising on account of acquisition of subsidiary - -
Add : Loss for the year (1,222.44) (1,872.50)
Total 15,008.81 16,231.25
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(X Lakhs) (i)  The above loans are secured by first charge on all present and future immovable, movable and intangible assets of the BKC School Project, the
entire current assets of the BKC School Project, including first charge on all the escrow accounts and TRAs held by TALEEM and subsidiary
company viz Digital Ventures Private Limited (DVPL) for the Project, as well as assignment of all insurance policies taken for the Project with the
Bank as loss payee, all present and future rights, titles and interests of the Project from all contracts, insurances, documents, which DVPL s party
to including contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and all other contracts or letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond provided by any
party to DVPL and registered mortgage on lease hold land of the project. The loan is collaterally secured by corporate guarantee from holding
company and pledge of 51% shares held by the holding company in DVPL subject to adherence to Banking Regulation Act, 1949, to be held pari

Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured (Refer note (1) below) 8,537.16 7,661.35 - passuwith RTLII (% /lakhs102.21 Cr).

[(Including interest ¥/lakhs 901.08 (¥/lakhs 455.50)] ¢) Term loan from Axis Bank Limited Z/lakhs 1,297.92 (3/lakhs 1,260.49) is secured by, first pari passu hypothecation charge on the entire current
assets and movable assets (except vehicle) of the subsidiary company both present and future, pledge of shares and personal guarantee given by one

21 Borrowings

Current
31 March 2020

Non-Current
31 March 2020

31 March 2021 31 March 2021

Debentures (Refer note (1) below)- Secured 1,780.44 3,484.18 2,592.16 890.22

Total (A) 10,317.60 11,145.53 2,592.16 890.22 of the promoter of the subsidiary company. The said loan is repayable in 8 Half yearly installment starting from September 2018. Last Installment due in
Others - Secured February 2022. Rate of interestis 1.75% over banks 12 months Marginal Cost of Funds based Lending Rate (MCLR).
Termloan from Termloan from SVC Co-operative Bank Ltd Z/lakhs 3,882.88 (3/lakhs 3,537.03) is secured by mortgage ofimmovable property at Mangalore. The said
- Banks (Refer note (IIl), (VIl) and (VIII) below) 14,948.79 14,834.51 3,064.33 2,426.69 loan was restructured in accordance with Resolution Framework for Covid-19-related Stress issued by Reserve Bank of India dated 06 August 2020
- Other parties (Refer note (V), (V1), (V1) and (VIII) below) 2,854.19 3,240.71 4.66 4.29 bearing reference number DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 with sanction letter dated 22 March 2021. As per the revised sanction letter the loan is
repayablein 36 monthly EMI ofX/lakhs 49.60 from January 2023 to December 2025, 36 monthly EMI of Z/lakhs 57.30 from January 2026 to December
Bank overdraft facility (Refer note (IV), (V1) and (VIll) below) 4.900.47 4.384.66 2028, 9 monthly EMI ofX/lakhs 66.10 from January 2029 to September 2031, further the subsidiary company has received Moratorium of 2 years from
January 2021 to December 2022.
Less: Amount disclosed under the head (3,053.27) (1,808.15) (5,661.15) (3,321.20) v ngrdraft facilities from Yes Bank, Axis Bank Limitedland Qevelopment Credit Bank (DCB) of Z/lakhs 4,900.47 (ZNlakhs 4,384.66) are §gcured by way
"Other current financial iabilities" (Refer Note 23 B) of first pari passu charge on all the movablfe assets (including current a§set§, loans and advances) gf the holding company and a sqt?gldlary company.
Total (B) 14.749.71 16,267.07 230831 3.494.44 Furtheroverdraft from Yes Bank and DCB is secured by cross collateralization of pledge of shares given for term loan. Overdraft facilities carry interest
ranging from 10.20% to 12%.
Total (A+B) 25,067.31 27,412.60 4,900.47 4,384.66

V  Vehicle loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited of %/lakhs 12.73 (Z/lakhs 17.01) is secured against hypothecation of respective vehicle. The rate of
interestis 8.92% p.a and repayable upto 05 February 2023.

Fortransactions relating to related party, refer note 48.

| Debentures VI Termloan from Xander Finance Private Limited X/lakhs 2,846.12 (%/lakhs 3,227.99) is secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge on the

entire current assets and movable assets of the subsidiary companies both present and future; personal guarantee given by one of the promoter of the

400 (400) 10.40% Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Z/lakhs 10.00 each fully paid up aggregating to I/lakhs subsidiary company. Repayable in 10 half yearly installments starting from October 2018. Last installment due in March 2023. Rate of interestis 13.75%.

4,372.60 (J/lakhs 4,374.40) [including interest of T/lakhs 21.49 (I/lakhs 374.40), are issued for a period of 5 years and 3 months from the date of allotment Vil
as per original terms. The terms of the NCDs have been revised w.e.f. 14 July 2020. As per the revised terms 400, 10.02% (revised coupon rates) NCDs of
3/lakhs 6.85 (revised face value) are redeemable by 13 July 2022 in three installments starting from 13 January 2021. The terms of NCDs were revised
again and are now redeemable in six installments starting from 13 January 2021. The NCDs are secured by first pari passu charge on all the fixed and

currentassets, all the rights, titles and interests to provide security cover of 1.1 times on outstanding amount.

During the previous year Group availed to defer scheduled Term Loan / Overdraft servicing payments as per RBI Circular of 27 March 2020 and 23 May
2020 on Moratorium for debt servicing for period 1 March 2020 till 31 August 2020. Accordingly, the Group opted to defer interest on term loan
amounting to¥/lakhs 1,102.37 and interest on bank overdraft facility amounting to /lakhs 232.35 and repayable not later than 31 March 2021.

VIl The subsidiary company MT Educare Limited (MTEL) and its subsidiary companies (MTEL Group) have requested for One Time Restructuring (OTR)
of their borrowings in accordance with Resolution Framework for Covid-19-related Stress issued by Reserve bank of India dated 06 August 2020,
bearing reference number DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 with Axis Bank Limited and Xander Finance Private Limited vide letter dated 22
December 2020.The said restructuring is under process and pending for approval. Pending OTR, delays and defaults in principal and interest amounts

Il Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured
Theloan carries Interest @12.5% p.a and is repayable on or before 31 March 2023.

are reported below.
il Termloans from banks
a) Termloan from Development Credit Bank (DCB) of Z/lakhs 1472.47 (Z/lakhs 1408.22) [including interest accrued of Z/lakhs 72.47 (Z/lakhs 8.22) is a)  Details of default in repayments (% Lakhs)
secured by way of first charge ranking pari pasu over movable assets including current assets, loans and advances with minimum coverage of 1.25x for Principal Interest
entire tenure of the facility which includes charge on the accounts that receive cash from franchisee/revenue of the Holding Company plus DSRA Lender Amount Due Date Delay Days ** Amount Due Date  Delay Days ** Remarks
equivalent to .one. month interest to be malntalned upfront and ong immediate mstalllmlent to belmalnFamed one month prior to .ItS. schedule payment. Axis Bank Limited - Term Loan 312,50 31-Aug-20 213 1087 31-Mar-21 1 Unpaid
The loan carries interest of 9.76% and is repayable in 12 quarterly installments beginning from financial year 2018-19 as per original terms. However, - — - -

. . . ; . . ) Axis Bank Limited - Term Loan 312.50 28-Feb-21 32 37.08 Various dates 1-60 Unpaid
the Holding Company opted to defer the tenure of its term loan under Moratorium benefits and now the outstanding amount is payable in three equal - — " -
monthly installments starting from July 2021 (Also refer note VIl below) Axis Bank Limited- Overdraft 5.94 31-Mar-21 1 - - Unpaid

y 9 y ' Axis Bank Limited- Overdraft 4847 Various dates  _ Overdrawn - - - Unpaid
b) (i)  Term loan from Axis Bank Limited ¥/lakhs 9,081.83 (Z/lakhs 8,844.69 ) [including interest accrued of I/lakhs 270.22 (Z/lakhs 94.69) carries Xander Finance Private Limited 247.95 30-Sep-20 183 129.77* 31-Mar-21 1 Unpaid
interest @ bank's base plus spread of 2.65% p.a viz., 12.90% p.a. The loan is repayable in 37 quarterly installments begining from 4th year i.e Xander Finance Private Limited 247.95 31-Mar-21 1 27.25 31-Mar-21 60 Unpaid
Financial year 2018. Xander Finance Private Limited - - 29.90 28-Feb-21 32 Unpaid
(i) Termloan from Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited ¥/lakhs 2,278.03 (Z/lakhs 2,210.78) [including interest of Z/lakhs 71.64 (¥/lakhs 23.78) carries Xander Finance Private Limited - 29.58 31-Mar-21 1 Unpaid

interest @ bank's base plus spread rate of 1.75% p.a viz., 12.50% p.a. The loan is repayable in 37 quarterly installments beginning from 4th year

i.e Financial year 2018.
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b) Details of delays in repayments (% Lakhs)
Principal Interest
Lender Amount Due Date Delay Days ** Amount Due Date Delay Days **
Axis Bank Limited - Term Loan - - 124.67 Various dates within 1 year
Xander Finance Private Limited 297.43 30-Sep-20 57 168.18 Various dates 0-91

22

* MTEL Group availed to defer interest on scheduled term loan and overdraft facility as per RBI Circular of 27 March 2020 and 23 May 2020 on
Moratorium for debt servicing for period 1 March 2020 till 31 August 2020. Accordingly, the MTEL Group has deferred interest on term loan and
overdraft facility amounting to Z/lakhs 140.64 and I/lakhs 5.94 respectively and shall be repayable not later than 31 March 2021.

** MTEL Group has considered delays/defaults considering moratorium allowed to the Group but pending one time restructuring.

Lease liabilities

(X Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Lease liabilities (Refer note 36) 4,192.15 6,572.75 1,523.05 2,281.71
Total 4,192.15 6,572.75 1,523.05 2,281.71
23  Financialliabilities (X Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A. Trade payables
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 1,046.31 653.91
small enterprises (Refer note 40)
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro - - 8,170.04 5117.58
enterprises and small enterprises
Total (A) - - 9,216.35 5,771.49
B. Otherfinancialliabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 21) - - 8,714.42 5,129.35
Deposits payable - Customers 10.45 10.45 2.00 2.00
Deposits payable - Others 1,828.41 1,256.58 28.27 26.84
Unclaimed dividend payable # - - 27.82 25.04
Employee benefits payable - - 1,595.80 1,219.46
Book overdraft - - 54.62 -
Creditors for capital expenditure
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (Refer note 40) - - 38.72 12.00
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - 426.42 247.59
Other payables
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
smallenterprises (Refer note 40) - - 68.99 20.44
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - 3,965.17 2,549.37
Total (B) 1,838.86 1,267.03 14,922.23 9,232.09
Total (A+B) 1,838.86 1,267.03 24,138.58 15,003.58

Trade payable and others are non-interest bearing and are normally settled In normal trade cycle.
#There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investors Education and Protection Fund as on 31 March 2021.
The Group's exposure currency and liquidity risk related to trade payable is disclosed in note 52.
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24 Provisions (% Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31March 2020
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 509.78 48513 113.87 133.35
- Leave benefits 135.88 150.91 120.81 82.15
Total 645.66 636.04 234.68 215.50
25 Otherliabilities  Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2021 31March 2020 31 March 2021 31March 2020
Contractliabilities (Refer note 42) # 39.60 322.39 4,440.62 6,476.54
Deferred deposit 16,107.53 17,966.97 622.44 685.79
Statutory dues payable - - 1,396.59 1,489.69
Others - - 80.91 3,984.32
Total 16,147.13 18,289.36 6,540.56 12,636.34

# Fees collected in advance from students to the extent of revenue which will not be recognised within the Group's operating cycle have been classified as "Other
non current liabilites".

26 Currenttax liabilities

(X Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Provision for taxation (net of advances) 436.37 24118
Total 436.37 241.18

27 Revenue from operations % Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Services
- Course fees/royalty 3,857.22 8,008.30
- Franchisee fees 618.85 989.25
- Lease rental 2,495.43 3,001.15
- Manpower supply & reimbursement of expenses 4,546.04 6,697.26
- Onboarding/recruitment charges 1.64 3.92
- Sale of municipal waste 1,758.66 1,901.75
- Coaching and teaching services (net of discount and concession) 7,378.24 19,848.19
- Others 735.60 402.46
Sales - Educational goods and equipments 4,173.33 9,857.88
Sales - Hardware and content 138.38 344.27
Other operating revenue * 8.86 428.35
Total 25,712.25 51,482.78

* Other operating revenue mainly includes royalty income.
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28 Otherincome (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31March 2020
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
- on bank deposits 29.97 52.68
- on loans and advances to others 2,862.37 2,489.22
Interest income others
- others 286.85 285.36
Dividend income on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) - 14.33
Gain on sale of current investments 24 .44 13.68
Financial guarantee commission 283.63 283.45
Unwinding of discount of Interest free deposits / Financial guarantee obligation 352.19 335.11
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets 166.89 4.07
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.80 -
Reversal of provision / liabilities no longer required 199.38 88.01
Miscellaneous income 1,426.01 589.49
Total 5,632.53 4,155.40
For transactions with related parties, refer note 48
29 Operational cost (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31March 2020
A) Educational goods and equipments
Opening - Inventories 1,769.93 1,314.48
Add: Purchases 784.58 3,236.56
Less: Closing - Inventories (Refer note 14) (1,065.78) (1,769.93)
Total (A) 1,488.73 2,781.11
B) Othereducational operating expenses
-Rent 265.32 289.82
- Electricity 219.79 671.76
- Manpower cost and other professional fees 3,070.95 7,877.05
- Student material and test expenses 452.23 1,708.83
- Others 228.00 425.32
Total (B) 4,236.29 10,972.78
Total (A+B) 5,725.02 13,753.89
30 Employee benefits expense @ Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salaries and allowances 9,079.97 12,652.29
Share based payment expense (Refer note 19 (j)) 187.16 18.70
Contribution to provident and other funds 888.17 1,151.41
Training and recruitment cost 144.59 157.00
Staff welfare expenses 54.67 158.58
Total 10,354.56 14,137.98
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31 Finance costs (X Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest expenses on -
- Borrowings 3,900.51 4,308.03
- Defined benefit obligation 9.28 8.17
- Leases 686.57 1,056.29
- Others 208.23 94.59
Unwinding of discount on interest free deposits 272.52 316.83
Other financial charges 72.01 121.00
Total 5,149.12 5,904.91
32 Depreciation and amortisation expense
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 773.52 1,312.28
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 2,319.94 3,185.88
Depreciation on investment property 1,107.98 1,136.58
Amortisation of intangible assets 793.51 775.86
Total 4,994.95 6,410.60
33 Otherexpenses (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31March 2020
Rent 101.10 51.49
Repairs and maintenance - others 318.71 1,177.48
Insurance 64.66 63.10
Rates and taxes 78.89 102.39
Electricity and water charges 33.07 33.09
Communication expenses 128.26 158.63
Printing and stationery 42.61 25717
Travelling and conveyance expenses 345.79 1,170.31
Legal and professional charges 652.14 404.98
Payment to auditors (Refer note 39) 63.17 60.48
Freightand packaging charges 556.65 773.79
Directors sitting fees 12.10 9.14
Bad debts /advances written off - 567.72
Loss on sale/discard of Property, plantand equipments (net) 27.78 27.91
Allowances for credit losses 2,229.40 99.54
Marketing, advertisement and publicity expenses 338.65 1,136.59
Provision for Impairment of Property, plantand equipments 103.76 -
Netloss on foreign exchange transactions and translations 0.61 0.69
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note 43) 55.37 14.01
Miscellaneous expenses 170.26 643.36
Total 5,322.98 6,751.87
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34 Taxexpense

Z Financial Statement

a) The major components of income tax for the year are as under: (% Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Income tax related to items recognised directly in the consolidate statement of profitand loss
Currenttax- currentyear 827.62 2,558.49
-earlieryears 215.71 (25.29)
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 869.86 519.61
Total 1,913.19 3,052.81

b) Areconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at Group’s effective

income tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is as follows: (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit / (Loss) before tax (201.85) 5,564.28
Statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (25.63%) on profit (50.80) 1,425.88
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 791.96 591.83
Additional allowances for tax purposes (545.04) (603.94)
Other temporary difference 869.86 519.61
Effect of change in tax rate 847.21 1,123.10
Effect of exempt income and income tax at lower rates - (3.67)
Tax expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss 1,913.19 3,052.81
c) Deferred tax recognized in statement of other comprehensive income % Lakhs)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Defined benefits obligation 5.78 19.14

d) The applicable tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate is 25.17% (25.63%) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

During the year, the Group elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Group has recognized provision for income tax and re-measured its net deferred tax liabilities

basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred tax balances (after

offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note 11.
e) The group does not have any temporary differences in respect of unutilized tax losses.

f) Deferred tax recognized in consolidate statement of profit and loss

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(X Lakhs)
g) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) net: 31March 2021 31March 2020
Opening balance (705.29) (204.82)
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in
- Statement of profit and loss (869.86) (519.61)
- Recognised in other comprehensive income 5.78 19.14
Total (1,569.37) (705.29)
Other temporary difference 9,367.48 9,391.39
MAT Credit entitlement 11.37 11.37
Grand Total 7,809.48 8,697.47
35 Leases
A. Operating leases taken by the group :
The Group has taken offices, centers, residential facilities and plant and machinery (including equipments) etc. under cancellable/non-cancellable lease
agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee. The initial tenure of the lease generally is for 11 months to 120
months.
(¥ Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Lease rental charges for the year 366.42 341.31
Future Lease rental obligation payable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Laterthanfive years
B. Operating leases granted by the group:

The group has given property under cancellable lease agreement that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee.

Description of significant leasing arrangements

(% Lakhs)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Defined benefits obligation 55.18 49.99
Depreciation and amortization 115.32 254.50
Provision for doubtful debts 966.17 230.97
Difference in Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (104.52) (168.09)
Other temporary difference (162.29) 152.24

Total 869.86 519.61
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(% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Rentincome as per consolidated statement of profitand loss 2,495.43 3,001.15
Gross carrying value of asset (Including premises in Investments) 31,236.61 31,195.36
Accumulated depreciation 5,965.16 474112
Depreciation recognised in consolidated statement of profitand loss 1,264.59 1,299.23
Impairmentlosses - -
(% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Lease rental Income for the year 2,495.43 3,001.15
Future Lease rental receivable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year 3,519.74 3,385.96
Laterthan one year but not later than five years 15,708.23 15,169.00
Laterthan five years 1,00,354.44 1,04,413.41
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36 Disclosure as perInd-AS 116 (Leases)

Right of Use Asset
(@) ROU asset' comprises leased assets of office/branch premises that do not meet the definition of investment property. % Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020

Opening Balance 8,820.89 -
Assets created on transition date (01 April 2019) - 9,274.73
Additions during the year 164.57 2,903.46
Amortisation during the year 2,319.94 3,185.88
Disposal during the year (net) 1,060.53 171.42
Closing Balance 5,604.99 8,820.89

The aggregate amortisation expense on right-of-use asset is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the consolidated statement of profit

andloss.

When measuring lease liabilities, the Group discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The weighted-average rate

appliedis between 10.65% to 12.85%.

(b) Thefollowing is the break-up of currentand non-current lease liabilities

(¥ Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Currentlease liabilities 1,523.05 2,281.71
Non current lease liabilities 4,192.15 6,572.75
Total 5,715.20 8,854.46

(c) Thefollowingis the movementin lease liabilities @ Lakhs)
31March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening Balance 8,854.46 8,704.58
Additions during the year 164.57 2,966.80
Interest on lease liability 686.57 1,056.29
Payment of lease liabilities 2,762.98 3,697.73
Disposal / Derecognition of Lease Liability 1,227.42 175.48
Closing Balance 5,715.20 8,854.46

(d) Lease liabilities Maturity Analysis (X Lakhs)
31March 2021 31 March 2020

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Lessthan one year 2,406.74 3,209.87
One tofive years 3,716.22 6,168.99
More than five years 8,990.71 9,269.02
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 15,113.67 18,647.88

(e) Leaserental of3/lakhs 366.42 (Z/lakhs 341.31) pertaining to short term leases and low value asset has been charged to consolidated statement of profit and

loss.
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37 A) Contingentliabilities (to the extent not provided for) : (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31March 2020
a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (Refer note (i) and (ii) below) 259.98 46.98
b) Disputed direct taxes # 568.88 499.65
c) Disputed indirect taxes 3,916.25 2,213.62
d) Corporate guarantees to others to the extent of loans availed/
outstanding 3/lakhs 41,242.83 (I/lakhs 38,687.62) @ 49,435.00 49,435.00
e) Guarantees given in favour of Government bodies - 78.65
f) Othermatters 356.88 -
# income tax demands mainly include appeals filed by the group before appellate authorities against the disallowance of expenses/claims etc. The

38

39

manangementis of the opinion that its tax cases will be decided in its favour and hence no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

Group has provided Corporate guarantees to various trusts pursuant to the long term partnership arrangement entered. Corporate Guarantee is utilised
for business purposes.

Amount represents the best possible estimates. The Group has engaged reputed professionals to protect its interest and has been advised that it has
firm legal position against such disputes.

The Group has received legal notices of claims/law suits filed against it relating to other matters. In the opinion of the management, no material liability is
likely to arrive on account of such claims/law suits.

The Group has withdrawn the merger with Tree House Education and Accessories Limited (THEAL)and has reserved its rights for suitable actions
against adverse allegations by THEAL. The Group has received and filed legal notices of claims. The managementis of the view that no material liability
is likely to arrive on account of these claims.

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances) is Z/lakhs 4,826.66 (3/lakhs
4,865.99)

Payment to auditors*
For Holding Company (% Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Audit fees (including limited review) 17.50 17.00
Tax audit fees 2.50 2.00
Tax representation - 1.27
Certification and Others 0.67 4.29

Total 20.67 24.56

* includes fees paid to retiring auditor.

For subsidiaries

(% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Audit fees 37.50 32.10
Tax audit fees 3.70 0.50
Certification and Others 1.30 3.32
Total 42.50 35.92
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40 Micro, smalland medium enterprises

Disclosure required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006 ("The Act") are given as follows.

Z Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue Disaggregation by Industrial Vertical & Geography is as follows :

(% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 896.94 575.67
b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 150.58 55.52
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment -
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 257.08 110.68
f)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such -
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
41 Dividend
No Dividend on equity shares is paid or proposed declared by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31 March 2021..
42 Disclosures as required by Ind AS 115
Revenue consists of following :  Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Services
- Course fees/Royalty 3,857.22 8,008.30
- Franchisee fees 618.85 989.25
- Manpower supply and reimbursement of expenses 4,546.04 6,697.26
- Onboarding/Recruitment charges 1.64 3.92
- Sale of Municipal Waste 1,758.66 1,901.75
- Coaching and teaching services 7,378.24 19,848.19
- Others 735.60 402.46
Sales - Educational goods and equipments 4,173.33 9,857.88
Sales - Hardware and content 138.38 34427
Other operating revenue 8.86 428.35
Total 23,216.82 48,481.63
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(% Lakhs)
Revenue by offerings : 31March 2021 31 March 2020
Educational Services/ India 16,910.49 39,878.70
Training, Manpower and related activities / India 6,306.33 8,602.93
Total 23,216.82 48,481.63

Timing of Revenue Recogpnition : (X Lakhs)
Revenue by offerings : 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Services transferred at pointin time 7,435.30 13,927.88
Services transferred over period in time 15,781.52 34,553.75
Total 23,216.82 48,481.63

Contract Balances : (% Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Advances received and unearned revenue (contract liabilities) as at 4,480.22 6,798.93
Unbilled receivables (contract assets) as at 492.03 546.96
Trade receivables as at 9,135.97 6,670.91

43

44

Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2021 I/lakhs 4,440.62 will be recognised as
revenue upto 31 March 2022.

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group has a CSR Committee. The Group is required to spend X/lakhs 163.15 (Z/Lakhs 108.85) for the
year against which Nil (Z/lakhs 14.01) has been spent on activities specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year, the Group has
spent CSR expenditure of I/lakhs 55.37 for the year 2019.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’)

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India and subsequently on 13 November 2020 draft rules were published and invited for
stakeholders' suggestions. The Central Government on 30 March 2021 has deferred the implementation of the said Code and the date on which the Code
will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will account for the related impact in
the period the Code becomes effective.
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45 Covid19-Impact
The nation-wide lockdown due to spread of COVID-19 and other significant restrictions imposed on the movement had an impact on the businesses of the
Group. However, during this period, the Group has taken lots of efforts to keep the disruption in the business to the minimum.
In preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has taken into account internal and external sources of information to assess possible
impacts of the pandemic, including but not limited to the assessment of liquidity and going concern, recoverable value of its financial and non-financial
assets, and the impact on revenues. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Group expects to fully recover the carrying amount of its
assets. Basis the Group's projected cash flows for the next one year, management has concluded that the Group will have sufficient liquidity to continue its
operations, although it expects possible delays with respect to collections from its customers. The Group has made necessary provisions under the
Expected Creditloss model.
The extent of the impact on the Group's operations remain uncertain and may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements and will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions continue which will in turn depend on the currently unknowable duration of
COVID-19 and among other things, the impact of governmental actions imposed in response to the pandemic. The Group is monitoring the rapidly evolving
situation and its potential impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial position, results of operations, liquidity and cash flows.

46 Earnings per share (EPS)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (% lakhs) (879.30) 4,369.30
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (in numbers) 32,60,92,725 32,60,86,681
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in numbers) 32,60,92,725 32,60,86,681
Face value of equity shares (%) 1 1
BasicEPS () (0.27) 1.34
Diluted EPS () (0.27) 1.34

47 Employee Benefits

The Disclosures as per IndAS 19 - Employee Benefits is as follows:

A Defined Contribution Plans
“Contribution to provident and other funds” is recognized as an expense in Note 30 “Employee benefit expenses” of the consolidated statement of profit
and loss.

B Defined Benefit Plans

The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.

(% Lakhs)
| Expenses recognised during the year 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Gratuity (Non Funded)
Current Service Cost 74.67 76.47
2 InterestCost 36.94 35.49
Total Expenses 111.61 111.96
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(% Lakhs)
Il.  Amountrecognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Opening amountrecognizedin OCI (10.64) (31.18)
2 Remeasurementduring the period due to
- Changes in financial assumptions 2.98 13.13
- Changes in experience charges (74.35) 53.71
3 Closingamountrecognizedin OCI (82.01) 35.66
Il Net(Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation (DBO) 639.29 633.06
2 Net(Asset)/ Liability (639.29) (633.06)
IV.  Reconciliation of Net (Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Net(Asset)/Liability at the beginning of year (633.06) (520.35)
2 Expenseasperlabove (111.60) (111.95)
3 Othercomprehensive income as per Il above 71.37 (66.83)
4 Benefits paid 34.00 66.07
Net (Asset) / Liability at the end of the year (639.29) (633.06)
V.  Thefollowing payments are expected to defined benefit plan in future years : 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Expected benefits foryear 1 298.92 112.65
2 Expected benefits foryear 2 to year5 186.92 330.03
3 Expected benefits beyond year 5 185.02 433.11
V1. Actuarial Assumptions 31March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Discountrate 8.54% 7.55%
2 Expectedrate of salary increase 8.33% 6.33%
3 Mortality IALM (2012-14) IAL (2006-08)
VII.  Sensitivity Analysis
The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The
following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of
anincrease or decrease in the reported assumption by 100 basis points
(% Lakhs)
Discount Rate Salary
Escalation rate
Impact of increase in 100 bps on DBO 135.38 177.45
Impact of decrease in 100 bps on DBO 179.22 136.54
Notes:
(@) The current service cost recognized as an expense is included in Note 30 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
(b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary.
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
C  Other long term benefits

The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method and accordingly the long term paid absences
have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 30 ‘Employee benefits expense’.
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Related party disclosures

List of parties where control exists
Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Digital Ventures Private Limited

Academia Edificio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

Subsidiary company
MT Educare Limited (extent of holding - 59.12% [59.12%)])

Step down subsidiary companies (held through MT Educare Limited)

Lakshya Forrum for Competitions Private Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare Private Limited)
MT Education Services Private Limited

Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited

Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited

Robomate Edutech Private Limited

Letspaper Technologies Private Limited

Labh Ventures India Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr.Ajey Kumar - Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f. 18 August 2020)

Ms. Sangeeta Pandit- Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 01 October 2019)
Mr. Himanshu Modi - Chairman and Non-Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 07 January 2020)
Dr. Manish Agarwal - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 01 April 2020)

Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar - Non-Executive Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 14 Jan 2021)
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj - Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar - Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Nanette D'sa - Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Umesh Pradhan - Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 07 October 2019)

Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay - Chief Executive Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 23 April 2020)

Mr. Vikash Kar - Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director (Resigned w.e.f. 14 June 2021)
Mr. Surender Singh - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 31 July 2020)
Mr. Karunn Kandoi - Non-Executive Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 03 March 2021)

Mr. Ritesh Handa - Chief Executive Officer (Appointed w.e.f 14 June 2021)

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 07 April 2020)

Mr. Bhautesh Shah - Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 12 May 2020)

Mr. Prashant Parekh - Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f29 January 2021)

Mr. Anil Gupta - Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 29 June 2021)

Otherrelated parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on the last day of the year.

Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited, Diligent Media Corporation Limited, Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited, Pan India Network
Infravest Private Limited, Essel Infra Projects Private Limited, Zee Studios Limited (Formerly Essel Vision Productions Limited), Digital Subscriber and
Management Consultancy Services Private Limited, Himgiri Zee University (upto September 2019), Pan India Infrastructures Private Limited, Amritsar
MSW Limited, Darbhanga Motihari Transmission Company Limited, Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited, Essel
Bhind Mihona Gopalpur Toll Roads Private Limited, Essel Bina Khimlasa Malthon Toll Roads Private Limited, Essel Damoh Jabalpur Toll Road Limited,
Essel Business Excellence Services Limited, Essel Corporate LLP, Essel Finance AMC Limited, Essel Finance Business Loans Limited, Essel Finance
Home Loans Limited, Essel Finance Management LLP, Essel Green Charge Private Limited, Essel Highways Limited, Essel Ludhiana Talwandi Toll Road
Private Limited, Essel Mhow Ghatabillod Toll Road Private Limited, Essel Sagar Damoh Toll Road Limited, GNEX Realtech Private Limited, Jabalpur MSW
Private Limited, Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited, Kundli Manesar Expreeways Limited, Living Entertainment
Enterprise Private Limited, NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited, NRSS XXXVI Transmission Limited, Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities
SDN BHD Consortium, Pan India Infra Projects Limited, Rama Associates Limited, Ranchi MSW Private Limited, SITI Networks Limited, Subhash Chandra
Foundation, Tonk Water Supply Limited, Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited, Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited, Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll
Roads Private Limited, Zee Akash News Private Limited, Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Zee Media Corporation Limited, Zen Cruises Private
Limited.
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% Lakhs)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

A) Transactions with related parties

Long- term borrowings - 5,755.00
Other related parties

Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited - 5,755.00
Repayment of Long- term borrowings 10.00 35.00
Other related parties

Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 10.00 35.00
Interest expense 957.63 506.11
Otherrelated parties

Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 957.63 506.11
Sales and services 6,290.17 8,657.87
Other related parties

Himgiri Zee University - 56.00
Amritsar MSW Limited 820.76 882.03
Darbhanga Motihari Transmission Company Limited - 0.22
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited - 118
Essel Bhind Mihona Gopalpur Toll Roads Private Limited 12.36 -
Essel Bina Khimlasa Malthon Toll Roads Private Limited 4.66

Essel Damoh Jabalpur Toll Road Limited 12.43 -
Essel Business Excellence Services Limited - 42.38
Essel Corporate LLP 18.43 30.57
Essel Finanace AMC Limited 4.29 6.12
Essel Finance Business Loans Limited - 60.79
Essel Finance Home Loans Limited - 14.84
Essel Finance Management LLP 0.15 3.29
Essel Green Charge Private Limited - 1.98
Essel Highways Limited 142.56 322.45
Essel Ludhiana Talwandi Toll Road Private Limited 17.02 -
Essel Mhow Ghatabillod Toll Road Private Limited 7.99

Essel Sagar Damoh Toll Road Limited 11.34 -
Gnex Realtech Private Limited 9.73 28.28
Jabalpur MSW Private Limited 122.69 116.31
Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited 937.89 960.57
Kundli Manesar Expreeways Limited 11.57 -
Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited 83.30 382.29
NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited - 1.23
NRSS XXXVI Transmission Limited. 4.08 4.04
Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities SDN BHD Consortium - 15.52
Pan India Infraprojects Limited 44,82 116.02
Rama Associates Limited - 3.36
Ranchi MSW Private Limited - 68.62
SITI Networks Limited 1,718.05 1,819.84
Subhash Chandra Foundation 0.32 1.75
Tonk Water Supply Limited - 12.30
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited 7.45 6.81
Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited 4.28 6.97
Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll Roads Private Limited 57.84 54.86
Zee Akaash News Private Limited 26.18 23.46
Zee Entertainment Enterprise Limited 484.86 1,708.05
Zee Media Corporation Limited 1,701.73 1,899.29
Zen Cruises Private Limited 23.39 6.45
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(% Lakhs)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Financial Statement

Other income 88.02
Reversal of provision / liabilities no longer required

Other related parties

Diligent Media Corporation Limited - 88.02
Purchase of Intangible assets 35.00 61.17
Other related parties

Essel Corporate LLP 35.00 61.17
Purchase of Services 312.36 961.59
Other related parties

Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited 12.99 8.66
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 104.02 101.51
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited 8.66 13.09
Diligent Media Corporation Limited. - 112.41
Zee Media Corporation Limited 20.89 29.63
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited 38.30 15.00
Essel Corporate LLP 120.00 30.00
Zee Studios Limited - 21.19
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited 7.50 630.10
Capital advance given 6.62
Other related parties

Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited 6.62
Remuneration 111.60 145.97
Key Managerial personnel

Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay 26.14 74.32
Mr. Umesh Pradhan - 54.64
Mr. Vikash Kar 48.19 -
Mr. Rakesh Agarwal 28.98 -
Mr. Bhautesh Shah 2.51 17.01
Mr. Prashant Parekh 578 -
Directors sitting fees 6.10 5.54
Key Managerial personnel

Dr. Manish Agarwal 2.20
Ms. Sangeeta Pandit - 1.00
Mrs. Nandita Agarwal Parkar 0.30 0.60
Ms. Nanette D'sa 2.00 -
Mr. Surender Singh 0.30 -
Mr. Dattatraya Kelkar 1.50 0.54
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj 2.00 1.20
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(X Lakhs)

B) Balances outstanding as at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Long-term borrowings 8,537.16 7,661.35
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited 8,537.16 7,661.35
Loans, advances and deposits given 1,556.32 1,556.53
Other related parties
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited 1,451.06 1,451.06
Diligent Media Corporation Limited - 0.21
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited 10.00 10.00
Zee Studios Limited 15.26 15.26
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited 80.00 80.00
Advance from customer 1.15 1.15
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 1.15 1.15
Trade receivables 650.57 501.16
Other related parties
Himgiri Zee University - 89.28
Amritsar MSW Limited 190.37 180.36
Darbhanga Motihari Transmission Company Limited 0.26 0.26
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited 0.06 0.06
Essel Bhind Mihona Gopalpur Toll Roads Private Limited 4.96 -
Essel Bina Khimlasa Malthon Toll Roads Private Limited 0.94
Essel Damoh Jabalpur Toll Road Limited 4.84 -
Essel Corporate LLP 3.95 2.09
Essel Finanace AMC Limited 0.01 0.01
Essel Finance Management LLP - 0.30
EsselGreen Charge Private Limited 0.31 0.31
Essel Highways Limited 45.09 81.94
Essel Ludhiana Talwandi Toll Road Private Limited 7.7 -
Essel Mhow Ghatabillod Toll Road Private Limited 2.57
Essel Sagar Damoh Toll Road Limited 4.39 -
Gnex Realtech Private Limited 2.05 240
Jabalpur MSW Private Limited 11.52 14.37
Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited 134.48 37.99
Kundli Manesar Expreeways Limited 6.85 -
Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited 1.34 27.69
NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited 0.45 0.45
NRSS XXXVI Transmission Limited 1.89 1.23
Pan India Infraprojects Limited 14.11 32.52
Pan India Utilities Distribution Company Limited 0.01 -
Rama Associates Limited 0.05 0.05
SITI Networks Limited 166.57 1.34
Subhash Chandra Foundation 0.20 0.37
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited 8.47 2.74
Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited 1.96 1.31
Zee Akaash News Private Limited 2.88 1.66
Zee Entertainment Enterprise Limited 22.51 20.61
Zee Media Corporation Limited 8.38 1.82
Zen Cruises Private Limited 1.39 -
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(X Lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Primary segment disclosure - Business segment for the year ended 31 March 2021 % Lakhs)
Other payables 753.86 1,253.63 Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Other related parties Segment revenue
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited 12.31 264 - Educational services and related activities 16,548.88 39,953.71
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited 12.06 10.56 - Construction and leasing (for education) 3,252.03 3,504.90
Diligent Media Corporation Limited 281.02 281.02 - Training, Manpower and related activities 6,474.51 8,735.64
Zee Media Corporation Limited . 4177 Total segment revenue 26,275.42 52,194.25
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 269.27 723.00 Less: Inter segment revenue 563.17 71147
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited 12.00 2297 Net Sales / Income from operations 25,712.25 51,482.78
Essel Corporate LLP 68.16 A Segment results (Profit before tax and interest from ordinary activities)
Zee Studios Limited 40.73 40.73 - Educational services and related activities (2,544.48) 9,870.23
Evenness Business Excellence Services Private Limited 17.31 90.64 - Construction and leasing (for education) 1.878.08 27737
Zee Media Corporation Limited 41.00 41.00 - Training, Manpower and related activities (18.86) 280.84
] ] ] Total segment results (685.26) 10,428.44
Note: Figures considered based on the IND AS financials of the Group. .
Add / (Less):
Finance cost (5,149.12) (5,904.91)
49 Segment reporting Interest income 3,268.23 3,445.82
The Group follows Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment" relating to the reporting of financial and descriptive information above their operating segments in Exceptional items (Refer note 51) - (3,114.65)
financial statements: Unallocable 2,364.30 709.58
The Group's reportable operating segments have been determined in accordance with the business operations, which is organised based on the operating Total profit/(loss) before tax from ordinary activities (201.85) 5,564.28
business segments as described below. (L:ess : tTtax expensets 527 6 555,45
“ e . . ) . . urrent tax - current year . ,558.
1 “Educational” which principally provides learning solutions and delivers training. - earlier years 215.71 (25.29)
2 “Construction and leasing for education” which principally consists of constructing and leasing of properties for commercial use. Deferred tax charge / (credit) 869.86 519.61
3 "Training Manpower and related activities" which principally provides services related to consultancy and advisory in areas of human resources, viz. Profit /(loss) after tax (2,115.04) 2,511.47

manpower placement, recruitment, selection, business process and others. Capital employed (Segment assets less Segment liabilities)

There being no business outside India, the entire business is considered as a single geographic segment. - Educational services and related activities 80,254.82 78,324.64
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- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
- Unallocable (net)

Total capital employed in segments

Less: Inter segment eliminations

Total capital employed

42,577.76 42,370.02
977.99 541.45
(44,331.52) (42,291.54)
79,479.05 78,944.57
33,052.50 31,866.45
46,426.55 47,078.12
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(% Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Capital expenditure

Z Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
2) Foreigncurrency risk

The group enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The group analyses
currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that group. The management has taken a position not to
hedge this currency risk.

The group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are not hedged considering the insignificantimpact and period involved on such exposure.

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:

- Educational services and related activities 263.96 757.50
- Construction and leasing (for education) 780.60 650.80
- Training, Manpower and related activities - -
1,044.56 1,408.30
Depreciation
- Educational services and related activities 3,617.19 5,003.89
- Construction and leasing (for education) 1,377.70 1,406.62
- Training, Manpower and related activities 0.09 0.09
4,994.98 6,410.60
50 Educational Infrastructure Projects under execution

51

52

During the earlier years, the Group had taken lands at four locations on lease and has acquired land at one location for the purposes of setting up of
educational infrastructures. The Group has also acquired development rights to develop a piece and parcel of land, from Taleem Research Foundation at
Mumbai, to build educational infrastructure. This development right is acquired for 30 years w.e.f 1 January 2010 against a lump sum development fee of
llakhs 10,500. The civil work for construction of all these educational infrastructures is in progress and are at different stages of construction.

Exceptional items

The Group in earlier years, had given loan to a Trust to support its business operations. On account of delays in recovery of the same (including interest
accrued thereon), the Group has made provision of Z/lakhs 3,114.65 against the loan receivable (including interest accrued thereon) during the previous
yearand disclosed the same as an ‘Exceptional item’.

Financial Instruments

i)  Financial risk management objective and policies
The group’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the group’s operations. The group’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade
receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.
The group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s management oversees the management of these risks

a) Marketrisk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
marketriskinclude loans and borrowings, deposits, other financial instruments

1) Interestraterisk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of
fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of floating
interest bearing investments will vary because of fluctuations in interest rates

The group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the group’s long-term loan from banks. Non-Redeemable
Debentures and Intercorporate deposits carries fixed coupon rate and hence is not considered for calculation of interest rate sensitivity of the group.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With
all other variables held constant, the group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowings, as follows:

(% Lakhs)
Increase/decrease Effect on Profit
in basis points before tax
Ason 31 March 2021 +50/-50 128.86
Ason 31 March 2020 +50/-50 124.45
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(% Lakhs)
Currency Assets as at Liabilities as at
31March 2021 31March 2020 31March 2021 31March 2020
United States Dollar (USD)

2.00 2.14

Arab Emirates Dirham (AED) - 7.88

Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 10% increase / decrease in foreign currencies with all other variable held constant. The below
impact on the group's profit before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance

sheet date. (% Lakhs)

Currency Sensitivity analysis
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

T decrease by 10% T increase by 10% T decrease by 10% T increase by 10%

United States Dollar (USD) 0.20 (0.20) 0.21 (0.21)
Arab Emirates Dirham (AED) - - (0.79) 0.79

3)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the group's receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at bank.

The group measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the
entity operates. Expected Credit Loss is based on actual creditloss experienced and past trends based on the historical data.

Ageing of trade receivables (% Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

Over six months 13,707.79 12,447.59
Less than six months 4,559.15 6,017.24
Total 18,266.94 18,464.83

(% Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020

Movement in allowance for credit loss during the year was as follows :

Opening Balance 11,793.92 660.11
Add :- Provided during the year (2,662.95) 11,133.81
Balance as at 9,130.97 11,793.92
Net Trade receivable 9,135.97 6,670.90

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the group generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include other debt instruments.
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b) Liquidity risk iii)  Categories of financial instruments and fair value thereof @ Lakhs)
akhs
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that th t meetits financial obligations. Th 's principal fliquidit h and cash equivalents and
iquidity ris| re ers tothe risk tha egrloup cannot meet its !nan0|a obligations. The group's principa sourcgo |qU|. ity are cas gn cas eguwa ents an Particulars ‘As 2t 31 March 2021 As 2t 31 March 2020
the cash flow i.e. generated from operations. The group consistently generated strong cash flows from operations which together with the available cash and - - - -
. . . o . Carrying amount Fairvalue Carrying amount Fairvalue
cash equivalents and currentinvestment provides adequate liquidity in short terms as well in the long term.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2021 A) Financial assets (other than investment in subsidiary companies carried at cost)
% Lakhs) i) Measured at amortised cost
oss than " ore than Trade Receivables 9,135.97 9,135.97 6,670.91 6,670.91
1 year 2 to 5th year 5 years Cash alnd ca.sh equivalents and bank balances 1,326.48 1,326.48 1,553.04 1,553.04
— Other financial assets 2,978.22 2,978.22 2,965.43 2,965.43
Financial iabiitles -~ Loans and Advances 5437.29 5437.29 1,936.04 1,936.04
Trade payable and other financial liabilities 24,182.11 174.12 1,621.21
BorrOW{ng.sf. 4,900.47 25,067.31 ) ii)  Measured at Fair value through profit and loss account
Lease liabilities 1,523.05 4,192.15 _ Non-Current Investments 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34
Total 30,605.63 29,433.58 1,621.21 Current Investment 0.01 0.01 1,051.94 1,051.94
* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating I/lakhs 8,714.42 form part of other financial liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings. B) Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2020 Trade Payables 9.216.35 9.216.35 577149 577149
(% Lakhs) Borrowings (Non current) 25,067.31 25,067.31 27,412.60 27,412.60
Less than more than Borrowings (Current) 4,900.47 4,900.47 4,384.66 4,384.66
1 year 2to 5year 5years Other Financial Liabilities 16,761.09 16,761.09 10,499.12 10,499.12
Trade payat)le and other financial liabilties 15,047.11 174.12 1,049.38 The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, certain investments, trade
Borrowings 4,384.66 27,412.60 -

payables and other current liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Difference between carrying
Total 19,431.77 21,586.72 1,049.38 amount and fair value of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is not
significantin each of the year presented.

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating Z/lakhs 5,129.35 form part of other financial liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in

borrowings. (iv) Fairvalue hierarchy

i) Capital Management The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the group's assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of the group' s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The group manages its capital structure to Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021
ensurethatitwill be able to continueasa going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders. (% Lakhs)

) ) ) . ) . . ) Financial assets Fair Value as at Fair Value Valuation Technique(s)
The group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt @ Lakhs) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Hierarchy & key inputs used

As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020 Investment in Mutual funds 0.01 1,051.94 Level 1 Quoted in an active market

Gross Debt (inclusive long term and short term debt) * 29,967.77 31,797.26 Total 0.01 1,051.94
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances (1,292.03) (897.48)
"I\'lci;:DESLity igi;ggg 222?2:2 Investments measured at fair value are tabulated above. All other financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy.
Total Capital 75,102.29 77,977.90 The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 1 categories above have been determined in accordance with quoted in
Gearing ratio 38.18% 39.63% active market.
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53  Events afterthe reporting period 57 Additional Information as required by Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013
No significant events have occurred after the balance sheet date which requires adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of the (X Lakhs)
Group. Net Assets, i.e.,
Total Assets minus Share in Profit or loss
54 In previous year, during the quarter ended 30 September 2019, the Group entered into contracts with a few education trusts to provide management Name of the entity Total Liabilities
services in respect of operation of their respective educational activities. Based on the scope of work and the corresponding consideration as laid out in the % of % of
respective contracts, revenue ofZ/lakhs 910.00 from management services was recorded by the Group in the third quarter ended 31 December 2019. consolidated Amount consolidated  Amount
However, subsequently, on the requests of these Trusts, the “scope of work” and the basis of measurement of corresponding “consideration” have been net assets Profit
renegotiated and redefined which are detailed in the addendums executed to the existing contracts. The new arrangement is applicable from retrospective | Parent-
effect (inception of the contracts). _ o , , Zee Learn Limited 45.32% 49,619.77 -92.07% 1,658.51
The change in the basis of measurement of revenue from management services has given rise to reversal of revenue recorded in the third quarter to the
extentof Z/lakhs 745.33. The reversal entry has been recorded in the fourth quarter ended 31 March 2020. Il Subsidiaries-
The resultant management services revenue for the year, recorded in these consolidated financial statements aggregate I/lakhs 164.67. MT Educare Limited (Consolidated financial statements) 10.67% 11,686.12 185.85% (3,347.76)
Digital Ventures Private Limited 29.59% 32,394.61 10.57% (190.41)
55 Collateral/ Security Pledged Academia Edificio Private Limited -0.01% (10.62) 0.43% (7.74)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for currentand non-current borrowings of the group are as under; Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 0.72% 78735 4.78% 86.09
3 Lakhs ' ' ' '
( ) Non Controlling Interestin subsidiaries 13.71% 15,008.81 0.00%
31March 2021 31March 2020
Property, plant and equipment (includes Capital work in progress, Investment property, Investment (% Lakhs)
property under development, Goodwill, Other intangible assets and Intangible assets under development) 68,751.09 70,704.71 Shares in Other Share in Total
Inventories 1,065.78 1,769.93 Name of the entity Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income
Other currentand non-current assets 27,857.93 24,724.02 % of % of
consolidated Amount consolidated Amount
Total assets pledged 97,674.80 97,198.66 Profit Profit
I Parent-
56 Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as required by Ind AS 7 Zee Learn Limited 39.07% 21.06 -96.12% 1,679.57
"Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:
% Lakhs) Il Subsidiaries-
Non Cash Changes MT Educare Limited (Consolidated financial statements) 60.38% 32.55 189.72% (3,315.21)
Digital Ventures Private Limited 0.25% 0.13 10.89% (190.28)
A
3 Marscztzozo . ‘igi’;vs L“‘eresg cﬁ’f,leés “ Mgfcztzoz 1 Academia Edificio Private Limited 0.00% i 0.44% (7.74)
. ceure g Liberium Global Resources Private Limited 0.30% 0.16 -4.94% 86.25
Long Term Borrowings 27 412,60 (3,255.49) (658.80) 25,067 31 Non Controlling Interest in subsidiaries 0.00% - 0.00% -
Short Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities) 9,514.02 1,352.18  2,748.70 13,614.89 Note: Net assets / Share of Profit of subsidiary are considered based on the respective audited standalone/consolidate financial statements without
(ForBank, Financial Institution and considering eliminations / consolidation INDAS adjustments.
intercorporate deposits etc.)
Lease liabilities (including interest) 8,854.46 (1,225.45) (1,913.81) 5,715.20 58 The Group has loans, trade and other receivables of X/lakhs 4,904.26 (net of provisions on consolidated basis) outstanding as at 31 March 2021 from other
parties having operations in the education sector, which are overdue. The management is of the opinion that COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent
(% Lakhs) lockdowns have disrupted the operations of parties in education sectorand  such outstandings have arisen primarily due to lockdowns and therefore the
Non Cash Changes management considers the same as good and recoverable.
As at Cash Interest Other As at 59 The Group has undertaken various Central and State Government/ Agencies, projects in education/skill development sector. Most of these projects are
31 March 2019 outflows ~ Accured ~ Changes 31 March 2020 complete, however the dues outstanding (net of provisions) of /lakhs 3,074.97 lakhs from the concerned department/ agency have not been realized
mainly on account of delays and long process . In the opinion of the management, it has made necessary provision, wherever required and such balances
Long Term Borrowings 33,539.94 (11,882.34) 27,412.60 are fully recoverable.
Short Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities) 9,627.38 (766.31) 652.95 9,514.02
(For Bank, Financial Institution and intercorporate deposits etc.)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) 393.12 -
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited (MT) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as MT Group) had taken loan from a Non Banking Financial
Company (lender) which was secured against the pledge of equity shares of MT held by one of the promoters of MT. The pledge was invoked by the lender
during the quarter ended 31 December 2020 and /lakhs 738.40 is adjusted against the dues owed by the MT Group.

The subsidiary company viz MT Educare Limited (MT) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as MT Group) did not obtain/ receive balance confirmation
from the most of the customers /creditors and other parties including certain advances other than related parties for the balances as on 31 March 2021 due
to Covid-19 disruption. Hence, the reconciliation could not be carried out for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused an adverse impact on the business operations of the subsidiary viz MT Educare Limited (MT) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as MT Group) and their financial health. The revenue of MT Group has declined sequentially for the year ended 31 March 2021 and as a
result MT Group has been incurring losses. Further, MT Group has defaulted in their debt and other obligations. These indicate the existence of uncertainty
that may cast doubt on the MT Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The appropriateness of assumption of going concern is dependent upon
improvement in cash flows through normal operations in post COVID-19, timely monetization of assets and approval of MT Group's one time restructuring of
debts. The consolidated financial statements of MT Group have been prepared on a going concern basis based on the future business potentials and
mitigating factors.

Prior year comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified / rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classifications /
disclosures, figures in brackets pertain to previous year.
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Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eleventh (11th) Annual General Meeting of
the Members of Zee Learn Limited (CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405) will be
held on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. through Video
Conferencing (“VC") / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to transact
the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Toreceive, consider and adopt

a.  theAudited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021, including the Audited
Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2021, Statement of Profit & Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended as on that date
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

b.  theAudited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021, including the Audited
Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2021, Statement of Profit & Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended as on that date
together with the Reports of the Auditors thereon.

2. Retirement of Director by rotation and re-appointment thereof.

To appointa Directorin place of Mr. Surender Singh (DIN: 08206770) who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Payment of Remuneration to M/s. Vaibhav P. Joshi., Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101734), the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) thereto or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the Members hereby ratify
and confirm the remuneration of Rs. 55,000/- (Rupees Fifty-Five Thousand
Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
payable to M/s. Vaibhav P. Joshi, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.
101329) for conduct of audit of the cost records of the Company for the

financial year ending March 31, 2022 as recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
(including its committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company,
be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”

4. Toappoint Mr. Karunn Kandoi as the Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof for time being in force), Mr. Karunn Kandoi (DIN:
01344843), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by
the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with effect from March 3, 2021 and who holds office
up to the date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161(1) of the
Actand in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from
aMember under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature to the office
of Director, be and is hereby proposed to be appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation for a period of 3 (three)
consecutive years up to March 3, 2024.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
(including its committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company,
be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”

5. Toappoint Mr.Ritesh Handa as the Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
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(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof for time being in force), Mr. Ritesh Handa (DIN:
02725365), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by
the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee by Circular Resolution with effect from August 7,
2021 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting in
terms of Section 161(1) of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act
proposing his candidature to the office of Director, be and is hereby proposed
to be appointed as an Executive Director of the Company, liable to retirement
by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
(including its committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company,
be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.

6. To appoint Mr. Ritesh Handa as Whole-Time Director of the
Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203
read with Schedule V and any other applicable provisions, if any of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable rules made thereunder, the SEBI (Listing Regulation and
Disclosure Requirements) 2015, including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force, the Articles of Association of the
Company and subject to such other approvals as may be necessary, approval
of the Members be and is hereby accorded for appointment of Mr. Ritesh
Handa (DIN: 02725365), as an Executive Director designated as Whole-Time
Director (“WTD”) of the Company, w.e.f August 31, 2021 for a period of 5 (five)
years on such terms and conditions and at such remuneration not exceeding
5% of the Net Profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Act,
as setoutin the Explanatory Statement annexed here to.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which shall be deemed to include any
Committee constituted by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to vary,
alter, enhance or widen the scope of remuneration (including fixed salary,
incentives, allowances and perquisites) payable to Mr. Ritesh Handa during
his tenure as Whole-Time Director and CEO to the extent permitted under
Section 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any of
the act without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the
Members of the Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this
resolution, provided however that any such variation, alteration enhancement
or widening shall not result in payment of remuneration in the excess of limits
prescribed under the applicable law without obtaining requisite approval.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take
such steps as may be necessary, to give effect to the above resolution
including agreeing to such amendments/ modifications in the aforesaid
clauses as may be required by any authority or as may be deemed fit by the
Board.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
ZEELEARNLIMITED

ANILGUPTA
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : August 31,2021

Registered Office:

Continental Building,

135, Dr.Annie Besant Road,

Worli, Mumbai-400018

CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405

E-mail: investor_relations@zeelearn.com

Notes:

1.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social
distancing is a norm to be followed and pursuant to the Circular Nos.
14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, and 02/2021 dated April 8, 2020, April 13,
2020, May 5 2020, and January 13, 2021 respectively and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/
CIR/P/2021/11 dated May 12, 2020 and January 15, 2021 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular’) and in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”), and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time,
physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required
and general meeting be held through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and
participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue
forthe 11th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and
cast vote for the Members is not available for this AGM. However, the
Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their
votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before
and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by
following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who
are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come
first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM
will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section
103 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as

amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a Member using
remote e-Voting system as well as voting on the day of the AGM will be
provided by NSDL.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on
the website of the Company at www.zeelearn.com. The Notice can also
be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available on
the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility)
i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND
JOININGAGMAREAS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, September 26, 2021 at 09.00
AM (IST) and ends on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 05.00 P.M. (IST).
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Wednesday, September 22,
2021 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall
be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date, being Wednesday, September 22, 2021.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two
Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided
by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to
access e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL

Login Method

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on
a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

‘App Store ’ Google Play

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-
Voting service provideri.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESPi.e. NSDL
where the e-Voting is in progress.
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Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with
holding securities in NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be
demat mode with NSDL  redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available
at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL
and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800
1020990 and 18002244 30

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
022-23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on
a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting systemiis launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
3. Anewscreenwill open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-
into NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. YourUser D details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL. 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is In300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your
user ID is IN30Q***12*****,

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL. 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is

1 2**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001***,
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Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) Ifyouare already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve
your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) Howtoretrieve your ‘initial password'?

(i)  Ifyouremail ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachmenti.e. a .pdffile. Open the .pdffile. The password to open the
.pdffile is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf
file contains your ‘User ID’and your ‘initial password'.

(i) Ifyouremail IDis notregistered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.
Ifyou are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?’(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

¢) |If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members canalso use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General
Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For
joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on
“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
mita@mpsanghavi.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting
website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the
download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 18002244 30 orsend arequest at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Contact Mr.
Sagar Ghosalkarfrom NSDL at the designated email Ids: sagar.ghosalkar@nsdl.co.in
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail
ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investor_relations@zeelearn.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary D), Name, client master or copy of
Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
investor_relations@zeelearn.com If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method
explained at

step 1(A)i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned
documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their
mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat accountin order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THEAGMARE AS UNDER: -

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting systemin the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person
mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVMARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-
Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last
minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.
Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. Itis therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in
advance atleast 2 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number / folio number, email id, mobile number at
investor_relations@zeelearn.com or anil.gupta@zeelearn.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their
queries in advance prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number / folio number, email id, mobile number at
investor_relations@zeelearn.com or anil.gupta@zeelearn.com. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
IltemNo. 3

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. Vaibhav P. Joshi, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.
101329) to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company relating to its Education Services for the financial year ending March 31, 2022 on a remuneration
of Rs. 55,000/- (Rupees Fifty-Five Thousand) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditor has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable
to the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2022.

Your Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as setoutin Item No. 3 for approval of Members.

None of the Directors and /or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is in any way concerned or interested in this ordinary resolution set outin
ltemno. 3.

Iltem No. 4

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board and after reviewing confirmation of independence received, the Board
of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Karunn Kandoi (DIN: 01344843) as an Additional Director of the Company, in the category of Independent Director
with effect from March 3, 2021. Pursuant to Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Mr. Karunn Kandoi holds office till the date of this Annual General
Meeting.

Inaccordance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, appointment of Independent Director requires approval of the Members.

Mr. Kaunn Kandoi has consented to act as Non-Executive Independent Director and is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of
the Act. The Company has also received notice in writing from Member of the Company under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of
Director of the Company. The Company has also received declarations from him stating that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Karunn Kandoi who is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for the period of 3 consecutive years
up to March 3, 2024 fulfils the conditions in the Act and Rules made thereunder and is Independent of the management of the Company.

Brief profile and other details of Mr. Karunn Kandoi are provided in the Annexure to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of (i) Listing Regulations and (ii)
Secretarial Standard on the General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

He shall be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof or for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board,
reimbursement of expenses for participating in the Board and other meetings and profit related commission within the limits stipulated under Section 197 of the
Act.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 4 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

None of the other Directors and / or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Mr. Karunn Kandoi (whose appointment is proposed in this
resolution) are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution.
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ltemNo.5&6

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Ritesh
Handa (DIN: 02725365) as an Additional Director of the Company, in the category of Executive Director with effect from August 7, 2021. Pursuant to Section
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Mr. Ritesh Handa holds office till the date of this Annual General Meeting. The Board of Directors at their meeting held
onAugust 31,2021, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee appointed Mr. Ritesh Handa as the Whole-Time Director on
the Board of the Company subject to the approval of Members with effect from August 31, 2021 for a period of five (5) years who shall be liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Ritesh Handa has consented to act as Executive Director and Whole-Time Director and is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act. The Company has also received notice in writing from the Member of the Company under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the
office of Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at ltem no. 5 & 6 of the Notice for approval by the members.

None of the other Directors and / or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Mr. Ritesh Handa (whose appointment is proposed in this
resolution) are, inany way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution.

The remuneration payable to Mr. Ritesh Handa as approved by the Members and Board shall be inclusive of the remuneration drawn by him in the capacity of
Chief Executive Officer. The proposed remuneration payable to him shall be within the limits of 5% of the net profit of the Company as prescribed under Section
197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V.

The material terms of appointment and remuneration are given below:

a) Basic Salary: The Basic Salary of Mr. Ritesh Handa shall be Rs. 2,66,146 per month with the authority to the Board of Directors to determine any increments
from time to time during the term of his appointment as per the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

b) Allowance, Perquisites and other items
In addition to the basic salary, he shall be entitled to:

(i)Allowances as per rules of the Company including Personal Allowance, City Compensatory Allowance, House Rent Allowance, Children Education Allowance
etc. which in the aggregate shall not be exceeding Rs. 2,97,001/- per month, with an authority to the Board of Directors to determine any increase from time to time
as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

(ii) Perquisites as per rules of the Company including Club fees, Personnel accident, Medical insurance, Life insurance, Company provided housing, meal & gift
vouchers, use of chauffeur driven company car, company provided communication & IT equipment, telecommunication facilities at residence etc. He will also be
entitled to travel, boarding and lodging for business purposes as per company’s applicable rules. As Executive/Whole-Time Director or otherwise, he shall be
eligible to such number of stock options as may be granted and recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time which will be
over and above stock options already granted earlier. Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, wherever applicable. In the absence of any such
rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost;

(iii) Other Perquisites, Allowances and Reimbursements like Books & periodicals, Uniform, Entertainment, Car/Driver/Maintenance/related costs,
Communication, White goods, Leave Travel, Medical reimbursement etc. as per the policy of the Company.

(iv) Company’s contribution to Provident fund, Gratuity, Leave encashment, Superannuation etc. as per the rules of the Company; and

(v) Variable Pay as approved by the Board based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Other Terms:

Mr. Ritesh Handa shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof.

Further details relating to Mr. Ritesh Handa including his qualifications, other Directorships, membership in Committees of other Boards are given in the Annexure

forming part of this Notice. This explanatory statement together with the accompanying Notice and annexure there to may also be regarded as a disclosure under
Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Ritesh Handa brings in significant experience which will play an important role to guide and manage the day to day
affairs of the Company and considering his vast knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution at
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Item no. 5&6 of this Notice relating to his appointment as an Executive Director designated as Whole-time Director, liable to retire by rotation, as Ordinary

Resolution for approval of Shareholders.

Annexure to the Notice dated September 29, 2021

Details of Directors seeking appointment/Re-appointment at the 11th AGM to be held on September 29, 2021.

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) and 26(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2

on General Meeting)

Name of Director Mr. Karunn Kandoi
DIN 01344843
Age 43

Date of First Appointmenton the Board

March 3, 2021

Qualification

He is skilled in creating and expanding businesses, Operations Management,
Management, driving growth for technology led products, Leadership, and
Marketing. Karunn Kandoi is a B.E. from Bangalore Institute of Technology
and an MBA from the University of Washington, specialized in Product
Management & Marketing.

Experience and Expertise

Mr. Karunn Kandoi, heads business operations and is Executive Director for
the ApplyBoard- India, a recent UniCorn, since August 2020. Before this,
Karunn Kandoi has worked with Extramarks Education India Private Limited
as Whole Time Director & President Global Business. Prior to joining
Extramarks, he founded Shree Eduserve Private Limited.

He is an EdTech Professional with over 18 years of experience and has a
demonstrated history of working in the education industry.

No. of Equity shares heldinthe Company

None

Terms and Conditions of Appointment/Re-appointment

Appointment as Non- Executive Independent Director of the Company, not
liable to retire by rotation for a term of three consecutive years from March 3,
2021 to March 3, 2024 on such terms and conditions including commission on
profits, if any, as applicable to other Non-Executive Independent Directors in
accordance with Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company

Directorship held in other public companies (excluding Private and Section8  \1T Educare Limited
Companies) as on March 31,2021

Membership/Chairmanship held in committees of other public companies None

(excluding Private and Section 8 Companies) as on March 31,2021

Relationship with any other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel None
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Name of Director

Mr. Ritesh Handa

DIN

02725365

Age

46

Date of First Appointmenton the Board

August7,2021

Qualification He is a qualified Chartered Accountant as well as an MBA from Faculty of
Management Studies, Delhi
Experience and Expertise Mr. Ritesh is a strategic business and operations senior executive with

diversified business and management experience with proven track record
over the last 20 years. A qualified Chartered Accountant as well as an MBA
from Faculty of Management Studies, Delhi, he has now been in the Education
business domain for the last 10 years. He was the CEO of the Test Prep
Business at Pearson in India and CEO of Alternative Learning Systems.
Ritesh had earlier worked in Rockwell Automation, HT Media (Fever 104 FM),
Genpactetc. in various capacities.

No. of Equity shares heldinthe Company None
Directorship held in other public companies (excluding Private and Section8 ~ None
Companies) as on March 31, 2021

Membership/Chairmanship held in committees of other public companies None
(excluding Private and Section 8 Companies) as on March 31,2021

Relationship with any other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel None

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
ZEELEARNLIMITED

ANILGUPTA
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date :August31,2021

Registered Office:

Continental Building,

135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,

Worli, Mumbai-400018

CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405

E-mail: investor_relations@zeelearn.com
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